
Kermit Williams, District 7 
President 
Randy Carter, District 4 
President Pro Tern 

PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 

Patrice Waterman, District 1 
George Williams, District 2 
Mary Pietila; District 3 
Gloria Miller; District 5 
Dr. Doris Taylor Burks, District 6 

It is this Council's mission "To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life 
for its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play. " 

Website: http://pontiac.mi.us/council/meeting agendas and minutes/index.php 

FORMAL MEETING 
January 21, 2020 

·· 12:00 P.M. 
135th Session of the 10th Council 

Call to order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 

Amendments to and Approval of the Agenda 

Approval of the Minutes 
1. January 14, 2020 

Public Hearing 
2. Public Hearing regarding the City of Pontiac 2020-2024 Parks and Recreation Master Plan 

www.Pontiac.Mi. Us/P&RMasterPlan 

Special Presentations (Presentations are limited to 10 minutes.) 
3. Park Place Little City 

Presentation Presenter: Larry Jasper 
(This presentation was deferred from the January 7, 2020 Meeting.) 

4. City of Pontiac Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
Presentation Presenters: Mark Tschirhart and Tracy Kaparek, Rehmann Robson 

· 5. Economic Development/Community Benefits for Medical Marihuana 
Presentation Presenter: Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

6. Medical Marihuana Application Process and Community Benefits Evaluation and Scoring Update 
Presentation Presenter: Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A., Interim City Clerk 
Office of the City Clerk 47450 Woodward Pontiac, Michigan 48342 Phone (248) 758-3200 



Recognition of Elected Officials 

Agenda Address 

Resolutions 
Mayor's Office 

7. Resolution to appoint Mr. Dan Ringo as the Director of Public Works for the City of Pontiac. 

Planning 
8. Resolution to approve the Specially Designated Distributer (SDD) Class C 'Bistro' License on behalf of the 

petitioner Fillmore 13 Brewery, and that notice of approval be sent to the Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission for consideration. 

9. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-08] for 7 & 9 Glenwood Avenue also 
known as Parcel Numbers 64-14-21-383-011 & 012, to amend the current site zoning C-1 Local Business to 
C-3 C01Tidor Commercial and M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR Conditional Zoning. 

10. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-12] for Parcel No. 64-14-18-351-017 to 
amend the current site zoning C-4 Suburban Commercial to C-3 Corridor Commercial with CR Conditional 
Rezoning. 

11. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-13] for 676 Cesar Chavez also known as 
Parcel No. 64-14-19-429-013 to amerid the current site zoning C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 
Commercial with CR Conditional Rezoning. 

12. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-14] for 114 W. Walton Blvd also known 
as Parcel No. 64-14-08-380-027 to amend the current site zoning C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 
Commercial with CR Conditional Rezoning. 

13. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-15] for 108. W. Walton Blvd also known 
as Parcel No. 64-14-08-380-028 to amend the current zoning C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial 
with CR Conditional Rezoning. 

14. Resolution to approve a Zoning Map Amendment request [ZMA 19-16] for 228 W. Walton Blvd also known 
as Parcel No. 64-14-08-354-010 to amend the current zoning C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial 
with CR Conditional Rezoning. 

15. Resolution to approve the 2020-2024 Parks and Recreation Master Plan for the City of Pontiac 

16. Resolution to approve Mayoral recommendation to reappoint the following individuals to the Planning 
Commission: Mona Parlove for a term ending June 30, 2021 and Dayne Thomas for a term ending June 30, 
2022 (This item was deferred from the November 26, 2019 Council Meeting.) 

17. Resolution to reappoint the following individuals to the City's Planning Commission: Lucy Payne for a term 
ending June 30, 2023 and E. Ashley Fegley for a term ending June 30, 2022. (This item was deferred from the 
December 10, 2019 Council Meeting) 

Ordinance 
18. An Emergency Ordinance to amend Ordinance 2363 to include Medical Marihuana Facility Uses in 

Designated Overlay Districts. The amendment allows the following: Medical Marihuana Grower uses are 
permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts. Medical 



Marihuana Processor uses are permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana 
Overlay Districts. 

Public Comment 

Mayor, Clerk and Council Closing Comments 

Adjournment 





January 14, 2020 Study 

Official Proceedings 
Pontiac City Council 

134th Session of the Tenth Council 

Call to order 
A Study Session of the City Council of Pontiac, Michigan was called to order in City Hall, Tuesday, 
January 14, 2020 at 6:00 p.m. by Council President Kermit Williams. 

Roll Call 
Members Present: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams and K. Williams. 
Mayor Waterman was present. 
Clerk announced a quorum. 

Authorization to Excuse Councilmembers 
20-10 Excuse Councilperson Gloria Miller for personal reasons. Moved by Councilperson 
Pietila and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Councilwoman Gloria Miller arrived at 6:03 p.m. 

Amendments to the Agenda 
20-11 Motion to move items #2 and #3 above public comment. Moved by Councilperson 
Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Approval of the Amended Agenda 
20-12 Approval of Amended Agenda. Moved by Councilperson Waterman and second by 
Councilperson Pietila. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Wate1man, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

Approval of the Minutes 
20-13 Approve meeting minutes for January 7, 2020. Moved by Councilperson Waterman 
and second by Councilperson Taylor-Burks. 

1 



January 14, 2020 Study 

Ayes: Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks, 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

City Council Resolutions 

20-14 
Pietila. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-15 Resolution to appoint Harold Harris, Linda Watson and Mattie Lasseigne to the 
Board of Review. Moved by Councilperson G. Williams and second by Councilperson Pietila. 

Whereas, section 5 .402 of the Pontiac City Chaiier requires the City Council to appoint three electors of 
the City annually, to the Board of Review before the first meeting; and, 
Whereas, in addition to the charter requirement of being an elector, all members of the Board of Review 
must attend and receive training. 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved that the Pontiac City Council appoints Harold Hairis, Linda Watson and 
Mattie Lasseigne to the Board of Review. 

20-16 
Taylor-Burks. 

Ayes: K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman and G. Williams 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Watennan, G. Williams and K. Williams 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-17 Resolution for Friends of Murphy Park. (Moved by Councilperson Waterman and 
second by Councilperson Pietila. 

WHEREAS, it is with warm and sincere gratitude that we recognize the Friends of Murphy Park; 
organized in 1994 in the Recreation Department when the Adopt a Park program was established, under 
the leadership of Maurice (Butch) Finnegan and Portia Fields-Anderson; and, 
WHEREAS, sanctioned by the City of Pontiac, a liaison was formed with the Mayor, City Council, 
District Seven Citizens District Council and organizers Jean Sheppard, Sally McAllister, and Charlie 
"June" Adams who answered the call to adopt Murphy Park and subsequently organized the Friends of 
Murphy Park, whose mission was to: enhance the quality of life for youth with quality and relevant 

2 



January 14, 2020 Study 

recreation programs; and most notably for operating a structured summer playground program that has 
operated for 13 years serving thousands of youth of all abilities and diversities with activities in nature, 
fitness, wellness, personal development, special events, cultural arts, enrichment, drama, dance, music, 
art, sports, field trips, daily lunch, and provided summer job opportunities for youth ages 14 to 21; and, 
WHEREAS, the Friends of Murphy Park continued to flourish with the support of its friends, partners 
and collaborators: Welcome Baptist Church, Michigan Works, OHLSA, DNR, Take One Programs, 
DTE, Forgotten Harvest, Unique Foods, Meals on Wheels, Pontiac DPW, Better Pontiac, Night Riders, 
Pontiac Creative A.ii Center, Oakland County Parks, Huron Clinton Metropolitan Authority, Nicks 
Comer, Save-a-Lot, Elam Brothers, Habitat for Humanity, Welcome Baptist Church, St. Vincent Church, 
Woodside Bible, Take One Programs, Pontiac Horse Shoe Pitchers, Leona Patterson, Mattie McKinney
Hatchett, Chuck Johnson, Kermit Williams, Loretta Crisp, Cheryl Morway, Attorney Earlene Baggett, 
Dave Coleman, Leonard Smith, Willie Martinez, Butch Finnegan, Duck McConner, Travis, Dennis 
Williams, Yohannes Bolds, Everette Seay, Curtis Cheeks, Shardae Johnson, Pat Franks, Troy Craft, 
Deborah Vaden, Margaret Yell en, Regina Press, Mark Holland, Maria and Esther Jimenez, Maria 
Bermudez, Rip Peterson, Brenda and Randy Carter, Ramone "Cornbread" Johnson, parents, City of 
Pontiac Mayors and members of the City Council, and, 
WHEREAS, the Friends of Murphy Park has been recognized by the National Recreation and 
Association Ethnic Minority Society and the Michigan Recreation and Parks Association Community 
Service Award. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pontiac City Council recognizes the Friends of 
Murphy Park for 25 years of service to the City of Pontiac and more specifically the Murphy Park 
Community, and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this honor be bestowed to current officers Queenie Jones
Hawkins, Joe Woods, Gloria Hill, and Po1iia Fields-Ailderson. 

Ayes: Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams and Carter 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

**Council President K. Williams stated that street signs in Murphy Park were to be named in 
honor of Jean Sheppard and Sally McAllister. Department of Public Works is to investigate and 
report back to Council. 

Public Comment 
Sixteen (16) individuals addressed the body during public comments. 

City Council Resolution 

20-18 
Taylor-Burks. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter and Miller 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

3 



January 14, 2020 Study 

20-19 Resolution to require that all Planning Commission recommendations that require 
final action and or Pontiac City Council approval must be placed on the Pontiac City Council's 
agenda within twenty-one (21) days from the date the applicant was provided a recommendation 
by the Planning Commission. Moved by Councilperson G. Williams and second by Councilperson 
Pietila. 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission is tasked with the responsibility of coordinating; 
intergovernmental cooperation, zoning administration, infrastructure, land division, subdivision reviews 
and capital improvement planning; and, 
WHEREAS, state law mandates that the Planning Commission make and approve a master plan as a 
guide for future development of the City and make careful and comprehensive surveys and studies of 
present conditions and future growth of the City with regard to its relation to neighboring jurisdictions; 
and, 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviews all development and re-development proposals 
including site plans, planned unit developments, subdivisions and special use permits; and, 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission forwards recommendations for street or alley vacation, zoning 
amendments, the layout of redevelopment or rehabilitation of blighted areas, the removal, relocation, 
widening, narrowing, abandonment, change of use, or extension of streets, grounds, open spaces, 
buildings, utilities, or other facilities to the City Council for final action. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that all Planning Commission recommendations that 
require final action and or Pontiac City Council approval must be placed on the Pontiac City Council's 
agenda within twenty-one (21) days from the date the applicant was provided a recommendation by the 
Planning Commission. 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all other outstanding Planning Commission recommendations 
which require final action and or City Council approval, must also be placed on the Pontiac City 
Council's agenda within twenty-one (21) days from the date of passage of this resolution. 

Ayes: Taylor-Burks, Watem1an, G. Williams, K. Williams, Caiier, Miller and Pietila 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

Resolution from Planning 

20-20 
Waterman. 

Suspend the rules. Moved by Councilperson Pietila and second by Councilperson 

Ayes: Waterman, G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 

20-21 Resolution to schedule a Public Hearing for the City of Pontiac 2020-2024 Parks & 
Recreation Master Plan on January 21, 2020 beginning at 12:00 p.m. at the Council Chambers in 
Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue, Pontiac, Michigan 48342. Moved by Councilperson 
Pietila and second by Councilperson G. Williams. 

4 



January 14, 2020 Study 

WHEREAS, that the Pontiac City Council will hold a PUBLIC HEARING at its Regular Meeting on 
January 14, 2020 beginning at 6:30 p.m. at the Pontic City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, 
Michigan 48342 in the upper level Council Chambers to receive comments on the proposed 2020-2024 
City of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 
WHEREAS, the 2020-2024 Parks & Recreation Master Plan can be viewed on the City of Pontiac 
Website: 
http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/community _ development/planning_ and_ zoning/parks_ and _recre 
ation _ masterplan.php 
WHEREAS, NOTICE IS FURTHER GNEN that the text of the proposed-Parks and Recreation Master 
Plan may be examined at the Pontiac Public Library, 60 East Pike Street, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 and 
Pontiac City Hall 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, Michigan 48342 during normal business hours. 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that a Public Hearing for the City of Pontiac 2020-2024 
Parks & Recreation Master Plan be held on January 21, 2020 beginning at 12:00 p.m. at the Council 
Chambers in Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue-, Pontiac, Michigan 48342. 

Adjournment 

Ayes: G. Williams, K. Williams, Carter, Miller, Pietila, Taylor-Burks and Waterman 
No: None 
Resolution Passed. 

Council President Kermit Williams adjourned the meeting at 8:46 p.m. 

5 

GARLAND S. DOYLE 
INTERIM CITY CLERK 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Code Enforcement Division 
47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac MI 48342 

T: 248.758.2800 I F: 248.758.2827 
flilayor Deirdre Waterman 

From: Donovan Smith - City Planner 

Planning Division 

Date: 1/16/2019 

City of Pontiac 

City Council 

Notice of Public Hearing 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Pontiac City Council will hold a PUBLIC HEARING at its Regular Meeting 

on January 21, 2020 beginning at 12:00 p.m. at the Pontiac City Hall, 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, 

Michigan 48342 in the upper level Council Chambers to receive comments on the proposed 2020-2024 City 

of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan. 

NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that the text of the proposed Parks and Recreation Master Plan may be 

examined at the Pontiac Public Library, 60 East Pike Street, Pontiac, Michigan 48342 and Pontiac City Hall 

47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, Michigan 48342 during normal business hours. The proposed plan is also 

available on the City'swebsite at: www.Pontiac.Mi.Us/P&RMasterPlan 

Written comments may be submitted to the City of Pontiac at 47450 Woodward Avenue Pontiac, Michigan 

48342 or by email at PontiacPRMasterplan@Pontiac.mi.us until the time of the public hearing. Those 

persons needing special accommodations at the Meeting should contact the City at least two business days 

in advance. 

47450 Woodward Ave• PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: (248) 758-3700 • FAX: (248) 758-3750 



TI 



1/10/2020 Yahoo Mail - Leasing, Management or Public Private Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 

Leasing, Management or Public Private Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 

• 1 Jessica Massey Urnassey@pontiac.rni.us) 

littlecitiesii@yahoo.com 

jclark@grnhlaw.com; achubb@gmhlaw.com 

Tuesday, December 17, 2019, 12:47 PM EST 

Good Afternoon, 

I am writing regarding your submission to the City of Pontiac Request for Proposals for the Leasing, Management, or 
Public Private Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility. Your submission failed to include all responsive 
documentation as required by Section 2.9, Quotations/Proposals, Subsection 0, Content of Proposal, parts 1 through 6. 
Pursuant to Section 4.2, Reservation of Rights, the City of Pontiac is allowing you to supplement your bid by 5:00pm 
Eastern Time on Friday, December 20, 2019. Please review Section 2.9, Subsection D, parts 1 through 6, and provide 
all missing information by that deadline. 

Jessica Massey, Purchasing Agent 

City of Pontiac 

46450 Woodward 

Pontiac, Ml 48342 

PH. 248-758-3120 

Fax 248-758-3197 

1 /1 



JASPER Ill CORPORATION 

Parenting Company to be formed through Omega's Pilot 

Omega Investments, Ltd. 
SGIDS 

(Smart Grid Infrastructure Distribution Systems) 

Supporting by 

The LITTLE CITY Franchise 

Mixed Use Development Plan 

Omega's PPP for Phoenix Parking Structure & Ottawa Towers 

Lawrence Jasper, CEO 
265 Marlborough 

Bloomfield Hills, Ml 48302 
248- 961-7075 

(2.9A) 

1 



Introduction: Omega Investments Ltd. (Omega) was formed in 2003 to find talent, technology, 

and solutions to the present economic crisis of the USA, focused on rejuvenating Inner Cities and 

Rural communities through participation of the local residences. Thereby, restoration of existing 

buildings and/or completely new developments on mixed-use parcels connected by a Mass 

Transit commodities distribution infrastructure. 

Omega was in the process of raising capital to purchase the Ottawa Towers and then work with 

the City of Pontiac to support the Little City franchise concept, being the Settlement Agreement 

provides the owners of the Ottawa Towers to use the Phoenix Parking Structure for a period of 

10 years. Later to work with the City of Pontiac to better the community. However, the 

opportunity to implement a PPP with the City of Pontiac and incorporate the systems of the LC 

with the Ottawa Towers provides a unique opportunity to reward the citizens of the City of 

Pontiac. The City of Pontiac would raise the capital for restoration $20M for the Ottawa Towers, 

which interacts with the Phoenix Parking Structure and the utilities that would be created by the 

restoration. 

The Little City franchise system interacts with the lntradependant Business Model supporting its 

operations of the mixed-use development, and interacts with the local municipality and its work 

force to bring back high paying jobs and update their technological systems bringing them into 

the 21st century with cutting edge technology and manufacturing supported by the duplication 

of the LC franchise and its connecting Maglev Transit commodities distribution systems. 

The Little City mixed use development focuses on preventative medical solutions, job creation, 

cross educational platforms, advanced entertainment solutions, office and professional services, 

and high-end technology systems to support the surrounding communities that run the franchise. 

We use Artificial Intelligence (Al) units to create dash boards for the franchisee and franchisor, 

overseeing and holding the intradependent partners accountable. Additionally, it provides non

profit solutions to support the workforce and their families contributed through the oversight 

and profitability of the Le's 50/50 percentage leases. 

The LC is completely self-efficient and is designed to interact with local municipalities reducing 

the yearly cost producing more utilities than the LC unit uses and selling them at a 50% reduction 

to local municipalities. It builds into its development infrastructure that produces Green Energy, 

Purification systems for drinking water without chemicals, and a confidential WIFI 6 systems for 

digital services to support triple play telecommunications, cloud housing, and Internet of Things 

(IOT). Ultimately, generating higher Return on Investment (ROI) for the real estate investment. 

The utilities and transit systems interact with the local infrastructure providing distribution of the 

utilities, people, and material that is metered, and accounted for through the Al unit. 

The City of Pontiac and Omega Investments would provide the acquisition and restoration funds 

for the Ottawa towers through a PPP with Omega Investments Ltd. The bonds would be 

supported by Pontiac and guaranteed by the present community. The Phoenix Parking structure 

would be repaired with the upgraded electrical, water, and digital systems of the Ottawa Towers. 

Omega would fill the Ottawa Towers with seasoned business owners to run its operations and 

2 



train the workforce to oversee the utilities and its internal operations. Within 12 to 24 months. 

Omega would refinance the Ottawa towers to include the Phoenix Parking structure and pay off 

the bonds using the 20% bonus to pay for repairs to Phoenix Facility in compliance to the 

Settlement Agreement. Additionally, it would provide ownership, 10% of the Parenting Company 

of Omega (Jasper Ill Corp.) and a 10% of the Token used for the capital raise to initiate the new 

manufacturing for the Rail and LC's, associated to the profits of the pilot LC which is the Ottawa 

Towers. Furthermore, the refinance would pay for a 4-mile Mass Transit Maglev that would use 

the existing easements attaching businesses Williams International, United Wholesale Mortgage, 

and Amazon to the Phoenix Parking Structure and the pilot Little City (LC) franchise solution. 

The Initial offering of the LC's coin is for future duplication of the utility infrastructure, support 

new manufacturing to build out the State of Michigan, connecting Indianapolis Indiana, using the 

Interstate Highways 1-75, 1-94, 1-69, creating the first of Jasper's Gateways and 40 LC units. The 

Pilot LC will incorporate the Ottawa buildings and the Phoenix Parking structure. Additionally, 

those that are in the initial positions will be promoted to replicate the Gateway in 12 different 

locations, adding to the workforce and systematically build out those gateways. This is expected 

to be completed within first 4 years completing 521 LC units and 5200 miles of rail. At the end of 

4 years the citizens of Pontiac will be able to cash in all or some of their shares, providing them 

the ability to pay off debt, buy a house, or simply fund their retirement. 

Omega has put together a team to oversee the restoration of the buildings and parking structure 

and implementation of all the technology systems that will correspond with various US tech 

companies. If Omega and the City of Pontiac agree to a PPP, then we would look to upgrade the 

Pontiac systems to correlate with the utilities distribution and see the City of Pontiac act as the 

franchisee and receive an additional 3% fee for its oversight for a period of 10 years, at which 

date the franchise can be renewed. 

2.9 (c) Omega's Team: 

Lawrence Jasper CEO 

Scott Foster coo 
City of Pontiac CFO 

Robert Kulick CTO 

Bob Storen coo 
Megan Storen GM 

Brad Baldwin GM 

Mathew Rosendaul GM 

Fred Wagner GM 

Mike Johnson GM 

Chief Executive Officer Contact for all 248-961-7075 

Chief Operating Officer 

Chief Financial Officer (Oversee 25 Million in Bonds) 

Chief Technology Officer 

Chief Development Officer 

General Manager Construction 

General Manager Hotel/Entertainment 

General Manager Utility operations 

General Manager Food Service 

General Manager Maintenance Oversight 

3 



i. Omega 1s team shall oversee restorations and technology equipment implementations 

for the best use of properties combining the Ottawa Towers and the Phoenix parking 

structure, represented in the proposal for the Private Public Partnership and attached 

business plan. 

a. The Team's sole commitment will be executing the executive summary that was 

provided in this proposal for the restoration of the Ottawa Towers, leveraging the 

best use of the property and parking structure, providing multiple benefits for the 

citizens of Pontiac. 

1. Inexpensive Triple Play Telecommunications 

2. Utilities at 50% off for the City of Pontiac 

1. Electricity 

2. Water Purification 

3. Digital WI Fl utilities (Cloud Housing, Digital programs, Internet of 

Things etc.) 

4. A functional Parking Structure with amenities for social bonding. 

ii. There is no anticipation of overlap or capacity issues in completion of the project. 

d. Omega's CEO Lawrence Jasper is a veteran, honorably discharged from the Army. It is Omega's 

mission to help local communities and its veterans secure long term high paying jobs for careers. 

i. We have engaged Mr. Carlton Jones of CarNav Group (Minority Business) to support the 

cross-education platform for Jobs and construction positions that will be created for the project 

component, its expansion, duplication, and operations of the PPP. 

ii. Mr. Jasper will be reaching out to the Veteran Administration for recommendations of 

qualified veterans who are looking for a career to fill positions that will be available. 

3. The Resume's provided outline the teams experience and prior oversight for the restoration 

and technological background of every aspect of the project components to include: 

a. Omega's Chief Development Officer will be overseeing renovations and restorations 

of the construction operations of the PPP. (see resume provided). 

1. Harvey's Hotel and Convention Center, Council Bluffs, IA 

2. Somerset North Shopping Center, Troy, Ml 

3. Veterans Administration Building Detroit, Ml 

b. Omega's Chief Technology Officer will be overseeing the implementation of equipment 

that supports higher ROl's for the project component and value-added benefits. (see resume 

provided) 

1. Green electrical production 

2. Clean sewage purification system 

3. Digital WI Fl 6 systems. 

4 



c. Omega's Chief Operations Officer will be overseeing the leasing, entrepreneurs, 

management of business operations running the proposed mix-use development operations of 

the component project's and PPP with the City of Pontiac. (See Resume provided) 

1. The filling of the Ottawa Towers mixed use space. 

2. Oversight of lntradependent Business Model for the PPP. 

3. Interacting with oversight from the City of Pontiac. 

The Team titles provided above outline responsibilities for the LC franchise operations and 

intradependent business model, along interactions with the Artificial Intelligence that coincide 

with the PPP. More definitions can be outlined specifically with the acceptance of the proposal. 

4) The proposal supports the City of Pontiac providing the necessary bonds and insurance to 

complete the project with the AAA guarantees of the Oakland County's Executive. The executive 

summary provided in the proposal outlines the cost to renovate and restoration of the Ottawa 

towers, which is leverage within 2 years to pay back the bonds. In the process of implementing 

the high-end technology benefitting the PPP, while we fix existing issues with the Phoenix Parking 

structure and meet the necessary repairs agreed to in the Settlement Agreement. (The City of 

Pontiac is shown as the Chief Financial Officer in the PPP). Executive Summary outlines cost. 

a. The Phoenix Parking structure has no benefit or ability to pay for its repairs without connecting 

the Ottawa Towers, based on the Settlement Agreement terms and the present atmosphere. 

b. However the acquisition of the Ottawa Towers presently for sale @ 16.9 Million allows us to 

leverage the existing office space and convert it to the best use, commercial mixed use. 

c. The acquisition allows us to fill the existing vacant space through Omega's lntradependent 

business model and increase the ROl's with high end technology products. Thereby, providing us 

the ability to refinance and payoff any debt acquired to combine the Phoenix Parking Structure 

with the Ottawa Towers in the PPP with the City of Pontiac, ultimately creating the pilot LC. 

d. The City of Pontiac shall become the franchisee, receiving a 3% fee of gross proceeds of the LC 

development, overseen by the formulated parenting company displayed in this proposal as 

Jasper Ill Corporation, the franchisor. The franchise is granted for 10 years and must be resub

mitted for future extensions every 10 years. 

e. Economically, the City of Pontiac can pay off its debt and meet the Settlement Agreement cost 

of repairs on the Phoenix Parking Structure. Additionally, the citizens of Pontiac are rewarded 

with a 10% interest in the Parenting Company designed to duplicate its LC pilot. Furthermore, are 

rewarded with a 10% profit sharing based on the tokens assigned to the utility infrastructure of 

the LC, and commercial leases created by the PPP. 

f. The Tokens will be used to support expansion and duplication of the LC through manufacturing 

in Pontiac, as much as possible, creating opportunity for the community, as One Team. 

5 



5. Concept and Utilization of the Phoenix Center Facility: The Master Plan is to combine the 

Ottawa Towers with the Phoenix Center Parking Structure, leverage the best use by building out 

the Towers to support a Hotel, Retail, Medical, Educational, and Office space. Supporting it with 

seasoned local businesses, that increase lease values by using a 50/50 percentage lease structure. 

Then leveraging the increase value to support the payoff of debt to acquire and the restoration, 

while incorporating a digital infrastructure that provides great value for the Citizens of Pontiac. 

a. The proposal sees the City of Pontiac as financiers, receiving benefits for supporting 

Omega's vision to redevelop the location for the people and by the people through its 

partnership with City reducing its cost for advance services and utilities, while developing 

new high paying jobs. 

a. The City of Pontiac will receive a 50% discount on any utilities or services provided 

by the LC. 

b. The City of Pontiac will meet its obligations to repair the Parking Structure without 

cost to its citizens, through the refinancing of the component project via the LC. 

c. The Citizens receive profit sharing checks quarterly on the property's profitability 

and are engaged in the downtown activities. 

d. A cross education platform will be initiated on a military platform paid mostly by 

the LC to benefit the workforce and businesses associated to the LC franchise. 

b. Parking for Citizens of Pontiac will be free for the first 10 years up to 500 spaces. 

a. The refinancing of the LC, created through the PPP, will support a 4-mile Mass 

Transit commodities distribution system connecting the Phoenix Facility to the 

new businesses in Pontiac; Williams International, United Wholesale Mortgage, 

and Amazon, supporting and expected 15,000 employees. 

b. The CEO of Omega is approved by the Michigan Transit Authority to build the 

Maglev Mass Transit system and has Michigan congressional bipartisan approval. 

However, in the past cost to build impeded Omega's ability to do so. Today by 

linking it to the redevelopment of the Ottawa Towers and Omega's LC with the 

necessity of Pontiac to repair the Phoenix Facility, it can be done. 

c. In years to come, Omega would like to run the SGIDS system up/down the bike 

trails to connect the entire city to the LC and other mass transit systems like buses 

and trains. 

c. The PPP spurs the benefits to the City of Pontiac's citizens and rewards them for their risk 

in supporting the Bond issuing raise of capital for the PPP. 

a. The citizens of Pontiac will share in the profit of the LC, quarterly, thereby creating 

participation in its new mixed used development. 

b. The LC will support family's re-education and development into the workforce 

who need financial help, above the outlying shopping entities displayed in the 

associated business plan supported by the lntradependent Business model. 

c. The LC's basic function is to provide wholesale cost for products and services, 

while benefiting the local citizens through profit sharing and membership discount 

6 



d. The technological advantages of the LC provide a magnet for outside participation and 

exponentially increases its presence, by becoming a nucleus for future real estate growth, 

development, and job creation. 

a. The cross educational platform brings together statewide college institutions to 

educate the work force. 

i. Blockchain IT 

ii. Coding for Al (Artificial Intelligence) 

iii. Management/Businesses 

iv. Human Resources 

v. Technology advancements 

vi. Manufacturing 

vii. Green & Clean economic beneficial systems 

viii. Transit 

ix. Medical 

x. Professional services 

b. The preventive medical solutions interact with the community and the locality in 

that the WI Fl 6 uses the satellite and local hot spots to monitor clients providing 

them digital nurses, and preventative exercise, pool, and diet monitoring on site. 

c. The high-tech gaming, magnetic skateboards, and virtual reality systems continue 

to progress supporting the City of Pontiac and its downtown location. 

d. The Hotel supports incoming professionals and locals looking for futuristic and 

high-end services for reasonable prices. 

e. The LC franchise supports the entire downtown drawing in Millenia and Elders that are 

looking for quality, safety, convenience, and services with a smile. 

f. The Phoenix Center Facility combined with the Ottawa Towers new use provides many 

benefits to the City and commercial services through Omega's LC. 

a. Discounted cost for electricity, water, and digital services 

b. Transportation via its Mass Transit application designed to run commercially down 

the US highways easements. 

i. Later connecting Troy, Detroit, and lndiapolis, Indiana. 

ii. Manufacturing of the Rail systems and the LC modular designs. 

c. Future growth of the facilities south of the Ottawa Towers and the possible use of 

Lot 9, to support residential development of condominiums. 

i. Small shops on outside of Lot 9 interfacing with present businesses. 

d. A franchise fee of 3% paid to the City of Pontiac on gross proceeds of 400,000 sq. 

ft. of mixed-use commercial entertainment, education, medical, and retail. 

e. A contracted workforce to work alongside the PPP development to incorporate 

the same digital benefits to the City of Pontiac, intradependent on the LC's Al unit, 

providing a dashboard and oversight of the businesses within the LC, providing 

green and red lights for profitability margins benefiting the Citizens of Pontiac. 

f. Leadership that displays economic benefits for future Inner & Rural communities. 

7 



6. Implementation Strategy, Budget, and Schedule. See executive summary for restoration cost 

and benefits for the PPP, combining the Ottawa Towers with the Phoenix Parking Facility. 

Raise funds through the City of Pontiac's Bonds (20 Million) sign PPP-first 3 months 

111 Get the County Executive to support Pontiac's PPP bonds 

• Acquisition to purchase Ottawa Towers with City of Pontiac and Omega 

e Publicly announce the PPP and benefits to citizens of Pontiac connecting new businesses 

• Initiate architectural drawing for restoration of Towers and incorporated technology 

systems provide the City of Pontiac with cost expectations in phase development. 

• Initiate forum for lntradependent systems necessary to interact with the City, Educational 

institutions, Medical Facilities, and the Le's professional services. 

• Pull permits to initiate restoration process 

• Hire staff to support core executives oversight responsibilities 

• Set team strategy sessions for foundational companies to support implementation and 

the expansion of the franchise duplication. 

• Initiate Attorney's for any and all legal documentation 

Initiate restoration process - 3rd month to 15 months 

• Build out Ottawa towers as outlined in executive summary and architectural drawings 

111 Select business owners to run various multipurpose applications assorted to new mixed 

used LC development 

111 Set in motion SEC approval for utility token related to the PPP and profit sharing 

111 Set up Cross educational platform for workforce in Professional Building (B) 

• Set up Medical partners for Urgent Care and preventative medical systems 

• Initiate marketing for Hotel, Entertainment, and on-site gaming 

• Bring in US Tech companies with the necessary programs to support the intradependent 

Al systems and WI Fl 6 applications for cloud hosting, triple play telecommunications and 

Internet of Things, etc. 

• Bring in local banking institution for reverse ATM's and refinance position of PPP 

• Implement technology systems throughout Ottawa Towers and Phoenix Facility 

• Lobby Washington for Omega's R.A.I.N.M.A.l<.E.R. Act supporting an Infrastructure Bill 

designed on leveraging future Mixed Use developments like Pontiac's LC pilot and its mass 

transit SGIDS platform, creating secondary financing for new franchised units. 

• Initiate refinancing with Banking Institution completing the process within 24 months and 

obtaining the new appraised value, attaching leasehold assorted business contracts 

• Seek acquisition or limited partnership with owner of Lot 9 

o Pre-sell Condo's and space for shops to individuals and local businesses 

o Initiate MLP's with Mass Transit system 

o Get right of way approvals for Transit system in Pontiac 

o Initiate manufacturing of the light rail system for 4-mile connection 

8 



Finish restoration and test technology systems-12th through 24th months 

111 Initiate the building of the Mass Transit commodities distribution systems 

111 Raise additional Capital for manufacturing through Initial Coin Offering (ICO). 

111 Set in place the duplicated educational processes for LC's expansion of franchises and all 

intradependant applications 

111 Set up Kettering for manufacturing on the job development 

111 Develop architecture for coding our own systems through local workforce 

111 Market Grand Opening 

• Omega Refinances LC and pays off Bonds, prbvide the Citizens of Pontiac with their share 

ownership 

• Pontiac becomes the franchisee and oversight of local businesses profitability operational 

development and oversight through the Al Unit. 

• Develop future LC sights to create the first of Jasper's Gateways connecting Pontiac with 

Detroit, Flint, and lndiapolis, IN via 1-75, 1-94, 1-69. 

• Grand Opening of the City of Pontiac Little City (LC). 

Project Budget: $20 Million (See Executive Summary used for Investors cost breakdown) 

• Estimated Appraisal value after modification $100 Million 

• Projected Cash Flow: 5 Million + per annuum. 

Estimated Overall Economic Impact of Omega's Little City platform created through a PPP 

• High paying careers with upward movement for the local population 

• An estimated $250 Million-dollar Mixed Use Development LC pilot revitalizing Downtown 

Pontiac with the ability to continue the local investment and future expansions 

• Community involvement to better the environment and receive dividends for their risk in 

providing the initial cash capital. 

• Long term possibilities for added retirement saving, based on the ICO raise, in accordance 

to duplication and future growth supported by the Citizens of Pontiac 

• A vision of the future displayed by Pontiac with a new Mass Transit Platform and unique 

benefits to its Citizens 

• A magnet for surrounding investors and visitors to the downtown commercial district 

supported by the entertainment and technological advanced systems of the LC's. 

• Cost reduction of energy, water purification, digital WIFI 6 systems for the City of Pontiac 

and any businesses that become a member of the LC etc .......... .. 

The overall scenario for the City of Pontiac is Bright and Beautiful supported by the people, made 

for the people, and rewarded them for their commitment to the Project. Current Zoning already 

exist, announcements creating public approval and community outreach for future careers and 

services that benefit the community such as triple play telecommunications for as little as $50 

dollars a month. Cross educational OJT for the workforce that provides jobs and profit sharing. 

9 



CITY OF PONTIAC - BID PROPOSAL 

I, the undersigned, propose to provide services proposed in this contract as per specifications 
supplied by the City of Pontiac. No contract is active until a purchase order is issued to the 
successful bidder. 

I further propose to deliver the above-described services for the City of Pontiac in first class 
operating manner In accordance with all specifications contained herein subject to purchaser's 
inspection of services performed. 

I attest that the bid includes all information necessary for the City of Pontiac to accept bid. 

CompanyName: ~~~~ 
/ . - I 

Address: ~s I /4'~ ~~,#./.:.,....,:Z /// 

Title: @-2) 

Office #,__,;:;Z__,...,~...__~,___M;...._-;1'._,--=-£?P,..._____'9 __ Cell ___ # _?_~_--~-~-1/_~ ?Z_~_r._:.S_--_ 

FAX# ZM-ff9'-J737S-

Federal Tax Identification Number: ~ - ;;?5l!/ ~J?-6 ---------,.., ---------

Date: 

Leasing, Management or Private Public Partnership of the Phoenix Center Facility 





City of Pontiac 
June 30, 2019 
Audit Results 

Presented by: 

Mark Tschirhart, Principa l 

Tracey Kasparek, Senior Manager 



Overview of Financial Statements 

• Independent Auditors' Report (pg 1) 

- Unmodified (11clean") opinion 

• M anagement's Discussion and Ana lysis (pg 6) 

- Narrative overview of the financia l activit ies of t he 
City for the fisca l year ended June 30, 2019 



Overview of Financial Statements 

• Government-wide Financial Statements {pg 17) 

- Includes all activities of the primary government and 
its component units. 

- Reported on the full accrual basis of accounting 
• Includes long-term assets and liabilities not included in the 

fund financial statements 

- Capital asset s 

- Long-term debt 

- Net pension asset/liability 

- Net other postemployment benefit liability 



Overview of Financial Statements 

• Governmenta l Fund Financial Statements (pg 
22) 

- Information is presented separately for each 
major fund. These include: 

• Genera l Fund 

• Major Streets Fund 

• Loca I Streets 

• Sanitation Fund 

• District Court 



Overview of Financial Statements 

• Genera l Fund Actua l Results 

Tota l Revenues 

Tota l Expenditures 

Net Transfers 

Net Change 

Beginning Fund Balance 

Ending Fund Balance 

$ 37,329,582 

(34,897,265) 

(1,269,456) 

1,162,861 

17,422,150 -----

$ 18,585,011 



Overview of Financial Statements 

20,000,000 

15,000,000 

10,000,000 

5,000,000 

(5,000,000) 

GF Fund Balance 
Last 8 Years 

2012 2013 20::..4 20::..s • 20::..6 20::.. 7 • 20::..s • 20::..9 



Overview of Financial Statements 

• General Fund Fund Balance 

Nonspendable 

Committed 

Assigned 

Unassigned 

General Fund 

Fund Balance % of Total 

Classifications Expenditures 

$ 30,209 

3,200,000 

2,800,000 

12,554,802 

$ 18,585,011 

36% 

53% 



Overview of Financial Statements 

• General Fund Budget to Actua l (pg 106) 

Actual Over 

Original Final (Under) Final 

Budget Budget Actual Budget 

Total Revenues $ 35,678,654 $ 35,678,654 $ 37,329,582 $ 1,650,928 
Total Expenditures (34,040,755) (37,545,819) (34,897,265) (2,648,554) 
Net Transfers (1,634,555) ( 1, 707,845) (1,269,456) {438,389) 

Net Change 3,344 (3,575,010) 1,162,861 4,737,871 

Beginning Fund Balance 17,422,150 17,422,150 17,422,150 

Ending Fund Balance $ 17,425,494 $ 13,847,140 $ 18,585,011 $ 4,737,871 



Overview of Financial Statements 

• Property t axes and special 
assessments 

Income t axes 

• St at e revenue 

• Other revenue 

GF REVENU ES 



Overview of Financial Statements 

• Actual Results of Other Governmental Funds 
- Detail for Nonmajor Funds can be seen at pg 114 

Total Revenues 

Total Expenditures 

Net Transfers 

Net Change 

Major 

Streets 

$ 5,998,310 $ 
(6,187,229) 

18,484 

(170,435) 

Local 

Streets 

1,653,660 $ 
(2,613,045) 

14,125 

(945,260) 

Sanitation 

3,743,559 $ 
(3,782,087) 

291 

(38,237) 

District 

Court 

2,037,475 $ 
(2,942,908) 

904,827 

(606) 

Beginning Fund Balance 2,663,403 5,933,352 6,215,848 2,093 
----'--------'--------'-----'--------------'-------=-------

Nonmajor 

Funds 

5,700,457 

(4,629,285) 

(169,695) 

901,477 

5,859,469 

Ending Fund Balance $ 2,492,968 $ 4,988,092 $ 6,177,611 $ 1,487 $ 6,760,946 -----------'--------------------'----'-----'----



Conclusion 

• Interna l Control and Compliance 

- No findings that were considered to be material 
weaknesses. 

- No findings that were considered to be significant 
deficiencies. 

• Management Letter 

- No management letter comments included as 
other matters 



#5 

SPECIAL 

PRESENTATION 



City of Pontiac 
Key Economic Development 

Resources 

• City Master Plan: 

http://www.pontiac.mi.us/departments/community _development/docs/Master _Plan_ 2014_adopted_ 11_25_ 14.pdf 

• City Parks & Recreation Master Plan: 

https://drive. google .com/ti le/d/1 WD3XvgurkVaxm6 TxFUtXh 3weiWqlX6es/view 

• CNU Study: 

http://www.pontiac. mi. us/mayor /docs/CNU%20Report%20Pontiac%202016%20small. pdf 

• Moving Pontiac Forward: 

http: //www.pontiac .mi.us/ departments/ community_development/ docs/ Pontiac_Moving_Forward_2015_07 _01 _2_. odf 

• Neighborhood Revitalization Plans: 

- Washington Square 

- Casa del Rey 



PONTIAC-'S COJYl.ll/1UN11Y BENEFITS "WISH UST" 

1. Naming rights for capital improvements al the Phoenix Center. 

2. Economic development projects in the neighborhoods surrounding 
medical Marihuana busine::;ses. 

3. The design and refurbishment of Crystal Lake Parle 

4. Refurbish and renovate Ewalt Center and Gallovvay Park. 

5. Underwriting a citywide sports league such as basketball with unifonns 
des igned for the business. 

6. Funding additional public safe ty patrols to handle the influx of medical 
Marihuana businesses. 

7 . Naming r ights for a prototype Pontiac gate\vay sign. 

8 . Matching funds for road and sidewalk repair grants. 

9. The Sponsorship of a street fair or festival such as the Dream Cruise or 
Pontiac Music Fes tiva l. 

10. Pontiac Youth Recreation Center Bookmobile in order to reach children 
in their neighborhoods. 

11. Donate to the Promise Zone to fund the first t\vo years of post-high 
school studies for Pontiac High School graduates who meet the program 
criteria. 

12 . Funding of the Oakland University-Pontiac Initiative community grant 
program. 

13 . Funding a business incubator in Pontiac. 

14. Sponsoring rooms at the Pontiac Youth and Enrichment Center such as 
an exercise and weightlifting room, and arcade with video equipment, 
and a "Read to 1\lle" children's room with computers. 



#6 

SPECIAL 

PRESENTATION 



City of Pontiac City Clerk 
Medical Marihuana Application Process & 

Community Benefits Evaluation and Scoring 
Update 

Garland S. Doyle, M.P.A. 
Interim City Clerk 
January 21, 2020 



Applicatio Period 

Provisioning Center 21 Day Application 
Period January 6-27, 2020. The Clerk's 
Office will accept applications Monday

Friday 9:00 a.m.-4:00 p.m. 
No applications will be accepted after 

4:00 p.m. on Monday, January 27, 2020. 



Status of Professional Expert Agreements 
A. City Council approved t he Professional Expert - Financial Advisor 

(Sherman J. Taylor, JD CPA, SRT Consulting, LLC) to the City Clerk and 
Professional Expert - Lega l Advisor (Klint Kesto, Esq., Kesto Law, P.L.L.C) 
to the City Clerk on November 26, 2019 

B. The City Clerk gave both agreements to the M ayor to sign on November 
29,2019 

C. The Mayor met with the City Clerk and the two professional experts 
on January 13, 2020 to discuss the agreements. 

D. As of January 17, 2020, the City Clerk has not received the proposed 
revised agreements from the Mayor. 

E. The City Clerk will not review any Medical Marihuana Applications 
until the Professional Expert Agreements have been signed. 



Community Benefits 



What are Community Benefits? 

Communit y Benefits are pledges made by the applicant to the residents of the City. 

Community benefit pledges should be made in partnerships with residents, neighborhood 

associations, fa it h-based organizations, community organizations and/or nonprofit 

organizations to develop or support established diverse programs and services that work to 

support children, families, neighborhoods, underserved populations and/or the quality of life 

in t he city. 

Community benefits are not pledges made to the City of Pontiac (Municipality). 

• The City did not adopt a Community Benefits Ordinance 

• There is no official City of Pontiac Community Benefits w ish list. The M ayor has a wish 

list. 



Community Benefits Scoring 
In the Community Development Subcategory of Content and Sufficiency (up to 10 points) and the Philanthropic 
and Community Improvement Category (up to 10 points), applicants will be scored based on the community 
benefits pledged in the City. Community benefits points will be awarded, as determined by the City Clerk. based 
on the commitment, quality, duration and community support of such pledged benefits. 

If an applicant does not pledge community benefits, such applicant will receive a zero (0) score for such 
Community Development Subcateqory and Philanthropic and Community Improvement Cate9ory. 

In each Community Benefrts Scoring category in which an applicant can earn a maximum of three (3) points, 
applicants will receive: 

• One (1) point if their submission is Very Deficient, or 
• Three (3) points if their submission is Satisfactory. 

In each Community Benefits Scoring category in which an applicant can earn a maximum of four (4) points, 
applicants will receive: 

• One (1) point if their submission is Very Deficient, or 
• Four ( 4) points if their submission is Satisfactory. 



How will Community Benefits be evaluated? 

• Quality 
• Program Impact - Who will benefit as a result of the pledge? 

• Evidence-Based (Research & Data) 

• Capacity Building - Is the pledge developing or strengthening community resources (i.e. 
community leadership, financial or organizationa l capacity)? 

• Duration 
• One time v long term commitment 

• Community Support 
• Applicants need to be able to demonstrate that they have the support of the 

community. 

• How? 

• Pledges should be developed with community input. 

• Partnerships should be developed from the ground up not top down. (resident 
input in the design and development of benefits matt er) 

• Letters of Support 

• Advisory Committee 

• Key Stakeholders 



Examples of Community Benefits: 
• Job Training and Employment Programs 
0 Transitional Programs (Previously Incarcerated) 

• Library and Literacy Programs 

• Hea lt h Initiative Programs 

• Business Development Fund (to assist City of Pontiac residents 
with funding for businesses and with st arting and growing 
businesses 

• Parks 

• Home Repair Program 



Keys to Remember 
1. You are part nering with t he communit y not the Cit y of Pont iac. (Municipality) 

2. Community Benefits should be developed in partnership with community 
stakeholders. 

3. Explain who benefits from your pledges and how do they benefit. 

4. Explain how your partnership is managed. 

5. The partnership needs to be community driven not government managed. 

6. Naming rights can be community benefits if they meet the scoring guide criteria. 

The problem with naming rights is it is difficult to show who benefits from the pledge. If 
you want to do it, then you would have to show the following: 

• What does t he sponsorship include? 
• Did you satisfy t he scoring criteria requirements? 
• Is t his a one t ime or recurring gift? 
• Do your naming rights pledge cont ribute to the susta inability of the institution (The Building or 

Program t hat is to be namea in your honor)? 
• How does t he naming benefit t he communit y (i.e. neighborhood or community at -large)? 



The M embers of the Scoring Team and any city staff or contractor that 
reviews any portion of the application will have to sign both of the 

following: 

1) Conflict of Interest 

2) Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Form 





Pontiac City Council Resolution 

19-64 Resolution Adopting a Conflict oflnterest Policy for the Review of Medical 
Marihuana Permit Applications. Moved by Councilperson Taylor-Burks and second by Councilperson 

Pietila. 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has adopted Ordinance 2357B ("City of Pontiac Medical Marihuana 
Facilities Ordinance") ("Ordinance") to allow medical marihuana facilities to operate in the City of 
Pontiac; 
WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac City Clerk is responsible for administering the medical marihuana 
facility permit application process pursuant to the Ordinance; 
WHEREAS, upon receipt of a completed medical marihuana facility pennit application ("Medical 
Marihuana Application") the City Clerk is responsible for forwarding the Medical Marihuana Application 
to the Fire, Building and Safety, and Planning Depmiments/Divisions, and the City Clerk may forward 
the Medical Marihuana Application or cetiain parts thereof to any other relevant depmiment/division of 
the City (including contractors of the City) to review the Medical Marihuana Application for compliance 
with certain requirements of the Ordinance; 
WHEREAS, any employees, agents or contractors in such depatiments or divisions asked to review a 
Medical Marihuana Application or any pmi thereof will be required to disclose any conflict of interest to 
the City Clerk in accordance with the conflict of interest policy in the fonn of Exhibit A attached hereto 
("Conflict oflnterest Policy"); 
NOW BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, that the City of Pontiac adopts the Conflict of Interest Policy in 
relation to the review of Medical Marihuana Applications. 

Ayes: Watem1an, Williams, Catier, Miller, Pietila and Taylor-Burks 
No: None 
Resolution Passed, 

I, Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk of the City of Pontiac, hereby ce1iify that the above Resolution 
is a hue and accurate copy of the Resolution passed by the City Council of the City of Pontiac on February 
26, 2019. 

Dated: August 9, 2019 



EXHIBIT A 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

lVIEDICAL MARIHUANA PERMIT REVIE,VER CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 

Purpose 

The City of Pontiac (the "City") has approved an ordinance to allow medical marihuana facilities to 
operate in the City. After receipt of a completed application, the Pontiac City Clerk is responsible for forwarding 
the application to the Fire, Building and Safety, and Planning Departments/Divisions, and the Pontiac City Clerk 
may forward the application or ce1tain pmts thereof to any other relevant department/division of the City 
(including contractors of the City) to confirm compliance with ce1tain requirements of the City of Pontiac 
Medical Marihuana Facilities Ordinance ("Ordinance"). 

The City provides this Conflict ofinterest Policy to ensure that there is full disclosure in connection with 
approval/review of any medical marihuana facility permit application ("Medical Marihuana Application") or 
inspection of any proposed medical marihuana facility that may provide an economic or other personal benefit 
to an employee, agent or contractor, or to any person or entity with whom they are related or have a financial 
interest. This will help to ensure that decisions are based entirely on merit. This policy is intended to supplement 
but not replace any applicable City, state or federal laws relating to conflicts of interest. 

Definitions 

1. Interested Person. An "Interested Person" is an individual who is in a position to review, inspect and/or 
approve components of an applicant's Medical Marihuana Application or proposed medical marihuana facility 
on behalf of the Fire, Building and Safety, or Planning Depmtments/Divisions or any other relevant 
depmtment/division of the City (including contractors of the City) tasked with reviewing, inspecting and/or 
approving any components of Medical Marihuana Applications or proposed medical mmihuana facilities. 

2. Family Member. A "Family Member" includes: the spouse of, or a brother, sister, in-law, ancestor 
(including parents and grandparents), child, grandchild or great grandchild of an Interested Person, or the spouse 
of any child, grandchild, or great grandchild of an Interested Person. 

3. Financial Interest. An Interested Person has a "Financial Interest" if: 

(a) such Interested Person, or any Family Member or Related Entity of such Interested Person, is 
directly or indirectly involved in any transaction or exchange with an entity or individual that has submitted or 
plans to submit a Medical Marihuana Application to operate a medical marihuana facility in the City ( other than 
retail purchases of medical marihuana at a provisioning center in compliance with applicable laws); or 

(b) such Interested Person, or any Family Member or Related Entity of such Interested Person, has 
a compensation arrangement or a potential compensation arrangement of any fonn, direct or indirect, with any 
entity or individual that has submitted or plans to submit a Medical Marihuana Application to operate a medical 
marihuana facility in the City. 



4. Related Entity. A "Related Entity" means: any corporation, partnership, limited liability company, 
estate, llust or other entity or organization in which any Interested Person or any Family Member of such 
Interested Person, directly or indirectly, owns or controls or is negotiating to own or control (including through 
other entities or organizations) l % or more of the voting power, I% or more of the profits or economic interest 
or l % or more of the ownership interest of such entity or organization. 

Acceptance of Benefit 

Employees, agents and contractors reviewing, inspecting and/or approving components of an applicant's 
Medical Marihuana Application or proposed medical marihuana facility ( and their Family Members and Related 
Entities) shall not solicit, accept or retain any direct or indirect gift, gratuity, compensation, payment or other 
benefit (collectively, "Benefit") from any individual or entity operating or seeking to operate a medical 
marihuana facility in the City. 

Procedures for Conflicts of Interest 

I. Duty to Disclose. Each year, promptly after the release of the Medical Marihuana Application by the 
City Clerk and on each anniversary thereafter (and in any case prior to any review by such Interested Person of 
any Medical Marihuana Application), each Interested Person shall complete and submit to the City Clerk the 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement/ Affidavit For Medical Marihuana Facility Permit Applications 
attached hereto ("Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement"). Even if an Interested Person has completed a 
Conflict ofinterest Disclosure Statement, if the Interested Person receives a Medical Marihuana Application in 
which such Interested Person has a Financial Interest or other actual or potential conflict of interest, before such 
Interested Person may review the Medical Marihuana Application, such Interested Person shall disclose to the 
City Clerk the existence of such Financial Interest or conflict together with a statement of facts that describe and 
explain such Financial Interest or conflict. 

2. Reappointment. Upon receipt of the Interested Persons' disclo_sure of Financial Interest or other actual 
or potential conflict ( or any other discovery of the same), the City Clerk shall report such Financial Interest or 
conflict to the respective head of the depmiment or division and another employee, agent or contractor shall be 
assigned to the pa1iicular Medical Marihuana Application. 

3. Violations. 

(a) If the City Clerk or head of the respective depmiment or division has reasonable cause to believe 
that an Interested Person has failed to disclose any actual or potential conflict of interest (including without 
limitation any Financial Interest) or has directly or indirectly solicited, accepted or retained a Benefit from any 
individual or entity operating or seeking to operate a medical marihuana facility in the City, the City Clerk or 
such department/division head shall inform the Interested Person of the basis for such belief and afford him/her 
an oppmiunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose or explain the improper Benefit. 

(b) If, after hearing the response of the Interested Person and making such further investigation as 
may be wal1'anted under the circumstances, the City Clerk or respective department/division head determines 
that the Interested Person has in fact failed to disclose an actual or potential conflict of interest or directly or 
indirectly solicited, accepted or retained a Benefit, the City Clerk or respective depmiment/division head shall 
take appropriate disciplinmy and c01Tective action, and may forward the matter to the appropriate law 
enforcement agency to investigate. 

Approved by City of Pontiac: Februai·y 26, 2019 
Date 



CITY OF PONTIAC ("CITY") 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT/AFFIDAVIT 
FOR MEDICAL MARIHUANA FACILITY PERMIT APPLICATIONS 

Name: ___________________ (Interested Person) 

1. As an Interested Person, please list any Related Entity ( as defined in the City's Conflict of Interest 
Policy) that has or plans to submit an application to the City to operate a medical marihuana facility . 

Date OTil 
. 

Person Involvccl 
Entity Percentage Interest From To (relationship) 

2. As an Interested Person, please list any organization or entity (profit or nonprofit) that you or a Family 
Member (as defined in the City's Conflict of Interest Policy) or Related Entity currently (or plan to) 
serve as an employee, contractor, agent, manager, director, officer or similar position or receive or are 
entitled to any fonn of compensation, that has or plans to submit an application to the City to operate a 
medical marihuana facility. 

Person Involvecl 
Organization/Business Position/Involvement (Relationship) 



3. As an Interested Person, please list any other organiz~tion, entity, involvement, relationship, conditions 
or circumstances that place or may place you in a conflict or potential conflict regarding the review, 
inspection or approval of any medical marihuana facility pe1mit application for the City, including 
without limitation any Financial Interest (as defined in the City's Conflict oflnterest Policy). 

Onrnnization or Circumstance Conflict or Potential Conflict 

4. Neither myself nor any of my Family Members or Related Entities have solicited, accepted or retained 
any direct or indirect gift, gratuity, compensation, payment or other benefit from any individual or entity 
operating or seeking to operate a medical marihuana facility in the City. 

Under penalties of pe1jury, I declare that: (i) I have completed this Disclosure Statement/ Affidavit and 
that to the best of my knowledge and belief it is trne, correct and complete; and (ii) I will update this Disclosure 
Statement/ Affidavit within one ( 1) business day after any relevant circumstances change by notifying the City 
Clerk of such change. · 

Signature: ________________ _ Date: _________ _ 

STATE OF 
-------

COUNTY OF -------

) 
)SS 
) 

The foregoing instrnment was acknowledged before me this __ day of ______ _ 
201_,by ___________ _ 

_ __________ ,, Notary Public 
__________ County, Michigan 
My commission expires: _______ _ 

32895177.4\158235-00001 



CONFIDE TIALITY 

AND 

0 -DISCLOSURE 

FORM 



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT REGARDING CONFIDENTIALITY 
AND NON-DISCLOSURE OF INFOMIATION OBTAINED DURING 

MEDICAL MARIHUANA PEMIIT APPLICATION SCORING PROCESS 

I, ____________ , by signing below, hereby acknowledge the following: 

1. That the City of Pontiac (the "City'') has approved an ordinance to allow medical marihuana provisioning 
centers to operate in the City. 

2. That I am in a position to review and score one or more components of an applicant's medical marihuana 
facility permit application or proposed medical marihuana facility for a provisioning center on behalf of relevant 
depattments/divisions of the City (including contractors of the City) tasked with reviewing and scoring medical 
marihuana applications or proposed medical marihuana facilities for provisioning centers. 

3. That any and all information contained in an applicant's medical marihuana facility permit 
application for a provisioning center or obtained or reviewed in relation to the same by the City and/or any 
of its departments, divisions, officers, agents, employees, or contractors during the review and scoring of 
that application or proposed facility is considered confidential ("Confidential Information"), 

4. That I will have access to such Confidential Infonnation as pall of the process ofreviewing and scoring 
one or more components of an applicant's medical marihuana facility permit application or proposed medical 
marihuana facility for a provisioning center. 

By signing below, the undersigned hereby agrees as follows: 

A. That I will not share or disclose Confidential Information with any person or entity who is not in a 
position to review and score the applicable permit application for such provisioning center applicant; 

B. That I will take reasonable measures to maintain and preserve the confidential nature of the 
Confidential Information; and 

C. That I will return all Confidential Information and related materials to the City Clerk at the 
conclusion of the review and scoring process and will not retain a copy of any Confidential Information. 

SIGNATURE: ___________ TITLE: _______ ~ DATE: ____ _ 

STATE OF ____ _ 

COUNTY OF ____ _ 

) 
)SS 
) 

The foregoing instrnment was acknowledged before me this __ day of ______ , 20 l_, by 

__________ , Notary Public 
_________ County, Michigan 
:My commission expires: ______ _ 





DR. DEIRDRE WATERMAN 

MAYOR 

CITY OF PONTIAC 

To: Honorable City Council President Kermit Williams and City Council 
From: Mayor Waterman 
CC: Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor; Anthony Chubb, City Attorney; Garland Doyle, Interim City 

Clerk, and Kiearha Davidson, HR Manager 
DATE: January 9, 2020 
RE: Recommendation to Appoint Dan Ringo as DPW Director for the City of Pontiac. 

Since June 3, 2019, Dan Ringo, has served as Deputy DPW Director for the Department Public Works. Dan 
has over 20 years of experience in operations management. He obtained both his Juris Doctor and 
Bachelors of Technology and Interdisciplinary Studies from Wayne State University. A United States Air 
Force Veteran, Dan Ringo's combined education and experience, has been an asset to the department. A 
copy of his resume is attached. 

Dan Ringo's work performance has been exemplary. In accordance with Article IV, Chapter 1, Section 
4.106, it is my recommendation that Dan Ringo is formally appointed as the Director of Public Works 
(DPW) for the City of Pontiac. 

As such, it gives me great pleasure to recommend the following resolution: 

WHEREAS, the Mayor, in accordance with Article IV, Chapter 1, Section 4.106 appoints Dan Ringo as DPW 
Director for the Department af Public Works; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Article IV, Chapter 1, Section 4.106 such appointment is subject to approval 
by Council; and 

WHEREAS, Dan Ringo has the credentials, experience, and professionalism necessary to be 
the DPW Director; and 

WHEREAS, Dan Ringo has served as Deputy Director of Public Works since June 3, W19; 

Now, therefore, be it resolved in accordance with appointment procedures provided by law and the City 
Charter, Dan Ringo is formally appointed, effective immediately, as Director of Public Worker for the City 
of Pontiac. 

Attachment 

47450 Woodward Avenue• Pontiac, Michigan 48342 
Direct: (248) 758-3181 • Appointments: (248) 758-3326 • Fax: (248) 758-3292 

E-mail:DWaterman@'pontiac.mi.us•www.pontiac.mi.us 
https: / / www .face book. com/ pontiacmayor / 



Background: 

Dan Ringo, J.D. 
Chief Executive Officer 

Dan is a United States Air Force veteran where his peacetime mission was as 
a heating, ventilation, air-conditioning and refrigeration journeyman. Leading 
a squadron of Air Force emergency engineering forces, Mr. Ringo studied 
mechanical and electrical engineering while serving in ·the military and went 
on further to study law. 

Dan's experience and background covers both blue and white collar jobs in 
both private and public sectors. He has immense experience in negotiating 
multi-million dollar contracts of various natures. Dan also possess a Juris 

. Doctor degree which he earned while working full-time managing a $33 
million dollar and fourteen million square foot account for a illultinational 
billion-dollar organization. Dan also developed the very first Chicago Public 
Schools (CPS) Integrated Facilities Management (JFM) Pilot program where 
he served as VP of facility operatioris. The knowledge and experience he 
gained through law school allowed him to think critically and act quickly 
ultimately becoming a driving force of any team. He has successfully 
maneuvered his way in especially intense and difficult labor and negotiation 
situations that he credits to his legal experience. It has helped with virtually 
any type of endeavor. It has given Dan a panoramic and broad professional 
view that will help produce better and more informed results,,, 

As Chief Executive Officer, Dan Ringo holds leadership responsibility for 
Ringo Services, including over-all strategy and operations as well as strategic 
planning, client relationship management, customer satisfaction, sales 
leadership, employee development/retention/recruitment, and performance 
management. 

Professional Experience: 
Ringo Services, Inc 
Chief faecutive Officer (March 2016 - Present) 

• Founded company in 2016 and by year two grew company to over $6million dollars in revenue and a 
diversified portfolio. 

· • Established an incredibly strong and diverse leadership team to execute and offer an innovative service 
offering 

• Responsible for client, partner, and community relations 
• Ensures quality of services provided follows client expectations 

• Holds ultimate responsibility for over-all account performance 
• Provides executive leadership to all operational, human resources, IT, and financial functions 
• Final decision mak~ for Ringo Services regarding contractual matters, allocation ofresources, and operational 

issues 

REDICO I Continuum Services/ American House 
Chief Operating Officer (Aug 2015-June 2016) 

• Complete oversight for Continuum Services' operations including three operational divisions and business 
development, accounting, human resources and administrative support 

• Reduced anticipated losses in Exterior Services division by 50% for 2015 
• Secured agreements ,vith long-term customers to stabilize revenue expectations 
• Increased internal client sales with securing American House preventive maintenance contract 
• Implemented and standardized processes for Key Performance Indicator µieasurements and Requests for 

Proposals 
• . For 2016, exceeded sales revenue in Exterior Services by $300,000 

Sodexo/ SodexoiYIAGIC 
VP- Facility Operations (Aug 2012-Aug 2015) 

• Strong experience and proven success with P&L accounts with total managed volume of $50M+ 
• Led team of professionals that developed $8.5M in savings for FY15 



• Managed over 10,000,000 gross SF and 150 school buildings within the Detroit and Chicago Public Schools 
• Consistently exceeded net income projections every year 
• Led a full Integrated Facility Management (!Flvl) program from start-up to implementation with a span of 

control covering custodial, engineering, maintenance, and grounds operations including managing service 
; contracts ,vith elevator, pest control and fire system vendors 

• Attained 90~ completion on corrective and preventive maintenance for critical assets 
• · Consistently maintained customer satisfaction quality ratings above 90% 
• Created safety program that has netted several consecUtive periods withollt incident 
• Delivered APPA Level 2 QuaHtyfor buildings managed under portfolio for Chicago Public Schools 
• Created and implemented innovative operational processes which provided and improved transparency and . 

employee/manager accountability 
• Proven leader in developing and cultivating key client relationships to foster sinooth and seamless contract 

administration 

Powerlink Facility Management Services 
Director of Operations (Mar 2011 - Aug 2012) 

• Responsible for the over-all direction and maintenance of Detroit Public School Facility Services including 
Engineering, Custodial, Skilled Trades, and Site Nfanagement providing non-instructional support services for 
over 14,000,000 SF and approximately 140 facilities ,vith the Detroit Public Schools 

• Created and implemented operational programs that reduced operational costs, increased productivity, and 
improved client interaction and satisfaction 

• Responsible for staffing levels and assignments to ensure maximutlJ. productivity and minimal over- hom 
accumulation 

• Managerial responsibility for 200 employees, 4 Area Managers, and 6 skilled trades foremen 
• Provided and presented monthly progress reports of the Detroit Public Schools/Sodexo Facilities Joint Venture 
• Facilitated an improved operational relationship through client planning meetings ,vith both the Detroit Public 

Schools Chief Operating Officer and Facility Operations Executive Director and Sodexo's Vice President of 
Operations 

• Interpreted and enforced contractual agreement between Sodexo and the Detroit Public Schools 
• Interpreted and enforced collective bargaining agreements between Powerlink Facility Management Services 

and the IUOE Local 324 and Sodexo and the Greater Detroit Building Trades Union, including disciplinary 
actions and contract provision interpretations 

• Created and issued reports to Executive Level Management regarding budget, personnel, staff and facility 
operations 

International Union of Operating Engineers Local 324, Bloomfield Twp. Michigan 
Executive Director I Recording Corresponding Secretary (Aug 2009 - Mar 2011) 

• Central figure for the successful implementation and merger of IUOE Local 547 into IUOE Local 324. This 
merger of Local Operating Engineer Unions impacted 20,000 employees across Michigan 

• Directed, managed, and facilitated staff operations for Local 324's Stationary Division comprised of two 
directors, five business representatives serving approximately 6,000 members statewide, and 225 collective 
bargaining agreements 

Detroit Public Schools 
Facility Manager/ChiefEngineer (Sept 1997- Dec. 2008) 

• Overall management and supervision for physical plant Qperations ·for individual sChool operations 
• Managed custodial and engineering staff 
• Ensured a clean, safe and healthy learning environment for staff and students 
• Led energy and sustainability efforts in the school 

United States Air Force, Maxwell Air Force Base Alabama 
Heating, Ventilation, Air-Conditioning and Refrigeration Journeyman (Nov 1993- 1997) 

• Maintained, serviced, installed, and operated various RV AC/R equipment. 
• Member of the Prime Base Emergency Engineering Force (Prime B.E.E.F.) 

o Ready to deploy anywhere in the world to support wartime mission 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 \Voodwanl Ave • Pontiac, i\Hchigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-2800 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON - PLANNING MANAGER 
DONOVAN SMITH - CITY PLANNER 
THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

FILMORE 13 BREWERY - RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL OF REDEVELOPMENT LIQUOR 
'BISTRO' LICENSE 

JANUARY 16, 2020 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac City Council chooses to engage in PA 58, 1998, MCL 436.1521a(1)(b) 

for the issuance of New On-Premises Development District License and establishment of 

Redevelopment Liquor Licenses in the Tax Increment Finance Authority Act (TIFA) District under 

Part 3 of Public Act 57 of 2018. 

Whereas, Filmore 13 Brewery, 7 S. Saginaw St. Suite D, has made petition for a Specially 

Designated Distributer (SDD) Class C 'Bistro' License, and whom meets eligibility requirements 

for licensure issuance under the MCL 436.1521a(1)(b), 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac Planning Commission unanimously approved a recommendation at 

the December 4, 2019 meeting, that the Bistro Liqueur License for Filmore 13 Brewery be 

approved for license issuance to the Pontiac City Council, 

Whereas, Filmore 13 Brewery, shall comply with the City of Pontiac Ordinance 2366 to Allow for 

Redevelopment Liquor Licenses and Conditions for Issuance and Operations of the petitioned 

Specially Designated Distributer (SDD) Class C 'Bistro' License and the MCL 436.1521a(1)(b), 

Therefore it be resolved, that on January 21st, 2020, at the regularly schedule City Council 

meeting, City Council voted to approve the acceptance of the Specially Designated Distributer 

(SDD) Class C 'Bistro' License on behalf of the petitioner Fillmore 13 Brewery, and recommends 

this application be considered for approval by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 



Agenda Item 6: Filmore 13 Brewery 
Redevelopment (Bistro) Liquor License Ordinance 

What is a Redevelopment Bistro Liquor License? 
The Bistro License is a Specialty Category of 

Liquor Licensing used as an Economic 
Development tool to promote designated areas 
within a community. 

What types of Liquor Licenses are permitted? 
Beer, Wine, & Spirits 

Where are Bistro Licenses permitted? 
Licenses will be permitted in the C-2 

Downtown District. 

Redevelopment Liquor License Ordinance 
- !, • - : .. • 

1/15/2020 

- - -·- - - - __j 

1 



City of Pontiac 

Redevelopment Liquor License 
Planning Division Staff Review Assessment 

Application Review Date: October 25, 2019 

Applicant: Filmore 13 Brewery ... 
Contact Person: Lee Todd Phone: 248-977-3972 I Email: 
Business Name: FIimore 13 Brewery Address: 7 N Saginaw Ste D 

Type of Redevelopment License: • A-Hotel 
D 8-Hotel 
[Z]ClassC 
nravern 

Description of Business: 
Restaurant/Brewery with Sunday & Outdoor Sales 
Permits for Sale of Beer & Wine 

Documentation Submission 

IZI Proof Of Ownership 

IZI Detail Breakdown of Personal Property Investment 

[ZJ City of Pontiac New License Application 

IZI City of Pontiac Questionnaire 

IZI Notarized Affidavit of Attempt to Secure Escrowed License 

[ZJ Submission of Application Fee 

Eligibility Requirements 
Eligibility Requirements: ✓ I Business is to be Licensed with eligible license area. 
(All Boxes Must be check to be eligible) Applicant has expended over $75,000 over the preceding 

[ZJ 5 years or committed to the expenditure before the 
license is issued. 

[ZJ Business engages In dining, entertainment, or recreation 
with a seating capacity of more than 50 persons. 

[ZJ More than 50% of Business revenue is generated from 
food and non-alcoholic sales. 

License and Property Details 
Types of Liquor Sales _IZLBeer RJ Wine JZL Spirits (Hard Liquor} 

New Construction Building _D_Yes [71 No 

Facility Currently Occupied _0_ves • No 

Is the facility planning a renovation? • Yes [ZJ No 

Detailed Breakdown of Personal _IZLYes • No 
Investment Included: 
Value of Personal Investment: $194,800.00 

Assessors Assessment of Investment: $81,000 

Donovan Smith 10/25/2019 

Printed Staff Reviewer Name Date 

10/25/2019 

Signed Staff Reviewer Name Date 



6) 
i. Fillmore 13 Brewery will utilize the DOA Redevelopment License to further advance an 

already successful venture in Downtown Pontiac. Including a full range of spirits to our already 
unique craft brewery will open our doors to more general public and give us the opportunity to 
expand our clientele by widening our product selection .. 

a. By introducing a full bar to our selection, we will be hiring extra serving and 
bar staff to help deliver our products in a professional and timely manner. 

b. Continuing on our path as an already solidified Pontiac business, we will utilize 
the license to help new concepts see our success in the city and help the growth of the 
Downtown District. 



CITY OF PONTIAC APPLICATION FOR 
NEW LICENSES 

Date: CJ - / ;5' - / 1 
Instructions: This application must be completed and returned with a $150 application fee for each license 
before it can be considered. All answers must be typed or printed. Sign the completed form in ink and return to the City 
Clerk, 47450 Woodward Ave., Pontiac, Michigan 48342. 

MAKE ALL CHECKS OR MONEY ORDERS PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF PONTIAC, MICHIGAN. 

1. Applicant identit1cation-all applicants 
Name of individual, partnership, corporation or 
lim~d liability company who will hold the lic~nse: 

H'-1..y-11~12-~. l~ ~ii,1::wcni-'-J Ll",(., · 
Business Street Address: 
7 iJ -~~\\~\'<;1.-J "61[. \ \) 

~tate/Zip Code: / 
ifJ_i'.l.':::J tvt l t.Ji 1 '-1 '"J... 

Township: ' 

2. Nature of Application - (Check all that apply) 

·r/ Retail Applicants 
• Manufacturer or Wholesale Applicants 

Contact Person Name: 

Lf-11\\\ !<....Cl...l ·0(\-/lr'-l 'A 

Street Address: \) 
&c·7.>·t~ '1 l"!\'.i~ ,t.. -

City/State/Zip Code: / 
IM!'l¼h'l "f3. 'Tc,0,µ;$\·hP J i'V'I \ q ~Ol-\l-\ 

Business Phone No. Home Phone No. 
(;}!.\1) 'l':\'t - 3°1 ":\ 'J... (S'¥-) ~66 ~ r~ \ 

3. Retail Applicants - (Please Identify all permits being applied for with this license application) 
3a. Check Type of License 3b. Check Type of Permits 
• SOM i!I Sunday Sales 
o Class C o Add Bar 
o A-Hotel o Entertainment Sales 
• B-Hotef ·!!{ Outdoor Sales 
o Tavern o Before / After Hours For: 
• Club 
D SOD 
w'Redevelopment 
• Other: 

4. New Manufacturer or Wholesale Applicants 
o Wine Maker·--- • Manufacturer of Spirits • Outstate Seller of Mixed Spirit Drinks 

o Outstate Seller of Wine • Small Wine Maker o Industrial Manufacturer 
• Wine Maker Tasting Room • Warehouse • Outstate Seller of Beer 
o Micro Brewer • Brewpub o Other: ________ _ 
• Small Distiller 

. 6. Briefly describe the business, for example - Drug Store, Restauran~ Party Store, Wholesaler, Wine Maker, 

etc. .\L--~, D ~ N', / ·6 {L~We f:... "l 

--

·--



CITY OF PONTIAC REDEVELOPMENT LIQUOR LICENSE 
PRE:..APPUCATION QUESTIONNAIRE 

Instructions to Applicants: If you are applying for a City of Pontiac Redevelopment Uqour License, within the 
Downtown Area this form must be completed prior ·to filling out the City of Pontiac New Liquor License 
Application Form. The new application form will not be accepted without a completed pre-application 
questionnaire. Please include copies of two pieces of personal identification. 

Please indicate, by checking YES or NO, if your establishment meets the following criteria, 

1. Is the bu;ess to be licensed within the geographic boundaries of the City of Pontiac Downtown 
District?.::___ Yes _No (Please indicate proposed location on the attached map.) L C 

h1...1.-rV1cP..f': I 3 ~R...;:,~~'i L, ' ' , . , 
Complete name and address of business to be licensed '1--Nc,f2.ill $A~l.vAw $,E 10,?t:, t-.T\l'tG,M\ l...j't~Y;,J. 
Personal Property ID (for existing businesses) G,L\ qq ~co~ bl,. ~o.~5 

2. Applicants for development district licenses, must demonstrate to City of Pontiac and the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission (MLCC), at the time of investigation, that the amount expended for the 
rehabilitation or restoration of the building that houses the licensed premises shall be not less than 
$75,000 over a period of the preceding five years or a commitment for a capital investment of at least 
that amount in the building that houses the licensed premises, which must be expended before the 
issuance of the license. At the time of applicatlon, can your business demonstrate this requirement? 
✓Yes _No (Please attach supporting financial information for verification.) . 

3. Will the licensed business engage in dining, entertainment or recreation, that is open to the general 
public, with a seating capacity of not less than 50 persons? ✓ Yes _No (Please attach current or 
proposed floor plan that supports seating capacity.) 

4. Will the licensed business generate 50% or more of its revenue from food and non-alcoholic drink 
sales? JYes_No · 

5. What type of on-premise sales are you interested in applying for? Check all that apply. (Checking the 
boxes does not guaranb;e award of any or all categories.) 
✓ Beer £ Wine _✓_ !Spirits (hard liquor) 

6. Please describe (on an attached sheet) how your business will do the following, lf issued a license: 
i. Prevent deterioration in the ODA district and promote economic growth by: 

a. creating new employment opportunities 
b. adding new tax value through the purchase of new equipment and/or building improvements 

ii. Represents a desired land use as determined by the City's area master plan and zoning 
requirements. 

iii. Contribute to the mix, of dining/drinking, entertainment and recreational existing establishments 
(describe unique characteristics) 

~ ·"~ ~-~~---',!'C::C:,,ez;;;l f/ C-da--~- - er-..-- .____ 

Signature of Applicant Date Printed Name 

If any of the above questions have been answered NO, the applicant is not eligible to apply for a Development District 
License as designated under Michigan State Law (Public Act 501 of 2006). Applicants that cannot meet the minimum 
criteria will not be considered by the City of Pontiac. Do NOT fill out an application. 
If all o( the above questions have been answered YES, the applicant is eligible to apply for a Redevelopment l.iqour 
License. The next step in the application process is to fill out the City of Pontiac application fonn. Attach this completed 
form to the application and submit with $150 apRlication fee to the Pontiac City Clerk. 47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, 
Ml 48342. Phone No. - 734-794-6140. A $600 license fee is due upon approval. 
To inquire about other licensing opportunities, including transfers of existing Class C licenses, please contact the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission directly. All transferred licenses begin at the State level. MLCC On-Premises 
Licensing Division - 517-322-1400. 



7. This proposed licensed business will be owned by: (check one) 
./rhe named liability company • Me as the individual owner 0 The named corperation 

The following partners (indicate limited partners with an "L" before their name) 
Partnership Information: (attach additional sheet if necessary) ----
Name of Partners Home Address Telephone Number 

·---· 
\_..'t:osq\ .. \ "R-D u r{\ P. 'l A ,)._O~ l-<l \J qJc bt<.. l S"li--) ;J,GO ·- 1-ro \ 

M ~JXl\t) I() 1.,~1\lbrt \ ~ I '711} q LI 

--·· ··---~--··-· 
t-\C>v-'>A~ v.\j I t...L..\ r\lY6 )L\L,\1 SA.MD~err T~l'{\L. ('l\.\<'6 \ 1)0J- - ~qq 7 

Sct>·n-\fl(:.L.,D M \ l 1-\1;\'>.':3 3 
~ r:: " L1.iJof¾ lr-J \ LL.. \Ai'V\-S "Se.6 ~"01:,\1-'-: .../ ~l:_ j.\,""\3t,-S E, ./ 

* All partners may be required lo complete and submit additional infonnation as part of the application review process, by 
completing this application applicant agrees to comply with any such requests. 

8. Personal Information - Individual Applicants and Partnership Members Only 
Date of Birth \ l ~ J. "I,.. 1((4,«;, (required to confirm applicant is over 21 years ofage) 

If you are not a US Citizen -Are you a registered alien? t1 Yes o No Or, do you have a Visa? o Yes o No 
Full name of spouse: t-ilc.c.:,1..g t,ou.rt\1l>r'\-A. 

Have you ever legally changed your name? • Yes-£ No lfYes, from. ______ to ____ _ 
Have you been known by other names? • Yes ✓No List Names: __________ _ 

Have you ever been convicted of a criminal offense, including alcohol related infractions (exclude traffic 
citations)? ; 
• Yes rf No If Yes, please list charge, date of convictfon, location and disposition below. 
(Use additional sheet if necessary.) 
CHARGE DATE PLACE DESCRIPTION 

List your former occupations for the past 3 years: 
DATE (to/from) OCCUPATION EMPLOYER NAME AND ADDRESS 

I or my spouse previously held or now hold interest in the following licenses for sale of alcoho!lc beverages as 
sole licensee, partner or corporation: 

NAME OF LICENSE TYPE OF LICENSE LOCATION 

Do you or your spouse hold any law enforcement powers including powers of arrest? • Yes 

DATE 

3 {Ii Rc'i7i 

.,~No 



9. Limited Partnership Applicants Only- is the limited partnership authorized to do business under the laws 
of Michigan? 

✓Yes o No Date authorized: 0 1 
J 11..t J ;.;>.oi \i 

·10. Corporate & Limited liability Company Applicants Only -
Attach copy filed or proposed Articles of Incorporation, fast annual report/statement filed & attach copy of stoclc 
options. 

Corpora!e/LLC Name: Incorporation/Organization date: 
,,.. \~ t,v.,v,h~'-\ L. L.C., }"ll.l.M•i4-~ bl I I IL\ ;1t:,\b 

Incorporated/Organized in what State? Michigan Authorization date: 

·1vh e,,--h C.:-i Y-\i-l CJ\ I \L\ l J_e,\ IS 
,-.. .. 

Name, Address, Phone Number of Resident Agent: 

Le,~ \l--CIU,A--t.c.e,7 0 Sf"(;,,_ ~60 -7, 0 I 
?. D :i7 l{ V \!\ c:,. 't) )1.... 
MA [c,/1,,\ b I 1V\ l l.j 1 t--4 4 

(Check one of each) '!'f Profit or o Nonprofit if Public or • Private Corporation 
Corporation 
Date last annual report/statement filed with Michigi;in Corporation and Securities: 

Corporate Officers Name Address Phone. Number 

President 

Vice-President 

Secretary 

Treasurer 

11. Corporations and Limited Liability Companies - List all persons, companies and other entities that 
hold or will hold stock interest or membership in applicant entity. 

Name Address Phone Number %Interest 

1·---------'---
2. __________ _ 

3. __________ _ 

4. __________ _ 

5 .. __________ _ 



12. Denial of Application/Revocation of License 
(A) Haye you, prior to thi~ application, made application(s) for a similar or other license on premises other than 
described in this applicatign? 

o Yes 't6 _No 
If yes, please list date, place and disposition of such application(s). 

(B} Have you, pr'ior to this application, been disqualified to receive approval for a license under the laws of the 
State of Michigan? 

o Yes 'el"No 
If yes, pl~ase explain. 

(C) Have you ever held a liquor license which has been revoked or not renewed? 
• Yes •✓No 

If yes, please state reason. _________________________ _ 

13. Financial Details - All applicants 
(A) Source of funds used to establish business, or which will be used to purchase this business, list name, 
address and amount of all money lenders. 

Name 

(B) Attorney or representative 

'J&l-'IN l'Jif\BL(("'-\ 
Name 

Address Amount 

41·0J-l ·T if,t>"M Pw:i t,.)lii Q,'f) \ fv'lf\LC1\"l a IY\ i l(l5l> lJ1-j$ G, 'oO, oi.~o :· C 

_________________ $ ____ _ 

_________________ $ ____ _ 

J~·)I\ {k'JSTP,ML,7frQ.ht;\...1o. -STE 0-cO 

Address -SCon\-Ftf.1..b. Ml ~-,W"tr.,, 
~ 4%, l-9"\' /f-.1-1 \ 
Phone Number 

14. Premises (Answer either A, 8, or C.) Applicant shall attach a building and grounds layout diagram 
(8-1/2 x 11) showing the entire structure, premises, and grounds, and in particular the specific areas 
where the license is to be utllized. Plans shall demonstrate adequate off"street pal"king, lighting, refuse 
disposal facilities, and where appropriate, adequate plans for screening and notice control. 
(A) New Cot),§truction 
Do you need to build a facility at the residence that will hold the license? • Yes .J No 
If yes, do you have building permits? • Yes o No 
If no, when do you plan to get them? _____________________ _ 

If yes, when do you expect construction will begin? __________________ _ 
If yes, when do you expect construction to be completed? _______________ _ 
If yes, what is the estimated cost of construction of the facility? $ _____________ _ 
When is your anticipated occupancy date/open forbuslness date? _____________ _ 
Would you build the facility at this location if you do not get a lfcense? • Yes o No 

(B) fXl§tina fa<;llib,!-No Reuoirnllilli · 
Is the facility currently occupied? J Yes • No 1 
If yes, do you Intend to be licensed under the existing business at this location? !:! Yes • No 
If yes, do you intend to be licensed under the same management? -.J Yes o No 
How long has the existing business be atthe location? 3 '-\eA~"'i> 
Are you currently associated with the business operatro_n_o_n_s-ite_? __ :.;/---.-Y_e_s ____ •_N_o _____ _ 
If yes, in what capacity are you associated?_D_v_-,_t-:i_e.~P..., ________________ _ 
If no, will you be purchasfng the premises? ____________________ _ 



' . 
(C) ~~ 
Do you plan to renovate an existing facility? o Yes .£ No 
If yes, what is the estimated cost of the renovation? $ 
If yes, when do you expectconstructionwill begin? ____________ ~------
lf yes, when do you expect the construction lo be completed? ______________ _ 
When is your anticipated occupancy date/open for business date? _____________ _ 
Is the facility currently occupied? o Yes o No 
If yes, are you currently associated with the business operation on site? o Yes • No 
If yes, in what capacity are you associated? ____________________ _ 
Will it be necessary to temporarily close the facilityfor renovation? o Yes • No 
If yes, how long will the facility be closed? _____________________ _ 
Are you going to renovate the facility if you do not geta license? • Yes 

15. Employment - (All applicants must complete either A or B section) 
(A) Existing Business 
How large is the current staff? (i.e. 1 full-time bartender) 
Number Full or Part-time · Position 

o No 

I p o . Jv\P.t-lf\<g&~ 

11 
p 
rJ 
0 

• 

• 

• 

D 

D 0 

Will you be retaining current staffing levels, expanding current staffing levels, or decreasing current staffing levels 
if you receive the license? Explain. _______________________ _ 

\;Sy..,:i·fl\-J\)\tl..'.)C-'1 &>06 TO ~-,;.~~C'X"~D \µ1:..-e..t:i\-~ \)) 8.f\\.--~ 

(B) New Business 
How large of a staff do you plan to have? (i.e. i full-time bartender) 
Number Full or Part-time Position 

0 fJ 

0 • 

0 • 

• D 

• • 



' ' 
16. Operating Statement - Attach a general operation statement outlining the proposed· mannef in which 
the business for which the license being proposed will be operated, including a schedule of the hours of 
operation, food services, crowd control, and use of facilities. 

17. Personal Statement- (App applicants must complete this requirement) 
Please describe how this business will enhance the City of Ann Arbor community. What special considerations 
should we take into account in evaluating your application? PLEASE LIMIT YOUR ANSWER TO 200 WORDS 
OR LESS. Please attach a separate sheet of paper if necessary. · 

I have read all of the above answers and they are true. I agree to provide all requested information and to fully cooperate 
with all City Service Areas requesting any and all additional infonnation provided in this application or any attachment 
thereto. Any changes that occur after the date of this application, applicant will notify the City Clerk, in writing, within 14-
days of such change. I understand that the falslficatlon of the information on this form or any false statements made 
during investigations may constitute grounds for dental of a license. 

. . 
I warrant that I am not disqualified lo receive a liquor license under the ordinances of the City of Pontiac or the laws of the 
State of Michigan. If granted a liquor license ! will not violate any federal or state laws or any ordinance of tile City of 
Pontiac in the conduct of business. 

Attested to: 

Date of Application Signature of Applicant 
(if applicant is a corporation, include title 
of signor) 

Name of person completing this 
fonn if not the applicant 



16) 
Fillmore 13 Brewery will continue to operate 7 days a week as follows: 

Monday: 3PM -10PM 
Tuesday: 11AM -11PM 
Wednesday: 11AM -11PM 
Thursday: 11AM -11PM 
Friday: 11AM - 12AM 
Saturday: 11AM -12AM 
Sunday: 12PM - 9PM 

We will utilize this license during all hours of operation paired with our extensive menu offering 
brick oven pizza, handmade sandwiches and house entrees. The DDA Liquor license will pair 
with our microbrewery to further service the many individuals who work in the area or seek 
entertainment in one of Pontiacs' many venues. 

17) 
Fillmore 13 Brewery will continue to be a destination point in Downtown Ponti_ac and 

this license will help us expand our vision and dedication to excellence by broadening our 
available products to greater client base. We ask that you view our progress over the last three 
years and see that we have become a part of the Pontiac community, as well as an attraction 
for residents of outlying cities to visit our rebuilding Downtown Area, The acquisition of this 
license will help us create an environment that not only satisfies indlviduals looking for 
excellent craft beer, but will now offer a full service restaurant, brewery and bar. 



ORDINANCE NO. #2366 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 

I. BISTRO RESTAURANTS 

( 1) An applicant for a liquo1· license may propose to utilize the license for purposes of the operation of 
a bistro. Dining, entertainment, or recreation may be the primary pmpose of the bistro. Unique and diverse 
venues wi.th specialized menus that attract new patronage are encouraged. 

(2) For purposes of this chapter, a 11bistro11 is defined as being a fixed food service establishment with 
interior seating that meets all of the following criteria: 

(a) The liquor license must be a redevelopment district or development district license, as defined 
in the Michigan Liquor Control Code, MCLA § 436.110 I et seq., as amended. 

(b) Interior seating (including bar seating) can be no less than 50 people and no greater than 150 
people. 

(c) Sidewalk Cafes and Outdoor Dining Patios as d~fined in Section 2.539 of the Pontiac Zoning 
Ordinance are permitted in establishments with Bistro Liquor Licenses, provided that the City 
determines that there is sufficient space on an adjacent public sidewalk. Rooftop seating does not 
qualify as seasonal sidewalk cafe seating. Alcohol may only be served to seated patrons in sidewalk 
seating areas. 

( d) Bar seating shall be limited to 25% or less of the interior seating. 

(e) The establishment shall close no later than 12:00AM. With the prior approval of City Council, 
an establishment may remain open to offor food service. 

(f) Sales of food shall total not less than 50% of the total revenue of the establishment. 
(g) The licensee must otherwise comply with all requirements of the City Code. 

(3) Bistro Restaurants may only be located in the C-2 Downtown Zoning District. 

(4) Bistro Restaurant liquor llcenses may not be transferred to other businesses, nor other addresses. 
A Bistro Restaurant liquor license may be transferred to a subsequent owner of the business originally 
granted the Bistro Restaurant liquor license if approved by the City Council, which shall use the criteria set 
forth in Section 8(a)-(h) to make such determination. 

(5) Prior to requesting approval by the City Council, a Bistro Restaurant shall obtain a Special 
Exception Pennit from the City Planning Commission. 

(6) Prior to operating a bistro, a licensee shall enter into a Development Agreement with the City 
setting forth all rehabilitation/restoration plans and operating requirements for the Bistro Restaurant. 
Failure to comply with the tenns and conditions of the Agreement shall be grounds for the City Council to 
recommend revocation of the license by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

(7) Grounds for Immediate Review. A bistro license holder may be subject to itmnediate review by the 



City Council if he or she is cited for three violations within one calendar year. When under review, the City 
Council may determine that the bistro license holder is no longer operating within the best interests of the 
city, and the City Council may recommend revocation of the bistro license to the Mid1igan Liquor Control 
Commission. 

(a) A violation includes any of the following: 

(i) Violations issued .from the Michiga11 Liquor Control Commission. 

a. Citations from the City. 

(ii) Citations issued from any other governmental body. 

(8) Approval. If the City Council is satisfied that the establishment or operation will provide a benefit 
to the City of Pontiac and constitute an asset to the community, it will adopt a resolution granting approval, 
subject to the satisfaction of any conditions stated in the resolution. The City Cotmcil shall consider the 
following nonexclusive list of criteria to assist in the detennination if the establishment will provide a 
benefit and be an asset to the community. 

(a) The applicant's demonstrated ability to fmance the rehabilitation/restoration as set forth in the 
Development Agreement. 

(b) The applicant's demonstrated ability to finance the operations of the proposed project. 

( c) The applicant's track record with the city, including respoi1ding to city and/or citizen concerns. 

( d) Whether the applicant has an adequate site plan to handle the bistro liquor license activities at 
the proposed establishment. · 

( e) Whether the applicant has adequate health and sanitary facilities at the proposed establishment. 

(t) Potential commun.ity benefits proposed by the applicant 

(g) The applicant's ability to employ city residents. 

(h) Whether the applicant has outstanding obligations to the city (i.e., property taxes, utilities, etc.). 
Applicant shall be automatically denied if applicant has any outstanding/past-due obligations to the 
city or other municipality or governmental agency. 

(9) Approval Procedures and Requirements; 
A. Submission & Initiation of Licensee Process. A property owner with business interest in 

an existing establishment, a possessory interest entitled to exclusive possession, 01· a 
contractual interest may submit to the City of Pontiac Planning Division an application 
requesting a Bistro Redevelopment Liquor .License. 

B. Submission of application. All requirements of the Bistro Redevelopment License 
Application and Special Exemption Application must be submitted to li1e Planning 
Division with all required information included to be considered complete, incomplete 
applications will not be reviewed. ·Applications must be submitted 45 days prior to the 
scheduled Planning Commission Meeting. 

C. Technical Review. Upon receipt of the Bistro License Application, and prior to the 
scheduled Planning Commission Special Exemption Review, the Planning Division must 



conduct a tedmkal r,:vi,:w of tho applkadon findings bnsi~d on the Grlteria outline nbove 
(' • • "( . (l \ lJ I •• • L" • 'j '7 ' r• t• (' r, • I .:'.,f.:cnon z~ a}- l;, as Vi~> as Uose cnrena oud11v~ m r lB ,:.,Ollmg Urtimmii::e wr ,:;pecmi 
Exemptio.n R:;1vJew, 

D. Sfeda~ .lii:;,,:,;mq;tk•ii. rmd Ap[,lkn'ikm Rcvi0'w, 'Upon the Planning Cormriis:;bn··s review 
of the proposed Bintn.1 Ri.i<leveJopment Liquor Lkem;e, the Plmrnhig Cornrnisslon will offex 
a recommendation to City Council for [),~nied or Approv~l of the lkeuse reque!,t. 

E. CH:y Ci,~rndI JLken:%• .U-1;•,1.kw, Upon n::ceipt ofthe Pfo:nni.ng Cornmissio.n 
recornmendation of t.hf:l proposi~d Bistro Redevelopment Liquor License. City Council 
will affirm that the proposed site complies with the City of Pontiac Zoning {,)rdi.nance a.nd 
seetion B(a)-01) of this ordirnmce, and vote to adopt a resolution to approve or deny the 
applicant's request for a Bistro Redevelopment Liquor License. 

Ayes: .Pietila, Taylor-Burks, Wi.rtE;r:man and Williams 
·No: None 
Ot{~friant,3 P'lwm,i:l. 
Councilwoman .Milkr was absent dw:ing the vot"'· 

l, Garland S. Doyle, lnierlm City Clerk of th,;-: City of Pontiac, lwreby cmtity that the foregoing is a tnw 
copy of the Ol'dinBni;;e passed by the City Cnun()il of the City of Pontiac at a regufar Connd! 1\ifeeting hdd 
in the City Council Chambers in said City on th,~ 61h day of August 2019. This Ordlm:mce f:1-iall be effi:'.ctive 
t,;n days after elate of gdoption by th:~ City Counoil. 

.· ., .. ...,,·· 

::~···::~v:~~;i.,.':~_\~;·:,,.,.':;_1 _r_c_1 _____________ _ 

Gat·land S. Doyle, Interim City Ck:rk 





•-CITll O :F J"O i'~-TIA,_ 
T),c:,nn11'"'°i"i11{"' "'lt' ,:· ·L•···}' !D,1"l·H,r]~-i1H ';'a·1'l'_c/1-'-y Jz' lfN ''l '''' 'fl'l]''11·11 (' _1_,.,...,..,1..J"!-11 , .. ,.:1 3.. 1,\ .. 1:...ia... vB. JL"1 ll ]1.,!!.1L: b !:-..Y•, -~ .. ,.;,. •,\._r./ .ll 1,o.,11n.~~ ' ~~~~ 

)p]Lp~J\Tfrnt,f,e DlVISl:ON 
(f/450 ·vinod1vardl 1\ve o l'()f·fflA .. {~~ TV11(~}1J{;i-\,.f>,,I ttl}t.-L?i 

TELitfl-1{,1[,rE: (2<!f$) 7:58-28{[0 

Vl:IHiJ GtJSTAFSSOi\!, PLi\Nf\!!NG 1Vitl,NA(·'H;:rf 
n-!1,·H)U(nrl Tisi~ OfFIOE OF DEPl/Tif lVl!4YOWi ,J,i}j\jf l::i/1\lS-rnSESSt!\ 

We are excited to present the City Council with a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions to convert the 

former Glenwood Plaza into mixed use retail, cannabls and light manufacturing facilities [see attached 
report]. !t ls a significant development project wlth many moving parts and City's internal, Planning 
Commission and City Council reviews to get the applicant at this point for City Council to review and 
approve the Zoning Map Amendrneni: with Conditions. 

The process began in mid-2019: 
July 20:1.9: Split/Combination Applications submitted 
August /st September 20:1.9: City Attorney 8t I worked with applicant and consultant to final 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement 
October 2019: City Council approve Lot Split/Combination 
December 2019: Planning Commission recommends approval ol Zoning iVlap Arnendment with 
Conditions to City Council 
January 2020: City Council to review and approve Glenwood Plaza Zoning Map Amendment \Nith 

Conditions 

Proposed Resolution and Conditiorm! Rezoning Agreement wm be submitted following meeting ·with 
Applicant, Monique and Tony Chubb. 

1 



d7451} WM,{hvr:ird Ave., PONTIAC. l'vilfCHIGAN .:!JJJ4:2 
TELE!lfH)NE: (:W1) 75;1 .. 2m10 

lvl,~ym· De.irdre Waiernum 

TO: 

VERi\! GUSTAf5SOM, PU;i\Hlllf\i(i l\,1Ai\lA(iEl1 
THIROIJGH THIE OFFKE Of DEPUTY MAYOi~ Jj.\Nt BJl;!.S,-DiSIESSA 

ZO!\l!hlG MAP' AJ\Jl!Ei\!DMEf,ll V\!!Th1 COI\JDITIOI\RS 
MANUEL OAV!f) FERR,&.IUOU) 
, 'R q S rs r.-r,,nA.io~ (';•, JPff: ! 0"\V t:61-]L'-'])•,_:·,c;:l_i)·J'j ~,. 1'}•)')' 
J t-.-2..,, • %]b~,,,~ ti UU - I,.}'" ~ l K.,« ~ H ~ j V -r •. ,, ? &..,IL. ,j,{.1,.J ll.L-= Oi Vk=o 

C-:l. U)tC!-U BU'Sii\11:SS TO M-1 UGHT iVlAI\HJfA(:nlfm\jt] 81. C-3 CO!fffm)OR 
COM!\fH:!Ui.:J:\ll. VV!TH (Oi\ll)mON:S 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 19-02 for the proposed conditional rezoning of parcel 
64-14-21-383-0:11 8t 012. The approximately 26 acre site is located on 7 81c 9 S. Glenwood Avenue, 
southeast of Perry Street. Manuel David Ferraiuo!o, the Applicant proposes a Zoning Map Amendment 
from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial and i\/1-1 Light Manufacturing with CH Conditional 
Rezoning and create a Medical Marihuana Overlay District [MMOD] which would allow ffiedical 
marihuana non-provisioning facilities to locate within the MMOD. According to the application, the 
Applicant proposes to convert the former Glenwood Plaza into mixed use retail, Medical Marihuana and 
light manufacturing facilities. At the December 18, 20:L9 meeting the Planning Commission 
recommended to City Council the approval of the Zoning Map Arnendrnent. 

If the rezoning with conditions are approved, the Applicant is required to obtain an approved Medica; 
Marihuana permit for each Medical IVlarihuana facility from the City and state of Michigan and complete 
a site plan per Section 6.204 to obtain preliminary and final site plan review for each phase of 
development from the Planning CommissiorL 

As noted above, the Applicant requests rezoning vvith conditions and establish a new MMOD on the 
subject site with the intention to convert the former Glenwood Plaza into mixed use retail, medical 
marihuana and light manufacturing facilities. A significant amount of buildings !n the approx. 20 acre 
proposed M-1 Ught !Vlanufacturing area will be renovated and improved to facilitate Medical Marihuana 
growers, processors and other non-provisioning medical marihuana facilities and construct new light 
rnanufacturing facilities. 

In the approx. 6 acre proposed C-3 Corridor Commercial development area, the Applicant plans to 
construct an anchor grocery store, farmer's market/event space, support business/retail center and 

1 



pot.~ntially a rn0c!kai m;3rihwm;:i provisioning center, rhe ZoHing fVl<1p i-\rnendrnen,· app!iG.riioo indudes 
conditions volunteered by dK: f',ppiicant, which are df::Scribed in greater detail in thi~; repor'i.. 

11'1 accot"d;::mce with S,::ci:lon 6.807 of the Cit.y Zoning Ordinance, the request for Condition21i Rezoning 
requlres a technical n'!view, Public Hearing and recornmendation by the Planning Comrnission, and final 
decision by Oty CoundL The Conditional Hezoning Agreernen:t wm be executed between the Appiicarr:: 
and City CouncH at the tirne Citv Cound! approves the Condl\:kma! Rezoning. 

EMisting Development Pattern 

The subject site, which is the former Glenwood Plaza received lot combination/lot split approval from die 
Planning commission to create two parcels on the east side of S. Glenwood Avenue. Both parcels have 

vehicular access from S. Glenwood Avenue. Land uses to the north, east, and south surrounding the site 
are predominately residential. Areas to the west are commerciai uses wedged between S. Glenwood 

Avenue and Perry Street and along the west side of Perry S1:reeL 

The subject site and abutting property to the west are zoned C-1 Local Business. Immediately to the 

north, east and south are zoned R-l One Family Dwelling. 

The City of Pontiac updated the City Master Pian in 2014. The Plan has an econornlc development focus 
A key goa! of the Master Plan is to fl take advantage of Pontiac's central location and affordability to 

attract new office, retail, commercial, and rnixed-use development/redevelopment to Pontiac that wmks 
to help recruit new econorny businesses and workers". 

Various land use categories are identified in the !\!laster Plan to support the City"s goals and preferred 
vision for future land development. The distribution of these future land use categories are embedded in 

the Master Plan as EJ<hlb;t 42 - Pontiac Future Land Use Map. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial, and Green Future Land Use. 

This zoning dlstrkt's stated goal is to provide flexibility that encourages the positive reuse of under

uti!lzed properties in strategic locations throughout the City. The Conditiona! Rezoning limits proposed 

uses and achieves the objectives of the Master Pian by eliminating a blighted, vacant site. 

The City of Pontiac City Council should consider "any of the following criteria [found in Section 6.804, A-J] 

that apply to the rezoning \Nith conditions app!ication in making findings, recommendations, and a 

decision" to amend the Official Zoning fVlap (see Section 6.804). 

Additionally1 the section also stipulates that the City of Pontiac City Council may also consider other 

factors or considerations that are applicable to the application, but are not listed among the ten criteria. 

To assist the City of Pontiac City Council in its evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the 

following findings of fact for your consideration. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

2 



L Consistency with the goals/ policies and objectives of the Moster P!Gn ond rmy su!HJ(eo plans. If 

conditions hove cfwnged since the IV/aster Pion was adoptert consiste;u:y with recent 
c.levelopment trends in the oreo shall he considered. 

As described in the Master Plan, this prnposed d1?velopm0nt project \'.:. consisteffi 
\Mith the gozils, policies, and objectlves oithe City's ~.,faster Plan. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physica'1 geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted fn the proposed zoning district 

The site ·was previously developed so it's geological, hydrological, and other environmental 
features were previously lost 

3. Evidence the Applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning, 

The Applicant did not provide evidence that they could develop the 26 acre property with 

only small business and personal service uses1 since it would not be in character with 
Glenwood Avenue and Perry Street commercial corridor and would not provide a reasonable 
return on investment 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, noture of use, 
traffic impe1cts1 oestheticsi infrastructure and potenUo! influence on property values, 

Planned development in the C-3 Corridor Commerdal District and !Vl-1 Light Manufacturing 
District with CR Conditional Rezoning limits select commercial and rnanufacturing uses Z!nd 
would be cornpatible with existing single family uses surrounding the site. Additionally, the 

planned commercial uses would be compatible to the commercial nature cf the S. Glenvvood 
Avenue and Perry Streefs development patterns, land suitability, aesthetics and should not 
affect property values. 

5. The capo city of the City1 s utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without comprornising the heolth, safety and welfare of the City. 

Existing City utilities and services capacity would be sufficient for the proposed use, 

6, The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district 

S. Glenwood Avenue is a Major Road. The proposed development wi!! not impact the ability 
of Glenwood Avenue and Perry Street to hand!e potential traffic. 

7, The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries o-f the rezoning with conditions are reasonable in relationship to 
surroundings and meet dimensional regulations in the C-3 and l\/1-1 zoning districts. 

8. ff a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district 

The Comlltional Rezoning request is much more appropriate than other zoning districts. 

3 



g, if the reque5t i5 for o specilic use1 te?.oning the land is considered to be mor2 appropriate than 
omending the list of permitted or special fond uses in the current zoning district to allow the use, 

Ii: vvoukl be inappropriate to arnend the existing C-1 Loca! Business district to permit a wide 
range of uses including large-scale retaii, service commerciol, office Bnd low-impact light 
manufacturing usf:s, Conditional Rezoning of the subject site is the rnost appropriate action 

to allow limited proposed uses within the C-3 and M-1 zoning districts, 

10, The requested rezoning will not creote cm isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood 
This Conditional Rezoning application would not create an incompatible C-3 and !VH. zoning 
district within the entire Glenwood /\venue corridor. 

The Applicant has volunteered conditions as part of their Conditional Rezoning Agreement [see 

attachrnent] that will restrict the uses developed on the subject site and we determined ~hat the 
Conditional Rezoning Agreement to be consistent with Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, l\!1ichigan Public /\ct 
:JJ.O of 2006, specifically Section 405. 

e) The Developer obtains all of the necessary permits from MDOT, Oa!dand County Road 

Commission, Water Resource Corn mission and the City of Pontiac, and anv other approval or 

permits necessary for site work construction approval. 

o The Developer shall as part of Phase I of the project remove the existing fa(_;:ade from the entire 

shopping center, instaH all necessary underground utilities and infrastructure, repair or replace 

entire roof, and install new perirneter fences and walls, Phase l shall be completed within sb< (6) 

to twelve {12) rnonths of receiving the necessarv permits, 

0 The Developer shall as part of Phase II comp!etely buildout no more than One Hundred 

Thousand {100,000) square feet of space for medical marijuana tenants until there is a grocery 

tenant that is minimum of Fifteen Thousand {15,000) square feet that has received a certificate 

of occupancy and b open to the public for business. The Developer shall also replace, rernove 

and or repair the entire asphalt parking lot Phase H shall be completed within sl)( (6) to twelve 

(12) months of receiving the necessarv permits, 

'l> The Developer shall as part of Phase Ill complete the interior build out of the remaining retail 

space to white bo)( standard. The Developer mav also elect to construct a new retail strip center, 

Phase m shall be completed within Si)( (6) to twelve (12) months of receiving the necessary 

permits. 

The City of Pontiac City Council must evaluate the request with these conditions in mind, It is important 

to note that the City cannot request or suggest modifications to these conditions. Per the Michigan 

Zoning Enabling Act, such conditions must be made voluntarily of the Applicant. If favorable 

consideration is given to the request, the City Attorney will review the Conditional Rezoning Agreernent 

for execution between the Applicant and City CoundL 

4 



ZMA 19-08 
Site Context 

1/15/2020 

., 



ZMA 19-08 
Future Land 1Use 

Entrepreneurial: 
Industrial, 
Commercial and 
Green 
Land Use Category 

1/15/2020 



ZMA 19-15 
Zoning District 

C-1 Local Business 

Intent: Mixed Use 
District to 
accommodate 
residential units and 
goods and service 
businesses that cater 
to the needs of the 
surrounding 
neighborhood. 

1/15/2020 



1/15/2020 

- ' 

/ 

/ 

,,, fl ~~~ .,.._ST, .,, ",~ 
/ I -••-// =t -:p=--::::- [ -, ,✓ ~ -.,,\ r~. 

/ \ ~ ~_;J . . -~~ ~ / \·. - --
' 1 ', ~ '. =- ",. : - . 

== ~~,. \~ ... C""'\ -,;:.---=A"·1, . :: ::::__35 
.,f; ...... ~ •. , ' ,,,,___ ...- __ #, -==--., =~ \ ·=-.. , . 

/ "":?-.::r- \ . . . 

er\.,. ~---=~ : ·-. 
~~~ --~I 

--t --~ ..__ .. ~-= ::~ ~~ 
·-

. ~-
-= 

= 

-t 

-

C 



' t I 
I 
'I 

Ii 
I! 

~ 

I 

l 
1l 
i 

.. 
~

r· '• Ii: ... + , ... • u ... ~ I [ J •·,..I 

' ' 

4 7 )l, ',\hnd• 11ard Avf,, Ponti~•., ill 18 :Jr.:_ 
·•: .:46 7582800 F: 1.4-S 7';8.2.821 

>at~: 07/03/201t1 

lr.sfrc,~.tr.,,:,. (.\:;1rt1lr.[1;i.\ O.N-lk:,tk;;-; WJd, 3pf)Tllj;,rJl'.l<, iC;:: Jr.,,.! t-.: WIJ'!: n;rJ • 1!-,:: ( F,C, Jf L,,nd l"F: .. :d ;-;,,a:c;1c 
f1lg1uiing aL l1Ja-=:t 3~ 1 ... ,.s ~•fi~ .. t:: th•! ,.·~;ularly scht:!tl.cli~d PJa1:n!)1" "~tH-:11n 1:;;;;1 1, "" ~l;nf .-. 1·,plit:Jt;r.1~~: f''l''.!i. 1:e ~..:-·1,pl'~~t b 
.ill r~:;pc:"IS vmh --U]'pd,i11.,: J,•,umo:11!'; rnth u:, sit~ pl:i..,, .P' •,i:,0:.11, '\1;•·evc1<... ft ,,u;,,,g ·:t~rl ,ill ::,h~d~il: -~,,: rppk.tlW'l i",,1 
,:,)O$i,·h:r:tfi,.)lj b\" fiP; riui,r,;\i;? 1...:(1r"1i.mi~...;i('U lll E:rind:tllC:" \~•irr Llh1 .. 1•r:-1r;lJ~",t~ ::~'1e..: .. "lt:•· "''fJ:h-:te ~~rl:("~1' ,,. i.:·1: 1 r"c1;,tv ,n.
n:;.V1·:V,1 r:·c~c~-!:- ,~. 

aot, ;\:~,::t <.1.)Lve: f 1 ·, ,, .. •; ,•.i 
. - ·•• · --- -------------

1------- ·-·---- - -- ---- --- --
-------------. ·----- --------· -- --- -- --

Cit·. /41Jl1Li:' H.1 
~,,,,. tv · ·4 1--. 
. '"'_'_.;__~_· ____ . ------

t 
I 

_T'_._-e2_-----···-· -~ ! 

Th,! s· t-_:·ct pr<)f.'r~.rr, is bo~ •''1, t ... : _131•:-,·;,,:,.:,o ... i; __ r,, ,r •': 1·• 3 ' [, \.l side ,,f ". i'"•" ;' '-i~ ___ . 
~er•r,.~,~·""' Car;~:.:~ .. -- .. ._ _ ·-n~ ~ H, Fu~·~:,.;;~•:.~. 

"• ,, P''""'' ·er• n, ., 'hp p .. ,..,.,_,,,.,, ... ,,)J , ... ,,. . .,.,j,; .. Ce,r,',;,~, •': r:ark Vl'ih t' , .. ,1:-: ,,i i./$c''i 
'-,r. ,d r.;.:,~.>\,::, I:~·•'~~ L • -• 1",l(.T"-••,"I V,1 l.ll.. ,y,_p..., .(\:i,;'.. ---•• -• ------···--•----

~·,. .. _ .... -- -·--------·-· 

~ 

I 
I 

r 



/1 
I 

f 
~ 
I· 

: 

Tht µ1·1;,.• )$ .... d vrjll h" li~<:t. t?r th•~ follri ving purp,s~ ';:,t.;v;;~.; ~t~ m11t:!1 ,~ • .r'. :.s pi>s~ib!c w,.,., 
•{llMogc11~:,h~ i,k~i'•:-he:;, :;itt: pLu::, wrift~ 1 dot.umen•~. dt:.J. 
2,!_1~~:.:!'t ,..-.,,~_t·: l;.:,.::; •. 1 tt) ;rt·.:j•e 2 ,.,;·~,, agr~ (. ,..ir:--:rn~rC.-3 p.~ii< th;,~t ·,,._,~1-~_:1ru~ fol"~ rt,i; r,~ J~~f. frorn ;i?!~I~ 
(,ir~.~t::_ry_ st,;,·.~. fr--r,t l.,,u:0° I ~:; i :Jrant, p,1r,-,r,hH~ provis,onir,-9 C;i'f,er, •~IC.,I •o light m:.11'uf=,.:b:"'P:; 1 m~di.-,.: 

rr,~.-jl,,J~fl~i ~~r~,.,ijr,g T.!•~':J1'l:_r· ~1)ti~:, r&p~ir etc.! 13e-a '1l~a,;.h=d r:,b:r~:•d ~,<:':~\;"•fl ::.t,lrj r:ir,'!.:_::J~ fo~\:•:ti 

~---- -- - -------
- .__ --- - -----·----------- ---·--- - - - -

s ~: th:. : _,., :,)Il •c _ r•• ! 

hc.:cfit ~1 t!:": am(•,: i :1,; ~ 

w :!for-: :wdJo·r ti':_ p,·: ~ 

. . . . ,. ··•·:·" . ........ 

~·----~ ,. 

.,. ;; ..... 

----------
~J:ii:{ i\.~~ ;· t r1;;r,(1 r t;nr ,;:; : .... ~ · 
, ~ ~? ·r·,: ~ .•. \1'h:-' 1:ucn rh,J. •I 
·,~:,il': ,;ll.i"' 1:-;~.-::or.·· hc, .. 1,.J 

-- - , 
_, . 

•,_ . 

' 

,. 
't ' 
n 

,l, 

' '1 
,1 ':I 

t• ... I,, .. .I •h _ 
:;,•·t--i~ •..; ,h 
;ty . ft i,. ., 

!'.\.C. 

c-.:---:,r· .. -·· 
/l;_ .,,. . ... ,.,_. 

: . ~' 
I l ' 

/ 

, .. 

• i 

ri Si!ia;;;-~·Jt:~61 '1wnei" 
~~=:!l~~,:~::a...~i. .... -r---=:- --- = ·-- ---.-•_..· • - __...,__,,,v • 

• ~me 1f.l~••'!••;:,:~ 
L,;1,11),) •• ,,t f.,ttsfo••d 

!~~ ~::.:.~d,;t:•;:l•;t•t-,.-,,-.,-,, -, .-,,-,.: -~,:~,/',~-;;-r,;,,;//;::•~•;,~O,:~/;::~i;/i~: :;;,:•;:~,JJ ~.•/:•;:; ,:~•,~;;,;~ i'.,'.;;,,\;:;~~t;t~; ','.'.'..''.;;:~•:.';;:. "•,_•., • • 
'· -.; ·,, r, 1 r1.•,·. •,- : ~ •·:.· • , ·,1 • 1 , • .1 lt:Jht-) .. ,1(1 ·"''' ,·,, ,..,~ ,.,L~, ·-r ,111):~1.• .... -: hc:'::l::.. t,e:"'t."'·\ .. ' , - ,.·, i: ~ 111;:•'• 

\f,J/•J'~'•,;•~':.;,-_ ~~~1/.J.:)J1" r•.fl 7r ,. '-:~ ·~ 
~ .... ,:.-•·;m'.~.t::c,, ::..,;,,.:" 



1/15/2020 

ZMA 19-08 ... Proposed Development Plan 

C. 



1/15/2020 

ZMA 19-08 - Development Images 



1/15/2020 

ZMA 19-08 - Development Images 

0 



1/15/2020 

ZMA 19-08 - Development Images 

0 



1/15/2020 

ZMA 19-08 - Development Images 



1/15/2020 

ZMA 19-08 - Development Images 

11 



Resolution 

ZMA 19-08 - Zoning Map Amendment 

Address: 7 & 9 S. Glenwood Avenue 

Parcel No: 64-14-21-383-011 & 012 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment for 7 & 9 S. Glenwood 

Avenue identified as Parcel Numbers. 64-14-21-383-011 & 012 from Manuel David Ferraiuolo; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 

forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 

aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 

Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 

relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, Public 

Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On December 18, 2019, a Public Hearing was held and in consideration of public opinion, the 

Planning Commission recommends City Council to approve the Zoning Map Amendment request for 7 & 
9 Glenwood Avenue approving the change from the current C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial and M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR Conditional Rezoning; and 

Now Therefore, Be ft Resolved, That the City of Pontiac City Council approve the Planning Commission 

recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment (ZMA 19-08) request for 7 & 9 Glenwood Avenue also 

known as Parcel Numbers 64-14-21-383-011 & 012, to amend the current site zoning C~l Local Business 

to C-3 Corridor Commercial and M-1 Light Manufacturing with CR.Conditional Zoning and create a 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District [MIVIOD] to allow medical marihuana provisioning and non 

provisioning non-provisioning facilities to locate within the M-1 Light Manufacturing zoned area of the 

siteMMOD. Additionally, the CR Conditional Rezoning requires the applicant may only occupy up one 

hundred thousand square feet of space for medical marihuana non-provisioning facilities until such time 

that grocery tenant that is a minimum of fifteen thousand square feet receives a certificate of 

occupancy and is open to the public for business. g is effective for a period not less than ti.venty years. 



CONDITIONAL REZONING AGREEMENT 

This Conditional Rezoning Agreement (the "Agreement") is made this 21st day of 

January, 2020, by and between the City of Pontiac, a Michigan City, with its offices located 

at 47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Michigan, 48342 (the "City"), and Rubicon Capital LLC, 

a Michigan Limited Liability Company, (the "Developer") with its principal offices located at 

_4234 Bald Mountain Rd, Auburn Hills, Michigan, 48326 ______ _ 

THE PARTIES RECITE THAT: 

WHEREAS, City of Pontiac exercising all of theirs powers pursuant to the City 

Charter; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer is a Michigan corporation organized and existing in 

good standing under and pursuant to the Business Corporation Act, 1972 PA 284, as 

amended, and exercising all of the powers provided therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer is looking to develop certain parcels of real property 

located within the City of Pontiac, specifically parcel numbers; 14-21-383-004, 14-21-383-

005, 14-21-383-006, 14-21-383-007, 14-28-126-047 ___ in Pontiac, 48326 which 

is currently zoned C-1 Local Business (as specifically listed and legally described on 

EXHIBIT A) (the "Property"), and desires to proceed with creating a mixed use 

development which would allow cannabis manufacturing and processing facilities; and 

1 



WHEREAS, under and pursuant to Section 405 of the Michigan Zoning Enabling 

Act, 2008 PA 110, as amended ( codified at MCL §125.3405 et seq), certain conditions 

voluntarily offered by the owner of land, including an agreement between the City and the 

Developer, may become a condition of rezoning of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission on December __ 18th_ 2019 held 

a Public Hearing reviewing the conditional rezoning application; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer on July 8, 2019, submitted an Application for a Zoning 

Map Amendment through way of a Conditional Rezoning (attached as EXHIBIT B), 

voluntarily offering, in writing, certain conditions to rezone the Property from C-1 Local 

Business, including, among other conditions, this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City, on December 18th _· 2019, held a Public Hearing on the 

request for Conditional Rezoning and proposed amendment to the City's Zoning Map; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission, on December 18th _, 2019, voted to 

recommend approval of the request for Conditional Rezoning and proposed amendment 

to the City's Zoning Map Ordinance based upon this Agreement and the attached 

Exhibits; and 

WHEREAS, the City Planning Commission, on December 18th _, 2019, voted to 

approve the request for Conditional Rezoning and adopted Ordinance No. ___ to 

amend the City's Zoning Map Ordinance based upon the conditions set forth in this 

Agreement and the attached Exhibits; and 

2 



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises 

hereinafter set forth, the City and the Developer agree as follows: 

1. THE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

a. Project Definition. The Developer agrees to redevelop the entire site over a 

number of phases to create a new age commerce park that will have a mix of 

uses from retail(grocery, potential provisioning center, fast casual restaurant, 

etc.) to light manufacturing tenants(medical marihuana grow and processing, 

robotic repair, etc.) 

b. Construct a retail strip center and grocery store to service the needs of the 

community and tenants of the site (the "Project") on the Property. The Project 

will commence after site plan approval is completed and approved by the 

City and the Planning Commission. 

c. The Project shall be based on the Developer's forthcoming Site Plan 

Approval Application Submittal, with revisions as necessary from City staff 

review for new construction. The zoning use district regulations for the 

Property shall be based upon the C-3 Corridor Commercial and M-1 Light 

Manufacturing for the purposes of allowing cannabis growing and processing 

facilities along with a mix of traditional users allowed under the C-3 and M-1 

zoning districts. 

2. TIMING 

a. Project Sequence. The City and the Developer agree that the following 

approvals and activities are conditions to this Agreement, and that the 

activities shall be completed in an expeditious manner and that each condition 

3 



requires the completion of all of the previous approvals and activity, and will 

not take place until all of the previous approvals and activities have been 

completed; 

i. The Developer obtains all of the necessary permits from MOOT, 

Oakland County Road Commission, Water Resource Commission and 

the City of Pontiac, and any other approval or permits necessary for 

site work construction approval. 

ii. The Developer shall as part of Phase I of the project remove the 

existing fac_;;ade from the entire shopping center, install all necessary 

underground utilities and infrastructure, repair or replace entire roof, 

and install new perimeter fences and walls. Phase I shall be completed 

within Six (6) to 12 (12) months of receiving the necessary permits. 

iii. The Developer shall as part of Phase II completely buildout no more 

than One Hundred Thousand (100,000) square feet of space for 

medical marijuana tenants until there is a grocery tenant that is 

minimum of Fifteen Thousand (15,000) square feet that has received 

a certificate of occupancy. The Developer shall also replace, remove 

and or repair the entire asphalt parking lot. Phase II shall be completed 

within Six (6) to 12 ( 12) months of receiving the necessary permits. 

iv. The Developer shall as part of Phase Ill complete the interior build out 

of the remaining retail space to white box standard. The Developer 

may also elect to construct a new retail strip center. Phase Ill shall be 

completed within Six (6) to 12 ( 12) months of receiving the necessary 

permits. 

4 



b. · Enforced Delay. In the event of enforced delay in the performance by the 

Developer of its obligations under this Agreement, specifically including, but 

not limited to, the obligations described in paragraph 2(a) above, due to 

unforeseeable causes beyond its control and without fault or negligence, 

including, but not restricted to, acts of God or of the public enemy; acts of the 

federal, state or county government; acts of the judiciary, including injunctions, 

temporary restraining orders and decrees; acts of the other party;· strikes or 

labor unrest; fires; floods; unstable soils; epidemics; environmental 

contamination; or severe weather; the time for performance of such 

obligations shall be extended by mutual agreement for the period of the 

enforced delays; provided, however, that the Developer shall, within ten (10) 

days after the beginning of such enforced delay, have first notified the City in 

writing of the causes thereof and requested an extension for the period of 

the enforced delay. The City's approval of an extension for enforced delay 

shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

3. DEFAULT 

a. Developer Performance. In the event that the Developer fails to obtain the 

necessary approvals set forth in Section 2(a)(i) above for the development, 

then, by written notice given by the City to the Developer within three (3) 

months following such failure by the Developer, the City may, at is option and 

within its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement. In the event that this 

Agreement is terminated by the City or the Developer fails to complete the 

5 



construction of the development and receive certificates of occupancy as set 

forth in Section 2(a)(iii) above; then, by written notice given by the City to the 

Developer within three (3) months following such failure by the Developer, the 

City Council may, at its option and within its sole discretion, declare the 

Property to revert back to the C1 - Local Business zoning and terminate the 

Site Plan Approval for the development. 

4. CHANGE IN USE. Any change to the use of the structure to a use other than what 

has been specified in this Agreement may be administratively approved by the City 

Planning, and Zoning Official and/or the Mayor if it meets the following standards: 

a. The change to the use would not increase by more than five percent (5%) any 

or all of the following characteristics of the property: "The City may include 

conditions such as:" the total number of parking spaces required or provided; 

or the expected traffic generation; and 

b. The use is allowed in the M1 and or C-3 zoning districts. Any change to the 

use of the structure other than what has been specified in this Agreement that 

does not meet the standards above shall be treated as a new application for 

the use and must be approved in accordance with the procedures and 

standards of the City's Zoning Ordinance, the Special Use Permit approval, a 

variance approval or for amendment or rezoning, as applicable. 

5. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, the exhibits attached hereto, if any, and 

the instruments which are to be executed in accordance with the requirements 

hereof set forth all the covenants, agreements, stipulations, promises, conditions, 

and understandings between the City and the Developer concerning the Project as 

of the date hereof, and there are no covenants, agreements, stipulations, promises, 
6 



conditions or understandings, either oral or written, between them other than as set 

forth herein. 

6. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the City and the Developer 

shall be defined solely by the expressed terms of this Agreement, including the 

implementing documents described or contemplated herein, and neither the 

cooperation of the parties hereunder nor anything expressly or implicitly contained 

herein shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership, limited or general, or 

joint venture between the City and the Developer, nor shall any party or their agent 

be deemed to be the agent or employee of any other party to this Agreement. 

7. MODIFICATION. This Agreement can be modified or amended only by a written 

instrument expressly referring hereto and executed by the City and the Developer. 

8. MICHIGAN LAW TO CONTROL. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of 

the parties hereunder shall be construed in accordance with Michigan law. 

9. DUE AUTHORIZATION. The City and the Developer each warrant and represent 

to the other that this Agreement and the terms and conditions thereof have been 

duly authorized and approved by, in the case of the City, its City Council and all 

other governmental agencies whose approval may be required as a precondition to 

the effectiveness hereof, in the case of the Authority by its members and all other 

applicable governmental agencies, and as to the Developer, by the members 

thereof, and that the persons who have executed this Agreement below have been 

duly authorized to do so. The parties hereto agree to provide such opinions of 

counsel as to the due authorization and binding effect of this Agreement and the 

collateral documents contemplated hereby as the other party shall reasonably 

request. 

7 



10. NO PERSONAL LIABILITY. The obligations hereunder of the City and the 

Developer shall constitute solely the obligations of the respective entities to be 

satisfied solely from their respective assets, and no officer, Board member, agent, 

employee or partner of any of said entities shall have any personal obligation, 

responsibility or liability for the performance of the terms of this Agreement. 

{Signature Page Follows} 

8 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on 

the date first set forth above. 

WITNESSED: 

Notary Public 

SIGNED: 

For: City of Pontiac 
By: 

For: City of Pontiac 
By: 

__________ County, ________________ _ 

Acting in _______ County, ________________ _ 

My Commission Expires _____________________ _ 

WITNESSED: 

Notary Public 

SIGNED: 

For: Rubicon Capital LLC 
By: Manuel Ferraiuolo 

__________ County, ________________ _ 

Acting in _______ County, ________________ _ 

My Commission Expires _____________________ _ 

9 



#10 
RESOLUTION 



Department of Building Safety & Pianning 
PLANNING DlVISIOl':r 

47450 Woodward Ave I PQNTIAC, MICHIGAN 483•12-5009 
TEl.EPHONl!~: 248.758.2300 I FAX: UB.758.2327 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO; 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT ANO CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAfSSON, PLANNII\IG MANAGER 
THROOUGH THE OFFICE IF DEPUTY MAYOR-JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

ZMA 19-12 RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ZONING MAP AMENDMENT WITH 
CONIDTIONS 
00 CESAR CHAVEZ LLC 
VACANT PROPERTY-CESAR CHAVEZ I PIN 64-14-18--351-017 
C-4 SUBURBAN COMMERCIAL TO C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 
PROPOSED MEDICAL MARIHUANA PROVISIONING CENTER 

JANUARY 9, 2020 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application [ZMA 19-12) for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] with 

conditions per Section 6.807 of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-18-351-017. The 
approx. 2.0 acre site is located on the east side of Cesar Chavez, south of West Road. 00 Cesar Chavez 
LLC, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-4 Suburban Commercial to C-3 Corridor Commercial. The 

rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is properly zoned. At 
the January 8, 2020 meeting the Planning Commission recommended to City Council the approval of this 
Zoning Map Amendment w ith Conditions. 

Summary 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-4 Suburban Commercial to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zon ing designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 61 Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363) 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and t he state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



IVlaster Plan 
According to the City's 2014 Ma~ter Plan Update any new economic prospects on which to build a 
sustainable destiny with new feta ii/commercial development is a major land use objective. It is with this 
spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan upc.late. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial 8i. Green mixed-use land use 
category that allows flexibility in use and form to encourage the use of vacant property in locations 
around the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to be catalysts for other positive re
investment in these neighborhoods and/or corridors by entrepreneur.s to sta1t businesses and create jobs 
in the process. 

Areas to the west, north and east are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 
Area to the south planned as Civic/Public, which is owned and operated by the Oakland County Water 
Resource Commission. 

The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within t he Master Plan's 
Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur regional commercial corridor economic 
developments in areas that allows flexibility to attract creative and motivated entrepreneurs and locate 
in the Medical Marihuana Overlay District described in Ordinance 2363- Medical Marihuana Zoning 
Ordinance. 

Medical IVlarihuana Overlay District 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the Cesar Chavez 
Medical Marihuana Overlay District. In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-4 Suburban 
Commercial to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoring district, the following Medical Marihuana uses; 
Provisioning Center, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilities may be located on this site, if all 
requirement of the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] are met and obtain a Medical 
Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

Existing Zoning Districts 
Properties to the west are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial. North, east and south of subject site are 
zoned C-4. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment provides a mix of commercial intensity areas, which 
implements the mix-use land use classification strategy found in the Pontiac Master Plan. 

Rezoning Criteria 
The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 
Commission may also consider other factors t hat are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

2 



Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the PlaMing ~ommission to utilize in making Its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies and obje tives of the Master Pion and any sub-area plans. lj" 
conditions have changed since the Master Pion was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site confom1s to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master Plan. The 
Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to develop and encourage adaptive re-use of 
vacant properties to allow various intensity of commercial uses located within specific areas 
and foster the economic development rebirth of the Cesar Chavez Corridor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district 

The site is currently vacant; so it's geological, hydrological, and other environmental features 
are present on the site and should be developed to preserve these City's natural resources. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive o reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not demonstrate an inability to receive a reasonable return on investment 
with the existing zoning 

4. Compatibility of all the poiential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property valLtes. 

The development of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is compatible with 
surrounding uses and in terms of land suitability, density, traffic impacts, aesthetics, and 
infrastructure. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed 
Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Cesar Chavez [BR 24) is a business route under the jurisdiction of the Michigan Department 
of Transportation. The proposed development will not impact the ability of Business Route 
[BR 24) to handle potential traffic. 

7, The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction .on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

3 



8. if o rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the land is considered to be more appropriate than 

amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 
It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-4 Suburban Commercial zoning 

district to allow a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center within the C-4 zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 

The proposed rezoning does not create an isolated zoned area and it proposes reasonable 
continuation of Corridor Commercial zoning to the north and south. 

ZMA 19-12 - Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 
• Parcel: 64-14-18-351-017 

Resolution 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions for a 
vacant property, identified as Parcel No. 64-1418-351-017 from 00 Cesar Chavez LLC for the rezoning 
of the aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City's 
Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 
forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 

aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, Public 
Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On January 8, 2020, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 
request for vacant property, approving the change from the current C-4 Suburban Commercial zoning 
district to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Conditions; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions (ZMA 19-12) request 
for vacant property, also known as PIN 64-14-18-351-017, to amend the current site zoning from C-4 
Suburban Commercial to C-1 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Conditions. 

4 



ZMA 19-12 Zoning Map Amendment 
PARCEL NO: 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

APPLICANT: 

CURRENT ZONING: 

PROPOSED ZONING: 

INTENDED USE: 

64-14-18-351-017 

Vacant 

00 Cesar Chavez LLC 

C-4 Suburban Commercial 

C-3 Corridor Commercial 

Medical Marihuana 
Provisioning Center 

1/15/2020 

-~ - ~~ ~ -- - -------=•~~ ~ 

. -~ 



Department of Building Safety & Pfanning 
PLANNING DIVISION 

47450 \\.'ood~i•erd .~\·e I PONTL\C, MlC'HlCAN 4334.2-500C 
TELEPHONE: 2.;:3.758 .:!800 I FAX: 2.!.8,75S.2:'l27 

Mayor Dtdrdre 1Varermafl 

TO: PONTIAC ?LANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: VERN GUST,:\FSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 
PLANNING DIVISION 

SUBJECT: ZMA19-:.".2 ZONING MAP AMENDM~NT I/I/IT~ r.ONIDTIONS 
00 CES.e,R CHAVEZ LLC 
VACANT PROPERTY-CESAR GlAVEZ I ~IN o4-14-18-3S1-017 
C-4 SUBURBAN COMMERCl/\1. TO C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 
PROPOSED MEDICAL MARU-:U.~NA PROVISIONING CENTER 

DATE: Ol:Ci::M BER "30, 2019 

The City of Ponti::1.c is in receipi: of application [ZMA. 19-12) for 3 Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] with 
condition:. per Section 6.307 of the Pontfac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-18-351-017. The 

approx. 2.0 acre site is loc3ted on the east side of Cesar Chavez, south of West Road. 00 Cesar Chavez 
LLC, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-4 Suburban Commercial to C-3 Corridor Comme,·cial. The 
rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is properly zoned. In 

accordance with Section 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Zoning Map Arnendment 
requires a technical review, Public Hearing, recommendation by the Planning Commission, and a final 

decision by City Council 

Summary 
1. The applicaDt ,·equests rezoning the subject site from C-4 Suburban Commercial to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Comrne1cial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistert with this future land use desigmition. 

3. The subject properi:y is compatible wid1 C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapte, 2, and Section 6 204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Manruana l icense from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning iVlap 

Amendment with Conditions. 

l 



Master Plan 

According to the City's 2014 Master Plan Update -any new economic prn~pe.,:ts on which to build a 

5ustainable destiny with new J"etail/commercial developrn:::nt is a major land use objective It is wic"i this 

spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subjer.t site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, c~1mrnw:ial 3. Gre:o:n mi'!<ed-use land use 

category that allows flexibility in us.: and form to encourage the us2 of vacant property in locations 

a round the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to bE: catalysts for tither positive re

investment in these neighborhoods and/or cor··idors by entrc•preneurs to start businesses and create Jobs 

in the process. 

Areas to the west, north and east are also planned as Entr~preneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 

Area to the south planned as Civic/Public, wl1ich is owned and operated by the Oc>kland County Water 

Resource Commission. 

The Zoning Map t rnendmcnt request complies with the reqL!irfments found within the Master Plan's 

Entrepreneurial District classifkation, which is to spur regional ,;ornmerdal corridor economic 

developments in areas that allows flexibility to attract creativ~ :md motivated entrepreneurs and loczte 
in the Medical Marihuana Ov,::rlay District described in Ordin,H1c~ ~363 - Medic2I iVlarihuana Zonmg 

Ordinance. 

Medical ~,farihuana Overl::iv District 

8ased on ou1 technical review of the proposed rezoning, the ~ubject 5it~l 1~ located in the Cesar Chavez 

Medical Marihua"la Overlay District. In consideration cf the proposer.I r'ez.oning from C-4 Suburban 

Commercial to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the following Medical Marihuana uses; 

Provisioning Center, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilitle~ rnay be located on this site, if all 

requirement of the Medic::il Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] are met and obtain a Medical 

Marihuana license from the Citv of Pontiac and the state. 

Existing Zoning Districcs 

Properties to the west are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial. Morth, east and south of subject site are 

zoned C-4. The proposed Zoning Map Amendment provides a mi;< of commercial intensity areas, which 

implements the mix-use land use classification strategy found in the Pontiac Master Plan. 

Rezoning Criteria 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J) that 

apply to the rezoning application in mal<ing findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 

Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates t hat the Planning 

Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 

among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 

findings of fact for your consideration. 

2 



Sccti:>n 6 804 provides r.:::view criteria for the Planning Commission to l1tilize in making i1s findings, 
r?0:omm1::11datioris, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criterio are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consist,rncy with the goofs, r-olic,es and objectivP.s of the M~1st~r Ph-.-r .:md any sub-ar-=a plans. If 
cooditions have changed $ince t/1e :Waster Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
d2velopment trends in th~ area s/wlJ be considered. 

The subject site conforms to th2 goals and objectives included in the Cit/s Master Plan. The 
Master Plan created Entrepreneur_ial districts to develop .;nd encourage adaptive re-use of 
vacant properties to allow v3rious intensity of commercial uses located within spe,:ific ar~as 

and foster the economic development rebirth of the Cesar Chavez Coaidor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is currently vacant; S•J it's geological, l1ydrological, ::ind other environmentz.l feature~ 

are present on the siti: and should be developed to preserve tht?sF.: City's natural resources. 

3. Evidence the appliconr connot receive a reasonable return en investment through developing l'f12 

property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the cu!'rent zoning. 
The applicant did not demonstra:e an inability to receiv1= a rea$onable return on investmeff~ 
with the existing wning. · 

-1-. Compatibility of o/1 the poumcial use' allowed in the propose'"} z.oning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impacts on the envir0nr11ent, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influenci on property values. 

The development of a Medic31 Mariliuana Provisioning Cent;,:r L, c.ompatible with 

suri-ounding uses anci in terms of lan,1 suitability, density: t r:; ffic impacts, a ~sthetics, and 
infrastruct,1re. 

5. The capacity of the Citv's utilities ond services SLt/ficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, .sajetv and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities have capacity and services w ill be sufficient to accornmodate the proposed 

Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

6. The capability of the street sys tern to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Cesar Chavez [BR 24) is a business route under the jurisdiction of the Michigan Department 
of Transportation. The proposed development wilJ not impact the ability of Business Route 

[BR 24] to handle potential t raffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be uble to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dirnensional requirernents. 

3 



8. If a rezoning is opproprwti!, the r'=qu2sted -zoning districr is considered tu be more appropriate 
from the City's per!pectiv2 than another zomng r/istrict. 

With all the previo•Js findings of fact, the bound.iries of th~ proposed C-3 zoning district are 

reasonable from thi: Cicy'~ perspective and cornpl11 with the v1s;on found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

9. If the rcquesr is for :i specific use, re::oning the fond is co_n.sidered to be more appropriate thon 
amending the list of permitted or speciol land uses in the currenr zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-4 Suburban Commercial zoning 

district to ollow a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center within the C-4 zoning district. 

10. The r,::quested rezoning will not creat2 an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an isolated zoned area and it proposes reasonable 
continuation of Corridor Conm,erdal zoning to tht: north and south. 

Recommendation 
Per the review requirements found in Section 6.804 'Jf the Zoning Ordinance and our findings, we suggest 
that the Planning Commission consider r~commending to City Council the request from 00 Cesar Chavez 

LLC to rezone Parcel Numbel" 64-14-1&-3S l-017 [application ZMA 19-12] from C-4 Suburban Commercial 
to C-3 Corridor Commercial with ·conditions 

4 



----------
Zm1jng ,Jl..'.'p Amendment Sit1 Assessment 

Ng, Po.:• of Deve:ioprnent : _T_B_D __ _ 
~ ...i CO CE3ar Chave= LLC I' ~i. , .. ::? 01 Ap,..,,ic'1nt _______ _ 

Cor,12.;\ at/for ;;ite (Name, T~l): 810-4,! -2567 

Aclifoss ;]. Zoning for Developrrent 64-14-18-351-Q ·] 7 

Pnposr:d Zoning Change: -~··J Corridor Comrr,ercial 

r-ropc~..}d ur.e. tv1edical h~arijuana F aciqties 

Adj.ac.;-r,t Propert~, Zoning ____ _ _ _ _ _ 

North: 

C-·'· Subl.!,·ban Cc .1ms ·,:i2.I 

Prnpor;al 1 Buff-,r r~1e2su1\:•:n;nts 

loc;;)tel'.l in c.1r outsid<:! ,,1r-.1 Ov&rlay Dis~;·ic~: ;:ZJ __ Ov~.rly Ara."' _D Non-Overf;;,y Area 

:, !·.:-cat9ci in Ove;faiy Dis-::r;~t, ',~'h:Jt is t.h(:l dis':rict?: Cesar Chavez 

Nc.,:,1·::.s• c·~•-,--,l r=-::c•'·,1~,· 1\J ~,,., .. · Alcott Elen1entary r,j,·'·~·-nrc· >1,000 f'• 
~t;: - t..U\ .. !f.J\~ ...... •l ·l· ,.,,., ••• --------- -- ... ,L.- ~ ...... ___ L 

~1"'·--,,,,·t P·r'' F-·•1·11···y· >,l.;·rn :..· North Kivi1anis Park [11et•-,,r1 ~:,• >500 li 
' ...... r::,, _,;::, !'I r'- ..!'J\... J. • l~l;. JI_, _ - ----- ·--- .,Jr.; 1...,--. ---·· 

. . The E:ternal Mother Tsi-nr:,le . >')nQ 
Ne.;rE>:~r Rel:g1c1n F'1·oi::,er ·;1: i\,,:or,v:.?: ' __ 01s,a11ce. ' - f; 

:,_1 ... A!cott Elem. Child Care O r.•- ,. _ >500 ft Near:3st Crild Care Fccili,y 1 21,,e. ___________ 1-ov::n.A:;. __ _ 

ZMA 19-12 



·:--, 
' i-1-\ \..., __ . 

IL 
-' 
II: 
a: 
~: 

"C 
> 
co -II} 

-a·• 
~ 

Zoned-C4 
Suburban Business 

Zoned-M1 

Light MFG 

I I 

('~ 
iS' 

<$) ..... a 
~~k 

s~o ..... 

248.99' 

:! 
1-0· 

t!1 
Zoned-C4 

Suburban Business 

,o~+, ~os ~,,O' . 77, 

Aft--~ 

"~ ...,_. 

~ 

Zoned-C3 
Corridor Commercial 

Parcel ID 1418351017 - 00000 Cesar Chavez Dr. 

0 
g: 

T3N, R10E, SEC 18 PART OF SW 1/4 OF SEC 18 BEG AT PT DIST N 01-52-03 W 1272.24 FT & S 
85-00-47 E 630.22 FT & S 04-59-13 W 300.00 FT FROM SW COR OF SEC 18, TH S 85-00-47 E 
248.99 FT, TH S 04-59-13 W 220.00 FT, TH S 36-11-40 W 331.78 FT TO NLY R/W UNE OF 
OAKLAND AVE, TH N 46-29-40 W 205.11 FT ALG SD NLY LI OF OAKLAND AVE TH N 17-29-06 E 
385.14 FT TO BEG 2.64 A 

Zoned-C4 
Suburban Business 

Zoned-C4 
Suburban Business 

II 

11.t,, 

Owner - 00 Cesar Chavez LLC 
Address - 1500 Golfside Ct. 
Flushing Ml 48433 



App8ication for Zoning Map 
Amendlment 

City of Pontiac 
Office of L nd U e ,id Strate ?IC Planning 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

Property/Project Address: . 
Vacant (See Legal Description.) Office Use Only 

Sidwell Number: 14-18-351-017 PF Number: V1.4 l1 - 1'"2..-
-----------

Date: July 26, 2019 

Instructions: Completed applications with appropriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Land Use and Strategic 
Planning at least 30 days prior to die regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting. Applications must be complete in 
a!l respects with supporting documents sucb as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the attached schedule. Incomplete applications will delay the 
review process. 

Applicant (please print or type) 

Name 00 Cesar Chavez LLC 
Address 1500 Golfside Court 
City Flushing 
State Michigan . 

ZIP Code 48433 

Telephone Main: 810-471-2567 j Cell: 810-471-2567 j Fax: 

E-Mail ,_ ·1 t , .... ,.:>11.;,1 Jl'\t:/l ll~yanvu.v1.;rn1-
) 1 / \ " - \ 

~ ~~ ~ ,/ '-1 Ptoject and et2gertv Informagon ..-,. ,'~V~$~ ¼Vt-L\ v · ~.i-l'V'"' 1:~ 
Name of Proposed Development: Unknown at this time. J ,:..__ ______ ,, 
The subject property is location at 14-18-351-017 on the NI S / E / W side of Cesar E. Chavez, Ave. 
between Kennett Road and _s_arll_s_ota_A_ve_. -----

The property is zoned: _c_-4 _______________ _ 

Proposed Zoning District: _c_-3 _______________ _ 

It is proposed that the property wm be used as: _P_ro_v_1s,_on_a_1 c_e_nt_e_r ------------

The subject property is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 

Please see attached legal description, and site plans. 



Property Owner Information 

Name 00 Cesar Chavez LLC 
Address 1500 Golfside Court 
City Flushing 
State Michigan 
ZIP Code 48433 
Telephone Main: 810-471-2567 I Cell: 810-471-2567 I Fa><: 

E-Mall rnarshshkreli 

Are you the X Owner ___ Agent/rep. of the owner ___ Other _________ _ 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (provide as much detail as possuble with 
photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc.). 
To construct a secured location for the purposes of operating a dispensery/provisional center. (See site plans.) 

Alternatively, retail development. 

Sate tbe reason for the Zoning Map Amendme111t, particularly the manner in which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare and/or the property rights of other persons located in the vicinity of the site. 
Said new construction will be a secure facility with 24 hour video surveillance and directly patched into the the 

Oal<land County Sheriff's Department, and any other required law enforcement agencies. The business will provide 

numerous construction jobs to complete a new building. The business once up and running will employee full time 

employees from the local area. The operation of the secure facility will provide considerable tax revenue, 

and continous employment opportunities. 

Signature of Owner Signature of Applicant 

State of Mtchlga11 . 
CountyoJ~61•M~':.~ 

On lhis_:i.lday of ?IN.--. , A. D., 20 ft . hefore me persona/Iv appeared tire c,bove nc,med person, who bel11g duly sworn, stoled he/site hns read 
1he fo1•egoing app&•(lfiOn, by him/he,· signed. and know thd confenls !hereof, and thar 1/te som,· Is ln1e o.f his/her 01,·n kno1v ,, t as to /he matters 
/herein s/ared l<J be 11pon 11rformc11io11 ,,nd belief.and sJJ as lo Jhosc mailers l,whc believes Ir to be /rue. 

,.. . . • Oi,.VIO ZAVATSK I C-:ei ... _.:c:.. 
f"otary ·!-'-'ubilc. Sta~ o"i Mlcl1igM / 

~oulity of G6mJsoe l.. 
MY 1.,-irnmlsslon E.'(1]11J$ ~ar. 1l!.i .. l025 

,lt:lht~ !n ;J,· ('tJUl'l'V ~f laf.-~~:- __ -- -



EXHIBIT A 

PARCEL 14-18-351-017 

PART OF THE SW Y.r OF SECTION 18, TJN, RlOE, CITY OF PONTIAC, OAKLAND 
COUNTY, MICHIGAN. DESCRIBED AS BEGINNING AT A POfNT LOCATED N 
01°52'03" W 1272.24 FT & S 85°00'47" E 630.22 FT & S 04°59' 13" W 300.00 FT FROM THE 
SW CORNER OF SAID SECTION 18, T3N, RlOE; TH S 85°00'47" E 248.99 FT; TH S 
04°59' 13" W 220.00 FT; TH S 36°11 '40" W 331.78 FT TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF
WAY LINE OF CESARE. CHAVEZ AVENUE; TH N 46°29'40'' W 205.11 FT ALONG SAJD 
RIGHT-OF-WAY; TH N 17°29106'' E 385.14FTTO TI-IE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
CONTAINING 2.64 ACRES. SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS & RESTRICTIONS OF RECORD, 
IF ANY. 



Additional statement to be added to zoning application As a condition to 
the rezoning, the proposed parcel 64-14-18:-351-017 owned by 00 
Cesar Chavez LLC will revert back to the current zoning district if a 
properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to the 
public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval 
Zoning Map Amendment 2019 That was approved and passed on April 
9th 2019 

Lesh Shkreli 
Owner 00 Cesar Chavez LLC 
12/30/2019 



#11 
RESOLUTION 



Department of Building Safety & Planning 
PLANNING DIVISION 

47450 W1>odward Av-: I PQrlTlAC, MICHIGAN 48342-5009 
TELEPHONE: 248.753.2800 I FAX: 248 7:58.2827 

Mayor Deirdre Watermau 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSOIIJ, PLANNING MAflJAGER 
TH ROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR JANE BAJS-DISESSA 

ZMA19-13 ZONING MAP AMENDMENT WITH CONDITIONS 
STEVEN ORI 
676 CESAR CHAVEZ I PIN 64-14-19-429-013 ' 
C-1 LOCAL BUSINESS TO C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 
PROPOSED MEDICAL MARIHUANA PROVISIONING CENTER 

JANUARY 9, 2020 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of application ZMA 19-13 for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning] with 
conditions per Sect[on· 6.807 of the Zoning Ordinance for parcel Number 64-14-19-429-013. The site is 
located on the east side of Cesar Chavez [Business Route 24], betweer W. Montcalm Street and 
Lounsburv Avenue. Steven Ori, the applicant requests a rezoning from C*1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 
Commercial. The rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is 
properly zoned. At the January 8, 2020 meeting the Planning Commission recommended to City Council 
the approval of this Zoning Map .A.mendment with Conditions. 

Summary 
1 The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If t he Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pont iac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5 The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

t he current zoning district if a properly l icensed cannabis faci lity is not operating and not open to 

t he public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



Master ffan 
According to the City's 2014 lvlaster Plan Update, Pontiac is staking a claim to a new destroy. It is a City 

with extraordinary assets and bright economic prospects on which co build a revised destiny with new 

retail/commercial development. It is with this spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Industrial, Commercial & Green land use category. The 

primary goal of this category is to provide flexibility that encourages diverse L1ses in the Cit'/, Areas to the 
north and south are also planned as EntrepreneL1rial: Industrial, Commercial & Green. Area to the east is 

planned as Traditional Neighborhood Residential, while Industrial/Manufacturing land use category is 
designated to the west. 

The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 
Entrepreneurial District classificat ion, which isto provide flexibility that encourages the adaptive re-use 
of properties around the City and located in the Medical Marih•Jana Overlay District described in 

Ordinance 2363 - Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance. 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the Cesar Chavez 
Medical Marihuana Overlay District. In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-1 Local Business to 
C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the following Medical Marihuana uses; Provisioning Center, 

Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilities can be located on t his site, if all Medical Marihuana 

buffer distance requirements are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac 
and the state. 

Existing Zoning Districts 
Properties to the north and south are zoned C-3 Corridor Comr,ercial and C-1 Loca1 Business. East of 

subject site is zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling. West of the site is zoned M l Light Manufacturing. The 
proposed Zoning Map Amendment provides a balance between various commercial zoned areas. 

Rezoning Criteria 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Map {Sect ion 6.804). Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 
Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 

recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

1. Consistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Plan and any sub-area plans. If 
conditions have changed since the Master Plan was adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall be considered. 

The subject site wi ll conform to the goals and objectives included in the City's Master Plan. 
The Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to redevelop and encourage adaptive re

use of properties to allow various intensity of commercial uses located within specific areas 
and foster the economic development rebirth of the Cesar Chavez Corridor. 

2 



2 Compatibility of the site's physical, ge-ological, hydrological and other environmental featwes 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site has been cleared so it 's geological, hydrological, and other environmental feature~ 
are no longer present on the site. 

S. Evidence the applicant" cannot' receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The existing site itself is not conducive to develop as a local business use. It is clear that the 
small parcel could not provide a rea~onable return on investment. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitabi/fty, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The development of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is compatible with uses 
allowed within the C-3 zoning district and should not negatively impact density, traffic or 
property values. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities does have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the 
proposed Medical IVlarihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, 
safety, and welfare. 

6. The capabilit,; of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Cesar Chavez [Business Route 24] is a Trunkllne owned by the Michigan Department of 
Transportation. The proposed development will not impact the ability of this state Trunkline 
and adjoining roads to handle potential traffic. 

7 The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning ts appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

9. If the request is for a specific use, rezoning the fond is considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or special land uses in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-1 Local Business zoning district with 
its primary goal to create settings for commercial development to allow a Medical Marihuana 
Provisioning Center, retail facilities within the C-1 zoning district. 

3 



10. The requested rezoning will noc create on isolated or incompatible zone:: in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible 'spot zone' within the area and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of corridor Commercial zoning tO the north and south. 

ZMA 19-13-Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 
Parcel: 64-14-19-429-013 

Resolution 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions for 676 
Cesar Chavez, identified as PIN 64-14-19-429-013 from Steven Ori for the rezoning of the 

aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City's 
Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 
forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 
aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 
Zoning Ordinance, and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, Public 
Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On January 81 2020, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 
Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 

request for 676 Cesar Chavez, approving the change from the current C-1 Local Business zoning district 
to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Conditions; and 

Now T/1erefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment w ith Conditions (ZMA 19-13) request for 

676 Cesar Chavez, also known as Parcel No. 64-14-19--429-013 to amend the current site zoning from C-1 
Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Conditions. 

4 



ZMA 19-13 Zoning Map Amendment 
PARCEL NO: 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

APPLICANT: 

CURRENT ZONING: 

PROPOSED ZONING: 

INTENDED USE: 

64-14-19-429-013 

676 Cesar Chavez 

Steven Ori 

C-1 local Business 

C-3 Corridor Commercial 

Medical Marihuana 
Provisioning Center 

- ~ . -

~-~ .......... _.._ _......._...,__,_ __ ____... ----~~-----c!L'-.-Oil....&.._ __ ---=-~~ ..... ,.____- -

1/15/2020 

1 'l 



ro: 

Oepartm~nt of Building Safety • ~ P!ao.1ing 
PLA! .. N!~G DIVTSIOf'I 

.£~ l!'ti \\'oodw~rj .\,re I l'(,,'1·• I.\~ Ml(.'1•!(, •, ' .£t~-n-;-01,n 
"fi,'Lf.1'H0i'E: 248.i•~ 2:lOO ! F.-\X: ...._;~3 lS.!7 

PON ilAC PLANNING CO!VIMISSlON 

FROM: Vi:RN Gus•1·c,FS50N, Pl.t.NNING M!.N~GER 

PLANNltJG DIVISION 

SUZJ'.:CT: 7ONING MAP AM~, iOM.Sl'iT WITH COl\iDiTiL.I .S 
STt:V~N ORI 

676 C!:SAR CHAVE~ I i='IN '3-4-14-13-429-0B 

C-1 I.OG\I. BUSll'JESS ro C-3 COR?.IDOR C.J~:MEr{C,AL 
?RO?O.'.iED 1\/1(:DICAL Ml!iRlMU,.t1.NA ::>R0\/1$10 ,!\JG O:NT:R 

DE.:F.\1BE 126, 2019 

Th•? Ge•; 0.r Po11~ia.:: i~ in receipt of 2.µr.riicatior ZMA i~~-13 f0:· a Zcning M.:::.:, A:r1e,,ciment [re"cr.'ng] •,-vi•~h 

cont:!iU,:-11s ;:ier S,::wco 6.207 cf th-= Zcning ,.)•dir.F.r.ce f,:;r parcel N·Jrr.01::r 5'1-1-.·l~,.(:.0-,jl~. The sit,::$ 

loc~t'=d on i,=: i:esi side of Cesc:r C~ave:: [Eusi,1,2ss P.oul:e 24], b':'.tVvE:er. 'N. M,;-,tc~1m Str2et ,3nd 
Lou,,~bury ~--✓en•;e Stev~n Ori, the ap~lii:2r,t requests a r22oning from C·l Loc:i Bl:~ir.es~ to C-3 Ccwrn:lor 

Con;m::rci;ii. T:1e rem 1ing would er sure 1:r~at th~ proposed iv1edic~l ,',1;:ir: 1 ·~ ·,a Provisioning Cente.' is 

prcp~riy wned. In acrnrda;~c<:! wit I· So::·ction 5 80:?. of th?. Ci<\' Zc'.'ling c, .. o·n·1rcS: tb::: r€quest f,7Jf :c:cnin5 
M"p ,~rr.err,Jment requires a technical re\/i?.:·W, Public H~:iring, rewrr.rn1:r11.".3ci0n '.:Jy th~ Planning 

Con;•rfr,~ion, ;:;nd a final deciskm by City Council. 

S•.•mmuy 
1. Th\: ;;~pl'.1:;..;nt rcquec,ts rei.oning t:·,e S1Jbject :;ite from C 1 :..c,cal Bi~sin:~..: ro C-.3 Comdc, 

C,:irnmerr:ial. 

1. ih~ fvlast~r PIM identities che subject :;itl?. as Entreprenewi31: lnd1.1:;•,i";~1, Com1"':'1trcial tL Gree;,. 

H1z proposed zoning df:signction is r:011sis.:ent with this furn,E la,·1rl •.1~e c!e!:;gnation. 

3 The ~ubjer.t property is compatible with C-3 zo;img standard~. 

4. If the Zoning Map A.mendment i:; approved, th~ applicant would b~ rer.;uir,::d t.J comply wit'. 

Ar'cicle 6, Cl~apter 2, and Section E.204 Sit(: Plan Review of the PiJntrac 'Z.:ining O--dinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to lh": Mi:dical NlarihuanB Zor·ing Ordinance [Ordinance 2.36.3] 

ar,'! met .-ind c.btain a Medical rvlarihuana licen:-i: from "he C:ty of Po11tiac a -,d the r,tai:e. 

5. Thi.: applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning d1at the r2zonr::d parcel will revert back to 

th •r.:urrent zoning dist, ict if a properly !icerised cann:;!:i,s facility is n:it operating and nor 0p•~n to 

r.hf: public within three ye2r:; frcm date of Pontiac Cir1 CJur·dl .;p .ir0val cfZ')ning Map 

Am~11dmel"t with Ccnditions. 

---· ······--· -----·--- --·-----------·· ------. -· ·-·--····•·- •-- -·-···-~ 
J. 



1 '1;:;ist~I" Pl::in 

A :cordirt7. :o t•-~ City's 2014 Mast-::~? 2.1 Upda~·-~, ,-1~r.ti2c i:: '-C~~ing ;_ d:,im tu;; ,ew de~.tiny It i~ a C,,v 

,•llt'i e:-:traor-:!innr'( assets ard bright i.::cor cn11c proi;pect,;,,:in wh1r:r1 t--; build ':I revisf'>d Cle!:tlny with new 
r :t:all, r:oi';•. c: C:i:il ,,1::,,,elop 'it::•·,t. fr s \Mth this ,)pi.lt tf•c.+ b ':moedcied ,:- ,he Master r!a-1 t..Jdat·: 

Th1:; subject site is .:2!,igr.a·c~.J as Entrepreneur.a l: lndLstri;,,I, C:Jmrrerc:al ,'!.I. S ·een l,rnd u,;~ (at:::g".' r;. ThP. 
p;-1mary er,al ._,f ihs categor; '= to rrovid€: fl1.:;.:ibil1t·1 th:':t i::rcourag1::s d·verlj;:• uses in t11e City. Areas to tr-e 
north :and Sv,1tl-- er:: ::i1.;c pl2:n,kd a: Emreprenei..ri,1:: lndu,Lricil, Ccrr11re:TiJ 81 Gr2en. /!,ea t,:. ti·,e ea:;t i., 
p!or.nec i::~ Tfcll:litional Meightiorhocd R~s1dentia: v,tiile lndustrial/M.3nufacturing 'and use: cati:;:gory i: 
dr?$1gnc~e,:i :·o t~1e '."'JC;St 

Tht: Zor.i:1:1 M;ip ,.l •l~ndm:::r.t ;-~qutst ,-.or;1plies w:th thP. ,~Quiremerts fourd v/tri 1 tr:,~ 'Vlaste:- Plan·~ 

Ent,·,:),c: 1Et:rial Distri1:t c!a!;;;ificatir.•n, which;$ to pr..:, ,ide f!e'{ibi!ity tha~ :.:!l(OU1 age:: tfi<: ad:>ptive r:::-u:;i: 

of pr,):J~:rti::.: ::ir-.::,und the City ano locat,?d in the~ Medica1 :'v!~•·1r.1.iano Ov-:rlay C,hrk~ ,i.:scr"be~ in 

Ordinanci:; 23'-j3 - r-..112dical Marihua,~a Zorii11~ O•dinar.ce. 

Meci:GI "-· ,rihu:::m1 ,; verl::v District 

3::o:;-:d .:,r; )'.r ti:ctin,c;I r~view of thi:.• p;0r;os'.: 1:' r'?M 1·i·:r, !he c'.L::?ject ~ite is 1,:-c~teJ i ·, t '2 Ce_;~r ci,,,,,e: 
M,~d cal 1'/ar;:1J;;,1·,a 0'1-:!rlay Distr;ct. In i:·Jn'..ii.' ff".:tion of ~he ;ropos,~d rE:zonir",g from C-::. i..1:,c.si Sv$:·,,.=::,s t,: 
C-3 Ce;r·Uc · Co•Ti11"1 ~rci"I zoring di~~ri::t, 1::1l? ·': low r,~ fvlec:,i:al Marihu·3,,a 11se:-: Pre •i~ioni,,g Center, 
Safety C().:1,-:,lia_1ce :;r.-:1 SE:(Uie ,ransp,:,ne,· fa; !i;ic: .:-a!· b':: lo,;a':~d en ,hi., sit?., if ;:-;II 1•i1~:lic::I !•.11,:rihu;;:,::; 

burf::r i:Ji::t,rc~ ,cr.;uirern2nts are m-=t -anC1 ~b• .. i1·; M2dica' :v1arihu:::na lii:en5e r:•:>1n t 1~e City d ?011tiac 

?Jnd t,~e .:t0,t~~-

~::<ding 7oriing Ohtciccs 
Prc,per.:il~:; •,: t!·••; ,,t)rth anci soutl·l ;Jr;: ::oned ,_ . .3 c,:irri6ur Ccrnm,~rc;al and C-.l 1_,,cnl 8u£in~ss. Ea5t of 

::;ubjecl ;;iti2 i-.; :or.ed R·l One Far~ily Dwelling \,Ve.st c,f thF: site is ::i:;r:ed 1\1·:i. Lig!,.: Manuf2cturing. The 
propose,:'. i..>Jni:.g 11/lap .1,mencment provh:i-::: c.. b,~la,,:::: between •,arious ccrnm2r:::al ;:oced are3s 

R-=?cnir.,!~ : .. :t~ ·f:-j 

The F:: nti::- Pl;,~. 1:ng Commission must cc ,,:,;:J,~r ;;in~, of 1he following criteria [sect:c,n n so.1 . .A.-J) that 
apply t.) i•h.-: ,.ncnir.g :1pplication in makir>g fir,t'.:ngs, ri.::commendatior.s, a~:d ; ded.frJn to arnend the 
Official t:c-n111g Map [Section 6.804]. Ar.ld:t1craliy, th1: ::;1.:ction .ilso stipl1lates th2~ c:1e Hmning 
Cor.im;s~i,:-,n rna•; alsr:, consider other facte«; tnat ::r~ applicable to the appii~:ition, but .3re roe listed 

arnong t:•e ten crit-=ria To assist in the cva u--ti,Jil 1:•f thesi: ara:l ottier crit•?r:2, w2 :'ff2:r the following 

firicii:.g.; of fai:t "or vour considerat\0,1. 

Sectlon 6.804 provides rP.view r.rit::rfa for ti1:~ Pla,ining Cornmis:;ion to utilize in 111aking i:s findings, 

rer.ornrnE:·nda'dons, and formulatir,::; a deci.;lon. Tl1e t1:.n stored cr/:erio are listed bek:w with our findings· 



' ... Co, s•stenq w,tfi tll~ gools. po/ide,; C'iC' object••,P~ ,,.,, rn~ Moster'":('){) 0'1Q "3fi\ S•Jb-:r<1 'J plans If 
,:onc!iw:;ns t:r.ve ,:h,:;ngl:fd ::fncr:: the .v:astt:r Pfr,n M7:.' aJopteJ, r-4t.~tercy w.t.' •·ecew 
ce·-~/oprr:ent trends i,; •he ,;r~11 sho/1 L;,2 con5id:'r-:1 

re S1Jbject ~1tE w1!, cont:i, r, to the g,::.;. ~ ~nd obje ··nv•;:S · rclt. 4 '?d :n r.-e C t'/ s :-.,1 Js",:'! Pl1;1 

Thr: Ma~ter Plar ,:,:::;;.ted Ent,·ei: re'1eu(';)l 1 ~tricts tr> re,je Je'.c :J ~ <"d encou,a·;-: :::da~;tivc !'":'.

use of pmi:ert:es to all<:Jw v~r·o:i-; 1,-ae;-,s.tv of :::inH:;~,-:ia l!S::5 loc3t-=d v.;tl'i1·, Si)c•:ifi ~ "' ,:as 
.,nd fost::::r th2 ecoronik dc 11e1cpm~n, --=~•rcn ".r tr~ '.:e~ar c1,::::1J':: Corrid•::,· 

2. Ctv,patibilir,1 of t11e site's pfiy51coi, geclogical, /lvdr0/cg1wl and ,:nt:er e1;v1r,?nme11to/ t~n :llff.S 

with i:he u:1:s p-~rmitt2,:/ in th1:: pr:...y;c.sed zonmg dt~trict. 
ThE ~it,~ lias t:'7e 1 cl~:w~d so it's gec'of,,Gil, hydrologka1, 2nc ,·,(·,er tf rwiu~rrr.er t.:.i foatur.~s 

ar: nc:, 10,ge f)'"t:::-::ot or: the 92. 

3 Evici2rce the appficanr car., ;o,· receiv;;. o r-::a~·,Jnc!;/e (,":£Urn ori .investment tw?t,1:,/1 dt ,,z1cpint;i ti1e 
pmp2tty 1,1ith one (1) or mare cf th.: us,:s p-;uriit·;:d ,.-nder th2 uHt2:1l' wmng. 

Tl'.e r-xi:::tir,g site itself is r:ot r.:one1ucivt: t,:, cl:;11~!00 ;~.,;::: 1oc;;i bu!:iress u~::- •ti:: c, :3r ti1;;1t tn=: 
.sm,1!1 µarcel .::ou!J not ;)rcv:de a r::asor,ot,lr:: return ,)n invi:stment. 

4. Compati,.:,fiti-' of oil the pot'eni',i.:l ti::€~ ,,'IG.\112"1 ;,1 rh:~ orct.•os-::d ::.oning dist;icr ,,,;.,1 :· .. 11 :-.:•t,1,di:-g 
:.:,:£~ m;d ~o,;in,· h ten,;s ?f lc,,d suitabilit;-', .-mpcr\':; .;r. ch2 e,wircnm,~nr. d;r,-~:ir; . ,: '." ·c: .;f Ls.:;-, 

/'rofff :: ir,',.,, ,r.;[, cre~thetics ,,,.,f··osi'"ucrur2 c ,'C. p,~r:nticl 1nf!1.1E1,c2 :?n proper;:, , •;/111::;. 
T'", ~ t ·:v-::lo~ ·n-;n~ r:i• :a l·Jll?dk:cJl M:?ri~t :r,, P,·c,v;:ior,ir.g C-2ntei' ·s ,:crnpat"bl2 \J1r'i JS~~. 
:i h:•N-2d \•1i(hin tf·: C-3 wning district :-rj !i-,cu:r.J 110: n'2gativelv impa::.t de11,•it~· 'l'rc"fic or' 
pr'w.~ r~y valu~~~ 

5. TIJP. .:upo,.•ity of i'hc: Cit;/s ,,;:f/ici-=s a,w ~er,.,,,. •s ,ufficienr r'J occ0mmoC:at2 the 1,sc:s pr'! ·r:1ii:u::d in 
t;;e rc,,t•e::te-1 district: wirhout co1:;prnmi,!,~9 the he-11th, sof~ty 1~·Nf vvelfare ,,J t.'·e Cit;, 

Th:: City':a ut,:itie:. fo<:s han cap;;cic'/ ~ .. 1d S-=r,ices wii1 be 5u;.=icio:nt to ac,:r;'·,r;•oc;:31:e the 
p~or;osed Me(Jic,1' M-~iihuana Provl~i~ri,·,g Ct.:nti:r and net compr,::mb, d1e G,:y',; h1:::alth, 
s~1"1:ty, and we!f;;i e. 

6. Th1;: rnpc1bifit•· of the street sym:m to safely and efjic:eM/)1 occommodCit:c rhe c::<p,:cted troffir.:: 
g::ni:r,;ied by uses permit!-rir.l in rhe re(:1.12:ored .:.oning district. 

c~so.- Chave;: [Bu,inE:ss F\ouV-:: 24) i~- <\ Trunk!in;; owned by the i•/1ichizzw D\::1:oartr,11::rit c.,f 
Tr2~spon::1t ion Th2 pmposed de11elc::-r,12nt will not impact th<= abiliiy 0; d• i~ srate Tr,mldine
;:;nd :::djoining ro;od;-: to h;,rndle pot.;:rtt:~: tr:;iffic. 

The l)Otmdo "ies of tile rP..quesred re:zonins r];:;tricr. are recscriable in re/atic~~,:-1ip t'c :;um,und.ings 
anr.1 c,;:nsrr:1ction on the !:ite wi!! be cble tn m,?at the dimensional r2gufc;rion': fer th:J ,·equested 
zonm;,· district. 

The i_,e,undaries of the rewning are rea$cnable in rr-::l;;tionship 'CO surmu:1di;1gs ,1nd c:oning 
r.i~tl'ic;t dirne.n.sional requirements. 

----- --~ - ------------- ----------- -
3 



.., !}' ,., re;.,:;ning ,,; approp,iate, tr.e r1:..quesre<1 :onin(? dis1rir.t :!: cm siduea to be r:iue i1porooriat? 
from tl'e Oty'~ 01:rspective rni;JIJ 0110t'1..::1 zoning disukt 

Wt~h ;ill the r:,re 1iov~ find,r;gs of fa..:t, tlie bcunca ri~s :;t the p;\;posed C-3 ion,n:;; c, ·t•ii:t re 
n~asonai.:.112 f?-c n the (ir,/:; p-::r-;p1:,:t'v1: ar.d omp y w th tre v;_:,:Cn 'ou11d ,., 1 he C.ty s t1.,,c:1,•,:r 
Plan. 

::i. !f ,he request i5 /or a SP-=cific t,s2 ezor:ir,g the iund i:; co,,sider.Jcl to be more a;,.oropriat.s th,~n 
amending tne list of p2f'7'ittcd- ,,r spec;a/ Jar.d uses in the current zoniog disrri.::t ro a!fo.,,,' th2 use 

It would t::i,-= inap;;i"opriElt"C" to amend ~hi=: z?nil";~ te.~;; fot C- ~~ L0c.::i, Susi,ie.s5 :oni~g c.istrict 'vvit11 
its prim;;;ry gr.1al tc ueate settings f,;r cor-11~·,erci-,I dEvel,Jprnent to alto¼ a 1\/ledic:,I Marihuan:;; 
Pr"0vis;c:-,ing !:e0t.::r, re-rall faciliti2s witl">in tr..1: •:-J zoring di~trict. 

10. Th,: requ:;st:d r.:zoning will ,~vc creot~ an isolated ,,r incor,"patible zonr:. :n r}·e neh1'1burhood. 

Th2 ::rc~os :c .-~;;:oning dces r;1)t cre:ito:: an ",:;•Jn,p<'.tiblt '.5pot wr,e' with'n tht"~ at"o?a ::'ld it 
p,·c;,posE ,; r:.:,:;::..::,·1al)f€• continu.;tion :.1 f co, ridor C1.'rnfT'-: ·ci2, ::anlr(i to the 10nh .1n :: sou ,h. 

Re-::omrnend;;;tio11 

Pert.he revie1N requ·,.t>ff~ ~t:i f,;-,:.ind in SE:,:t;o:, 6 804 of tre Zor,in~ Orainanc:e or1d our finding!:, Vv2 s:uggc::st 
::hat the ?1:•nnin;s Ccr,m·-;;";·on ,:or.,idi:r r,:::,:cmrni=ndir_; to ·:·w Cou:-:•:il th•:: reqt?~~·, fr~,rn Stev,~1; •Jri to 
rezon-= Pa,(2I i\lu,rbe,· v~-14-'.!.9-q29-0~.3 {zp:.:li,:.:.,ion 2.1·,lt.. l'.J-... 3. fr:,,,7 C-1 ,.'Jca1 E-u.::i,,es~ tc C-3 Corridcr 
t:0rnrn1:rr:i:;;1 'Nith cr:,;;,~,ti,:,:1~. 



_., . ;smt.:n Zon;ng Mao. Amendment -~L-.:::. - t 

Name of Deve!opll'ent Pu. 7, L'·;-=- .:-olutions 

Nam~ of Appliczl'Jt s ·even Ori_ 
. ? ~ :::-'~5 ~--14~ ... 

Cont.:.-:1: at/for site (Nam'::, fl!ll. ·--'-tLl vv - .... -r .... - -----------------
Address & Zoning for n c,velopin .. ,,'i:_t.176 Cesar E. Chavez Ave. 

Prooosed Zoni,,g Chang:: C--; L JCal Con1merc,al 

Propos~d Us,~: -~~1eclical ~i1a. ,;uana Fscihties 

Adjacent P,·o,'-E~/ Zentner 
..-. ~· - -----

North: C-•j Local C )IT~,1ar,.,i::.~l 

Sovh. -----------·--

------- -- ---

Li::~c.at~d ln or out<:idc: MM Over1-w Dis~r;ct: j,/i Ov\~riy Ar<.:a, .C~ J ilon-Ov~rli.:y Ari::a 

If focat.::d in Overt:1y Distria..t, ,,t-, ';:, t:1e district?: CeEar Cnavez 
' • ,,. t 0\~lh 'I ·-J "I t ~ . r· . , _, I J! mar> C er,1ent2ry 3~;,1col ::; ·1 000 

l' e&!'t::S ....,:,no,)1 .:.ac1lit·,1: N;.-,n,,s• D • 
.1 --:.; ···--- ·------- -- St3i'(:s: · .. ft 

Nearest R~i;g;ous Pron,:,.rt11. ~J:,.,, ... , f !/ A >hOO _ r-- 1 - " ___________ Dist<:,~ ,::,:-·__ v f~ 

Ne···r,: "1" ·"'h"ld .-. F ·1·t ~1 l\liA '500 ---• ::;:., '-' 1 • 1...,2.re act I y: 1' 2;rnc: ____________ r,,."t"' ~ ~,;;,• ,.,., • • .J ., .. , , ....... ____ n. 



Application for Zoning Map 
Amendment 

City of Pontiac 
..,r.... of Land Use nd 

47450 Woodward Ave, Pontiac, Ml 48342 
T: 248.758.2800 F: 248.758.2827 

Property/Project Addl'ess: 676 c E Ch A esar avez ve. Office Use Only 

Sidwell :\umber: PF Number· 

Date: 08/15/2019 

Instruction~: Completed applications with appl'opriate fee shall be submitted to the Office of Lund Use :,nd Strotegic 
Pln,ming at lea:,t 30 days prior to U1c l'cgul,1rly scheduled Planning Commis:.ion meeting. Applications must be complete iu 
oil respects with sL1pporting documents s1.1ch us site plan, property survey etc. Pla1u1ing staff will schedule the application for 
consideration by the Planning Commission in accordance with the llltoched schedule. Incomplete appl ications wi ll delay the 
review process, 

am~ligmt (RJeas1 Rtiat o[ !l~l 

Name Steven Ori 

Address 4905 Seasons Ct. 

City Troy 

State Michigan 

ZIP Code 48098 

Telephone Main: I Cell : 248-855-5443 I Fax: 

E-Mail steve@franksliquorstore.com 

et2i~ct 1ml PtQ~t!l IDfetmiltiQD 
Name of Proposed Development: Pure Life Solutions 

The subject property is location at 676 Cesar Chavez on the N / S / E / W side of East 
between w. Montcalm SI, and Kinney Rd. 

The property is zoned: C1 

Proposed Zoning District: C3 

ft is proposed that the property will be used as: Medical Marijuana Provisioning Center 

The subject property is legalJy described as follows (include sidwell numbers): 

T3N, R1 OE, Sec 19 Assessor's Plat No 5 Lot 37 Exe SWLY 27 



Property Owner Information 
] Name Yousef Antoo 
! Address -

44474 Bristol Circle 
City 'N6vi 

--~ 
State Michigan 

- -

-
ZIP Code 48377 
Telephone Main. I Cell: 616-729•5625 

-
J Fax 

E-Mail Antooyousef@gmall.com 

· Are you the X Owner __ Agent/rep. of the owner. __ Other _______ ...,__ __ 

The proposed will be us i?d for the following purpose (provide a!'l much dct:iil as possible with 
photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc.). 
Steven Ori Is applying for a Medical Marijuana Provisioning Center license at 676 Cesar E. Cha•,ez Ave. 

The current parcel is designated as a C1 classification and needs to be a C3 designation to meet_zoning 

compliance for Pontiac's Medical Marijuana zoning ordinance. Site plans are forthcoming Including the 
Provisioning Center Standard Operating Plan and design markups cf th~ proposed facility 

Sate the reason for the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner on which the City will 
benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be detrimental to the public 
welfare and/or the property righ~ of other persons located in the vicinity oi the site. 
This property is in the MMOD Cesar Chavez Overlay District. which is spec1fically zoned for Medical 

Mari]u6na licenses Including Provisioning Centers. The C-1 zones are Local Business Mixed Use District 

& C-3 zones are Corridor Commercial Mixed Use District, both within the same 111ixed use designation 

Changing the designation would be consistent with the overall MMOO overlay district application for MM 

facilities. 

.,ta,. o/ Mkhlffl" 
Ct1lllffY ef Onkland 

Signature of Applicant 

0 
.. ""'" .• ~ , D 10 '-t.r, mt -nonal/y a1,,-,r11d tlit abov, 11omtd p,non, who btlng duly ,worn, 11a1ed hel1/1t h<1.T read n Intl -v 'ti. , ____ • ,., " --• "'Yv ,,-- ,..-- ;,. L..J... h , 

IM /o,.;;;;;
1 

t1ppllr.t1Jl(m, hJ• lt/ml/wr .1/ptd. and know tlfl com;nfs 1f1er,of a,rd 1/1111 dr, Jami (1 riw of hWher awn o,r,..._ ac,p, a~ tu I r mat.tr.~ 

tlllffln ,rDltJd 10 h, up,-:tt Wor"1u/ton qnJ belief tJltti 10 11' to 1ho. " m<1ttm /td1hr ~lttlltl& II to btJ tr111. 

I 
I 

Noia,y Pllblk:. °'1klolld Corwy. MtcliiJlCIII 
AlyCoffllflw/011 faplrvi: __ 



ADDENDUM FOR APPLICAwff STEVrN ORI-PURE LIFE SOLUTIONS 

The proposed will be used for the following purpose (prnvide us much detail as possible 
with photographs, sketches, site plans, written documents, etc.). 

Steve Ori is applying for a Medical Marijuana Provisioning Center license at 676 Ct:sar E. 
Chavez Ave. The current parcel is designated as a C-1 classification and needs to be a C-
3 designation to meet zoning compliance for Pontiac's Medical Marijuana zoning ordinance. 
Site plans are forthcoming including the Provisioning Center Standard Operating Plan and 
design markup·s of the proposed facility. 

State the reason fo1· the Zoning Map Amendment, particularly the manner in whkh the 
City will benefit if the amendment is approved and why such change will not be 
detrimentaJ to the public welfare and/or the property rights of other persons locateol in the 
vicinity of the site. 

This property is in the MMOD Cesar Chavez Overlay District, which is specifically zoned for 
Medical Marijuana licenses including Provisioning Centers. The C-1 zones arc Local Business 
Mixed-Use District and C-3 zones are Corridor Commercial Mixed-Use District, both within the 
same mixed-use designation. Changing the designation of 676 Cesar Chavez Ave. would be 
consistent wiil1 the overall MMOD overlay district application for Medical Marijuana facilities. 
It is 2 parcels away from current C-3 zoned parcels and would be consistent with the neighboring 
retail commercial businesses on the eastern side of Cesar Chavez Ave, We don't see any 
detriment to the public welfare or the infringement of neighboring property rights as only 6 
parcels of the commercial strip facing Cesar Chavez are C-1 zoned and the remaining are C-3 
zoned. 

In addition to the direct benefit from changing the zoning designation, applicant is interested in 
purchasing the property next door and demolish it for additional parking. This adds value to the 
676 Cesar Chavez development and repurpose a property to support a new business venture. 

As u i.:1mditior. to tl11;" rczoni ng. the rt:7.oni:d pare~[ L)l' prope11) \\ i 11 revert bad-: tc, thi: cu1-rcnt 
z1rning disri-il:t ii' ;,1 proper!) liL-e1!s~d c,mnabis foci lit:, is 111.)l op~rnttng ,,nd nut l)pt.·n to tht: publie 
vvithin thr1:(' y~ars from dat~ u1· P1.rnliac City (\nincil appl'1.)H11 Zoning Map 1\m..:ndment. 



/ 
/ , 

/ 

/ 

I 
/ ,, 

I 

' 
' 

' ' 

/ 

/ 

I 

' / 

' ' ' 
I 

' ' 
,' 

'< 

' ' /' 

' 

Exhibit A 
P Ar~CEL S:<ETCl'-i 

/ 

' 

' 

/ 
/ 

I 

/ ,, 
I ' 

/ 

, 

' ' ' ' '<'~o,. ' 
,<-1-'.i-, 

P,; 

/ ' ' ,, ' 
' '• 
' ' ' 

x' ' ,;,· 
' ~ ' 

' ' / ' '-

' 
/ 

' ' ' 
I 

/ ,,, 
' 

' ' ' 

/ /' 

', 

' 

' ' 

' ' 

' ' 

' 
' 

' 
' ' / 

/ 

' ' / 

/ 

/ 

/ 

'\ / 

/ ' 
' 

/ 

"" ' ' ' / 
I ' 

/ ' 
/ 

/ 
/ 

' ' I• 
/ 

' 
' 

' ' 

'/ 

, 

/ 

' 
>, 

' ) 
/ 

·/ 

/ 

' 

( 

/ 
/ 

/ 

' ' ' ' 

' ' 

' 

/ 
/ 

' ' ' 

)/ 

/ 

/ 

I 

'y 

; 

/ 

' 

' ' .,.-
' ' ' " ' ' ' 

' ' ' 
' ' ' ' 

' 

((NF 
ENGINEERS 

NOWAK & FR.AUS ENGINEERS 
46777 WOODWARD AVE. 
PONTIAC, Ml 48342·5032 

TEL (248) 332·7931 
FAX. (248) 332·8257 

' 

/ 

' ' 
' ' ' 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

/ 

LANO BEING PART Of SECTION I 9, TOl',III 3 NORTH, RANGE 10 
EAST, CITY OF' PONTIAC, OAKI.AND COUNTY, MICHIGAN BE'.ING MORC 
PAR11CULARL Y DESCRIBED AS: 

LOT 37, EXCEPT THE SOU1H~STERLY 27 FEET OF • ASSESSOR'S 
PLAT NO. 5", AS RECORDED IN Ll8ER IA, PAGE 5 OF PLAlS, 
OAKLAND COUIIITY ~CORDS 

SCALE 

l" • ~0' 

DATE DRAWN 

12-30-2019 AJE 
JO~ NO. SH.HT 

L4SS l of I 

/ 

/ 





LOtJt.lSBUR\' ;>VE. 

9/5/2019 8:24:52 PM 

I ~ 
l 
• 

PROPERTY REZONING SUBMITTAL 
FOR LOTS 36-38 FROM C1 TO C3 
PURE LIFE SOLUTIONS 
MEDICAL MARIHUANA 
PROVISIONING CENTER 
676 Cesar Chavez Blvd. 
Pontiac, Ml 

\ ~. 
- ::'7 1 

I 

l -, 
,· \ 

1. ,,, . 
I 

DUMPSTER OETAll 
••• = 1' 1 

DRAWING INDE>'c 

.... CUl'lf,-~-siri.ai. .... - , .... ....,,..,....._ 

c.,,~ i~ \.• ..,-1• ,•r 

-1~ 
~ I 

!;._ LOCATION MAP 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION· 
~T~,,,;:r.~.;.,-_.-~ .... ~ ... ~«c.•,..,__,..., t.••-~~ ... •lt't~•l.:l.a• ..... Jl'lli 

t'Wt:ll'"'>llli,,;O,.~~,,,.~ 
r- .. • .. ,r~..._t..=-1 

w,l,;f•'-'<--Pt•..-~~Trlll'Wf1l ....... 
~-.... ..,.._~o...-.rao-1 

L!n.- .U:lil'-ll ... &:,o.~.,,..JJJ•--~ 
~~--'""''""~~ ........ , 

PARKING REQUIRED: 
~ __..,G.._~ ...... ~ 
~~It,~ 

' 

VIGNE 
... ,.If, ........ ~ 

lC'G.:."'-"_-..~r,'_,~ 
-3"<.!1'9?:~!,u; 
6;.£'.0..rtE!.Dkll.L'!I u•:.:.c 

~:win:~ 

&.~i.._~.J 

SITE l'I.Afi 
8. C,,t,TP. 

.. , ... 
Al 



✓ 

N ( ":'\ 

9/5/20196;25-11 PM 

.... 

_ _ L 

J 

1-• 
I 

,-

__ ,a__ - --- - _J ~ u.. 

FLOOR PLAN 
SCAL€: !/'r ; l'--0" 

- . r- !: ... .. -,r~-.----"•-

I 

----, 
{ 
I 

' I 
, •· ~l~ " .... 

,- T 

I 

~~~----.==J-r 

WALL LEGEND: 

VIGNE 
4t«JG~,IQ-0.;,~'1;. 
:U'l"l€~&AS1 
~~(-+.1.;.,-,t.uca:»• 

A-OCR Pl.AH 

A2 



I ~~ 
1 

I 

l 

n r 
C7 r 
J 

-
--------------- l 

East Elevation 
SCALE: 1/4" - l'-0" 

South Elevation 
9:Alf': I/~•= l'-0" 

9/5/2019 8:25:20 PM 

- ---

' 
I 

I 

I 

I I 
j; 

I Cl I 
West Elevation 
SO>J..E: irr ·= 1 •-a· 

':M-;,,e,;10 

North Elevation 
SCALE: 1/•• = 1•-0• 

---

VIGNE 
._-,L ii,-. -

•10QO~!t.J>"1'f. 
i"\.'f7i_i:.(.i,,Jf 
~~t. ... ts &11.a..-. 

"'' 

El£VAT!ONS 

A3 



..... -. 
9- ENTRY ~06BY (P CD BtJO TENDERS 

V. 

N, FLOOR PLAN 
SCAlE;lJ~ s l'-<J' 

9/512019 8:2Sc31 PM 

;--; 
' ' ' ' ' ' l __ __ J 

LOADING BAY 

101 
111 

DISPOSN..IUH 

l-

~-..-:snm•~•~WID1 
... CIJllrN,c ~.-.-=--n,~AQJ'l"t 

lllt MUNJMa '1MO"OOl5 mt ,arqua.m 
~M.J.-ll151'0'181,10~C1'18151a11 
OFJIG!ACIII ~ ff II#( '81!1:.0. --""-~w.s:l't-..U.ICTK ..... Qlll\.U5ffl) 
.-:,:: ~ ....a.,no!IIM~ 

...,..,aea........,_,...-.."°•OCSIIC:dlD 
MCJNilLU,MS.Mi'l,l.ulUO&lwt.'lmqwan'Y 
con.:1SD.M!:SIHJIIHiU.AJlmCS. 

Al ~/CIJ$ll:llllilt .,._.u'l't.-a.• 
'41SUDNl'l!l~ON- ~SlM~ 
~ 

-8 

.. 

LEGEND: 

.. ·--• OOOOOUZWI 

c., cc.c-

"" ..., --~ ~.s:EJISOll 

tKi .,,. .. .liTU1.r..oc. 

..,..,........, 
~ ~AAIIDll'l'OII 

,_ ~CCtTAt. 'IIIOf:C f'.,E.CICaiCJU. 

- SE=w£.O~~"lf_ 

c,: l ~CUA-..:;CltialCH,S 

a, =oo-.. 

IC ~IC ~t.00. 

11G sr:tallT"'C.-.... 0 .. --·-.. a:o,CTm./lCt1M 

LMTIDN:a» 

'l)lll'.f'iJIQ.M'V~Cll"!IIAttAa~G&OW 
f:1111CIUT'r<Vi$$ C UCf>l8'.E NliO PflOCUiSIHO f&Call'"r 
"'1AISEAO UC:C:-s.£0• ntt StATi.Olf-~....., 
~101.0CM..~ 

TIUS ~ IS 'U.USTb,.TIWE• --~ CCIOIIQm;.Tf:Vlffll 
NIDGCFEtTO so::uNIYS'n'TUI ""'l:HDCIR"$ ~ 

Nt0$P£QFICA1'JOla. 

UOO<S< .,,,., 

~~1 I 
VIGNE 
;;;;:.. 

___ ,,.,,;:;;;;;; 

•1,c.J~-"'f_ 
~m!AST 
aoownno,klt..Ltw ... 

SM.>Gt'SlS .......... - .... t, 
,____ ~-

= 

...,.,,, 
(/) 

z <Ca: 0 z UJ 
j:: <C I-

::> :::>z 
....I ,!:.~ 
0 a::(!) 
U) <C z 
w ::az _, o 

~ 
> .. ~ 
.c;::. 
0 -
- 0 Cl m ., "" 
0 C: uo 
~ Q_ 
..... 
<D 

SECURITY 
AND WASTE 

Pl.AN 

A4 

• 
l 



ENTRY LOOBY 

FLOOR PLAN 
5CAl.E:iW-1'-0• 

9/!;/2019 825:43 PM 

--, 

/ 

r ---
' : 
I 
I 
I L ___ .. 

LOADING BAY 

ur ~ ~ Ar[ 1 _1;.lJ~!!J:t -[!!] ~~ ,_ 

• 

UC. 1,..u.~ 
, ... ,o r ..;.-11111;-io, 

, .. ot1' r0.6 
1,,,.,"3 t>..t:HTIC!t rap"' .. _11t,1rt:.. 

r,::-c 
tit tU..lt.i"tll' 

_,...., 
11 .. r..!. 
I f;TN<C 

VIGNE 
.,mi,~....,t: 
5,tJl'iEJ5>£.0T 
--~10..u_ ...... 

, . .. 
> ., _ 
.r::;:. u . 
~ <> ., .. 
a').:
., C 
(.J 0 
<D a.. .... 
<!) 

UfESAffTY 
Pl.AN 

AS 



#12 
RESOLUTION 



Departmenrt of Building Safety & Plalilning 
PLANNING DIVISION 

474:30 Wi,odwnrJ Ave I POtrTJAC, MfC'HIGMI 48342-5009 
TELEA'HON:;:: ?48.753.7.800 I FA.X: H8.758.2827 

Mayor Deirdre W,,tenuau 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: VERl\l GUSTAFSSON, PLANNING MANAGER 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

ZMA 19-14 RESOULTION TO APPROVE ZONING MAP AMENDMENT 
WITH CONDITIONS 
RAMON DENT 
114 W. WALTON BLVD I PIN 64-14-08-380-027 
C-1 LOCAL BUSINESS TO C-3 CORRIDOR COMMERCIAL 
PROPOSED MEDICAL MARIHUANA PROVISIONING CENTER 

JANUARY 9, 2020 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of applic:ation [ZfvlA 19-14] for a Zoning Map Amendment [rezoning) with 

conditions per Section 6.807 of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-08-380-027. The 
site is located on the "north side of W. Walton Blvd, between Hollywood Avenlle and Carlisle Street. 

Ramon Dent, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial. The 
rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is properly zoned. At 
the January 8, 2020 meeting the Planning Commission recommended to City Council the approval of this 
Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions. 

Summary 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2 The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval ofZoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



Master Plan 

According to the City'.s 2014 Master Plan Update it i$ a City with extraordinary a:;Jets and bright, new 
economic prospects on which to build a revised destiny with new ret~il/commercial development. It is 

with this spirit that is embedded in the Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green mixed-use land use 

category that allows flexiuility in use and form to encourage the posit ive re-use of marginal commercial 
property locations around the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to be catalysts for 

other positive re-investment in the Walton Boulevard Corridor by entrepreneurs to start businesses and 
create jobs in the process. 

Areas to the east and west are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial & Green. Area to 
the north is planned as Traditional Neighborhood Residential, while Entrepreneurial: industrial, 
Commercial & Green land use category is designated to tne south. 

The Zoning Map Amendment request complies with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 

Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur neighborhood economic development in areas to 
allow flexibility to attract creative and motivated entrepreneurs and located in the Medical Marihuana 
Overlay District described in Ordinance 2363 - Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance. 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the Walton 
Boulevard Medical Marlhuana Overlay District. In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-1 Local 
Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the following Medical Marihuana uses; Provisioning 

Center, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilit ies may be located on t his site, if all requirement 
of the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana 

license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

Existing Zoning Districts 
Properties to the east and west are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial and C-1 Local Business. I\Jorth of 
subject site is zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling. South of the site is zoned IVl-1 Light Manufacturing. The 

proposed Zoning Map Amendment provides a mix between various commercial zoned areas. 

Rezoning Criteria 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A-JI that 
apply t o the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 

Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria , To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 

findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formLilating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below with our findings: 

2 



1. Co,1sistency with the goals, policies and objectives of the Master Pion and any sub-area plafls. Jf 
conditions have changed since the Moster Pfan wos adopted, consistency with recent 
development trends in the area shall b,? considered. 

The subJect site conforms to the goals and objectives included in the City's Ma.sti::?r Flan. The 
Master Plan created Entrepreneurial distiicts to redevelop and encourage adaptive re-use of 
properties to allow various intensity of commercial uses located within specific areas and 
foster the rebirth of the Walton Blvd Corridor. 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological and other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is occupied by a cornmercial use; so it's geological, hydrological, and other 
environmental features are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (1) or more of the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not demonstrate an inability to receive a reasonable return on in~estment 
with the existing zoning. 

4. Compatibility of oil the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitobiliry, impacts on the environment, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property values. 

The development of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is compatible with 
surrounding uses and in terms of land suitability, impact on the environment, density, traffic 

impacts, aesthetics, and infrastructure. 

S. The capacity of the City's utilities and services sufficient io accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's utilities have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed 
Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's health, safety, and 

welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Walton Boulevard is a Major Road under the jurisdiction of the City of Pontiac. The proposed 
development will not impact the ability ofthis Major Road and adjoining roads to handle 

potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 

district dimensional requirements. 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 

Plan. 

3 



9 If the request is for o specific use/ rezoning the lund ,s considered to be more appropriate than 
amending the list of permitted or.c;pecial land use~ in the current zoning district to allow the use. 

• It would be inappropriate to amend the zoning text for C-1 Local BusinEss zoning district to 
allow a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center, retail facilities within the C-1 zoning district. 

10. The requested rezoning will not create an isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 

The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible 'spot zone· within the area and it 

proposes reasonable con-tinuation of Corridor Commercial zoning to the east and west . 

ZMA 19-14 -Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 

Parcel: 64-14-08-380-027 

Resolution 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions for vacant 

property, identified as PIN 64-14-08-380-027 from Ramon Dent for the rezoning of the aforementioned 

parcel; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City's 

Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 
forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 

aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 

Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Review, Public 

Hearing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On January 8, 2020, a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 

Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 
request for 114 W. Walton Blvd, approving the change from the current C-1 Local Business zoning 
district to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Condit ions; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions (ZMA 19-14) request for 
114 W. Walton Blvd, also known as Parcel No. 64-14-08-380-027 to amend the current site zoning from C

l Local Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Conditions. 

4 



ZMA 19-14 Zoning Map Amendment 
PARCEL NO: 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

APPLICANT: 

CURRENT ZONING: 

PROPOSED ZONING: 

INTENDED USE: 

64-14-08-380-02 7 

114 W. Walton Blvd 

Ramon Dent 

C-1 Local Business 

C-3 Corridor Commercial 

Medical Marihuana 
Provisioning Center 

- ' . 
~ -

:J,,, ,,,- i' • -4 , -, •"" - , ~ l 

1/15/2020 

1 ,1 



D/.\TE: 

~7.:i3{t \:i/!..iodv.1ard /':,V?: / Pf)[1ff_L,\C, iV!~C'}·ii(;/\l\ ,i~iJt..~)>-5009 
TELET'Hf>f-·1E.: :t .. J:3.753.2300 j FAJ(: 2-.:.d/!58,2827 

HJUVH)t\J Dff\f( 

11,i vv~ \JVi.\t-ro~~J BL 'JD t P!PJ 64~Alil-c•.;l-3Bo-027 
C-1 LC)[t\l BlJSH\O:ss T() C-3 COHHH)l)H CC>IVIIVIER{il\L 

The Citv of Ponti',c :sin ;-ecrjpt cf application [ZMA.1':J-14] for a Zoning Map /\rnendrnent [n~zoning] v;ith 

cor,c!itions per Section 6.807 of the Pontiac Zoning Oi"dinance foe parcel numb2r 64-14-08--380--027. The 

site is located on the no1ih side of W. Walton Blvd, between·Hoilywood /\venue and Cui isle '._;t,eet. 

Raffion Dent, th,': ipplicant requests a rezoning frorn C-1 local Business to C--3 Corridor Comrnen::ia!. The 

rezoning wouk: i:·n:::1.ffe that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is properly zoned. In 

c1ccordance with Sc:cUon 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, th,:: request for Zoning Map Amendment 

requires a technical review, Public Hearing, recommendation by the Planning Commission, and a final 

decision by City Council. 

SumrnaP{ 
1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject sit(': from C-1 local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential 1 Co,nrn,::rcial &. Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4.. If the Zoning Map /\mendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapte1· 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are met and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5. The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel 'Nill revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendrnenl: \Nlth Conditions. 

1 



J\ccordi11g to l.ht~ Cll1/s 20J4 !Vlaster P!Jn Update it is a City V\dU1 e><ix~:icn:lin<Jrv as::e(.; at'~d bdght,. ne\N' 

r:?conortdc prosp(:cts ()n vvhich to build a r,sv!sed ch::s'tlny \Vith n\:>\M n~t=:il/con~,rnerci::.d deve!Dprr1ent it !s 

lJvith thi~: :spir-it that i5 ernb2dd2d in the ·f'/L~lster Plan upd,at::~, 

The .subject sit2 is de.sigoateci as Entn~preneu1·ial: Residentiat Cornrnercicd gt. C~reen rnhc~rl-use land use 

category that ;3!lows fiexibility in use crnd fonn to r._::ncourage the positive i',~ u:.2 of nvHginai corntt12i-cial 

prnp2rty locations around the City. These areas have been identified \Nith the poter"<tia! to be catalysts for 

other positi\12 re-investment in the Walton Boulevard Corridor by entrepreneurs to star'.: businesses and 

cr2z1te jobs in tile process, 

/.1.re2s to the east and vvest ar2 also planned ;:is Eni:repreneudal: Residential, CornrPetd21 Is, Gn:en. /i,n::a to 

th::: north is planned as Tradition;;d l\leigilborhood Residential, vvhi!e Entrepreneurial: industrial, 
Cornrn2rcic1! t!J.. Green L;;nd use categorv ls designat:~:d to the soutfL 

The Zoning Map /'.\m?ndrn,?nt request complies 1Nith the requirements found \Nithin th12 Master Plan's 

Entrepreneurial District classification, 1Nhich is to sput' neighbor"i"wod economic developrnent in areas to 

allow flexibility'to attract creative and n,oUvated entrepreneurs and iocated in the fV1edical iVlarihuana 

Overlay District described in Orclimince 2363 - Medical Marihu2i.a Zoning Ordinance. 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, t:-12 subj:=:ct site is located in tik Walton 

Boulevard Medical iV!arihuana Overlay District. In considerai:ion ofthe propo~:ed rezoning from C-1 Local 

Business ·to C-·3 Con-icior Ccrnmeffial zoning district, the fo!!ov-.ring i\/l2dical fVlarihuana us2s; Prc1visioning 

C,:nt2r, Safety Compliance ancl Secure Tra(1sporte,- facilities ,,,ay be located on this site, if 211 requirement 

of fr1z:.! IViediczi! fVla,ihuanz; Zoning Ordinance (Ordinance ns~;) are met ;;,nd obtain 2 l'v1edical iV1arihuana 

license fron1 the City of Pontiac and the state. 

E;cis·:Jl}g Zordng LJi~:ttictJ 

Properties to the east and west are zoned C-3 Corridor Cc1,11nen:iai and C-·1 Local Business. North of 
subject site is zoned :1.-J. One Family Dvvei!ing. South of the site is zoned fv1-1 Light i\11anufacturing. The 

proposed Zoning l\ilap /!..n-1endment provides a mi>< betwe,':'li various cornmercial zoned areas. 

Rezonin~ Cdt0ria 
The Pontiac Planning Commission rnust consider any of the Following criteria [section 6.804, /HJ that 

apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 

Official Zoning rvlap [Section 6.804]. Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 

Corn mission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 

among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 

findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to util:ze in making its findings, 

recommendations, and formulating a decision, The ten stoled criterio are listed below with our findings: 

2 



1. c·onsi.:,;tenc.v i,virh the qc;o/sl .(HJl1cies ond ot)je(tives tfn: JVlostet Ph>n ood ,Jn~J SJ)~>-oreo pldn~~. {f 

Ct>ndit'ions hu11e chonged ,;inc2 Lhf: f1ii!osL"t:?i' Plot; \A/O.s- udoptE(J, tt.Jt1sistefi("}' !,virf; r~::cent 

The subject site c:onforrn~: to the goals ~1nd objective~ 1ncludt-~d in th<:~ 

!\dastet Flan {~re2t+:~d Entri?.prt~rH:uriaJ districts to r,.:~ck~vi::lop and f:nco\.1rJg<:; ~uJaptlve re:-use of 

propertie:; ·to a!iovv variou:=; inti.:'.nsity of con1n1ercla! uses l1)cJted vvitl·1i11 specific 2re(1s <Jnd 

foster 1:h2 rebir,:h of th2 Walton Blvd Corridor. 

2. Compotibilitv of the site/s physical,. g20/ogicol; hydroioQicol and other environnE:m~al feoture.~ 
wdh the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is occupied by 2 commercial use; so it's geological 1 hydrnlogical, 2n;j other 

envimnrnental fez1tui'es 2,-e no longer present on i:he site . 

. J Evider1ce the opplicant cannot teceh1e c1 reo5onobfe return on investrne,nt thtt.iugh developin(t tht:: 
propertv with one (.I) or rrwre of the uses permitted under the current zoninq. 

The ;:,pplicant did not d(~rnon::tr2t0: an inability to receive a reasonable re':crn on investment 

vvlth the existing zoning, 

4. Compotibility of al! the potentio/ use:.: allowed in the pmp,)sed zoning district with surrounc!irq 

uses ond zoning ir; terrn5 c1,: fond suitability, irnpocts on the environn1ent1 deos/tyl nature of usE:., 
t•··1H·1·c ,·,··1rL··,··~,. c··,:H·f1·••;,'"; .• , .. inr',-,.,d·rttC'LI''·:> ,.,,vf r,•;·"·•·'·'nt' ir·"/.11'"''.'('o --;·) •Jrr···e·'···,- ·•,·:'·•c•d l'JJ ,J r-r 1CL.,J .!<. ..... .Jt..11'-!..:l_._,1 ,u_, ,_J_,,._, . t 1 .._vi,_._ t~JU,._c[Jl!,_~ ,,Jj _ <...:, _,_ () f·, ,.Jf.l fl_~· V1,;/Uc,), 

The developr~·12nt of a iv1edie:d ~;Jarihu2na Provisicning C2nter i::; cornp2tn:i\2 with 

surrounding uses and in rerrns of !and suitabilit\if irnpact on the environrcent1 dt:n~.ity, tJ;Jfhc 

impacts, aesthetics, ancl infrastructure. 

S. Tht:' cc1,:.Jacity of the City-'s uti!itie::; ond service:; sufficient ro acc:ornn1odote the u:.:t:'S per,nfttt:~c.! in 
the requested district Vlithout crJrnpt()O?isinq the health, sofetv end Mlelfare qf the (Jtv. 

The City's utilities have cap2city and services will be sufficient to accomn1odate the proposed 

Medical fvlarihuan;ci Provisioning Center and not comprnmise the City's health
1 

safety, and 

welfare. 

6 The wpabifit)I of the street system to sofelv und efficiently occommodute the exp.c:ctecl /rojfic 
generated by uses perrnitted in the requested zoning district 

Walton Boulevard is a Major F<oad under the jurisdiction of the City of Pontiac. The proposed 

developrnerrt will not irTipact the abiHty of this Major Road and adjoining roads to h2;ndle 

potential traffic. 

7 The boundories of the requested rezooing district ore 1·easonoble in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site wiii be ah/e to rneet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The bound2,ries of the rezoning are reasonable :n relationship to surroundings ancl zoning 

district dimensional requirements. 

8. Jj' o rezoning is oppropriote~ the requested zoning district is considered to be rrrore Of)pro,oriote 

frorn the City,.s perspective than another zoning district 
\/1/ith all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 

ceasonable frorn the City's per:,pective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

3 



9. ff th2 reque5t i.s ./ot o :;pc:"'~.,fic us,?/ tC.'ZOning the hJnd is con:-:;fcfeted to be trier,:: Opf)(CYp(iotc:· thun 

nrnendioQ the fist of pf:r'rnitted or speciol fond u:;<:ts in the current zoning district to t1f/01;v thf:': use. 

It would be inappi'opdate to anif:i'1cl the zoning te:d: for C-1 Loc;:d Busine 0;s zoning di:otrict to 
af!o\M a f,,,11echc:.:.d !\t1rihuana Provisioning Center1 cetan faclHUes \Nithin the C-1 zoning di~:::tricL 

:{O. The requested rezoning 1A1i!f not create on isolated or incCJtnpotibJe zon2 in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezo,ling does not create an incompatible 'spot zone' within the area and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of Coctidor Cornn12rcia! zoning to the r:~ast and vvest. 

Hr:con-1n-,endc1tior, 

Per the revievv requirements found in Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordln;;H,,:e and ciur finding:;, v:e suggest 
that the Planning C:omrni:osion consider recommending to r::ity Council the request frorn Ramon Dent to 
1·ezone Parcei i\Jurnber SLl-14-08-330-027 [application Zi\lll\ 19-14] from C-1 Locai Su::in,2s:o to C-3 Corridor 
Commei-cial with conditions. 

4 



/' 
I 

----- . ···--·-·--------·------ --------·--·----



l'it'\/ c-f· u,\ri·'-i-,r• ·"' .y .J I V li(a'._, 

47450 V\/oodw;ard Aw~ .. Pontiar,. 1Vll tJ83Lf2 

Sidwdl Number: ·14-08-380-027 PF Number: 

Date.: 8-15-19 

hi:;tn1tti1ms: Cornph:ted applications with appropri::itc foe slrnll be subrnittcd to tbc Office of Land Use and Stratcgtc 
Planning at kast :rn d,1ys prior to the regularly scheduled !'Janning Commission meeting. Applic:1linn:; must be complete in 
all respects ,vith suppmting documents such as site plan, property survey etc. Planning staff ·wit I schedule the application t'i:'lc 
consideration by the Planning Commi:::sion in acconlrnce with the :1t1ad1cd schedule. incornpletc applications v1ill delay the 
review prm:css. 

f\lame Ramon Dent 
Addre .ss 615 Griswold Suite '1300 
City Detroit 
State Michigan 
ZIP Cc 48226 

----+------------~-------------r--------------------J 
Telept Main:110-9°6-208q .,,__"' L~ ~-1one I Cell: 3 '10-9.26-,2089 Fax: 

E·Mai! rdent@usafetyconcepts.com 

IPrmje 

Nam e of Proposed ])evelopment""": _L_u_ci_d_P_o_n_ti_a_c _______________ _ 

Thes ubjcct property is 1ocat1011 at 1'14 W. Walton Blvd on the N / S / E / W side of Wa!ton ---------
bet1ve "en Carlisle St. and _H_ol_lyv_v_o_o,_:I _A_ve ____ _ 

The· ' d Ci property 1s zone ; ___________________ _ 

Prop 

His p roposcd Urnt the propt:rty 17,,m be used as: retail space/ provisioning center 

Thes ubjed property is legally described as follows (include sidwell numbrrs).: 

N \/1/alton Blvd. 14-08-380-027 ·114 \ 



i_E·Maii 

··, 

' Q ·{) '!' C)' C)· 
.,__J ()"----· ·t '~ 

'fhc J;ro:po~;{:.d 
photographs,sYett 

/\gent/rer)~ 

76 .. ··-· I· Fa>:: ·---· 

t11c C)\\/ncr ()the:1~ ---- ------

····--········-------------------------------------

for ncvil business use. It v);iH cre2te nev4 jobs 2i-1d inc:rease tax revenue for the city. In addition, the nevv 

retaH spact~ vviH be .a beutification to the neighborhood: rer~·1ovlnq the abandoned gas stat\on/:;y{~: ~:,ore -

2nd pi-eventing furi.het enviromE·ntaf damage. Th1s ch;:inge \.vm not be dekirnentrJi to the public bec2u,3e it's 

~:. ,., 

ri 
.. •• .,-w•-,•'-••-~----••••-_,c••'t•-::;~"•-:::M•~·J] 

Sti1t12 of:l-ficingun 
CowJ(F cf Oa/J.-md 

OJJ this (liiy {.,r ' ,,j_ n., :o 1~ .. fhre /11{' j)?..,,r.·;1)?}(l!(v u,np1't:n•d the n/)()F(' nurt11'd pci~'i4Ji/, who h{·in_~: ,/,.;~F ::wont, ','fon-d hL:/·)w has i'i;'oJ 

rhcJ;.Jregoing (lpp!icu:ion. l1y l,l,-1uhcr .}-i~,;m-·d. and kno.,,1i du_- r.:on1n11s r/;cre,!I: tu~d r/1<11 th;_• suuu.' is /rue l.lhis'/lu.:r 01w1 ,{•nr.n1 !et:\:c <-'.tr:c·r,t t.1s 10 '1hr: :twi!ei:i 

:herein Slated to be upoH :,y~::/mution truf beiiefand so (IS ro thos<: maners he.--~-:Jw believes it robe !l1N}. 

:\!c)rar:1 Puhli1_·. Oah'lu11d Cou.,:o-,. ,\4/~_·!;igan 
,t/_1, (n;;1miysi1.>rr Expires: __ _ 



40 130 

40 

50 46 

50 36 

113 

WAI_T()l,J BLVD 

756.07 

RICHi'.RD AVE. 

ZQi\JJNG 1\/lAP 
.. l 1_011 

i..EGEND 

ivl-·1 LIGHT MANUFACTURING C-3 CORRIDOR COlvllvlEF<CL'\L 

C-1 LOC,'\L BUSINESS 
1-------:-i 
L.J 

40 40 40 40 40 40 .J.O ,'.j.Q 

V\/. COL GA.TE ,.\Vt:: 

,::n .. J-0 ,10 40 4(1 

' 

·100 '140 40 !GO 

/'-!OTES: 

AS;\ CONDlTJOf',! TO THE REZCJJ,Jll✓ (i, THE !.:ZEZCH-!ED P/~r::CEL UR PROPERT:' '/V!LL REVEffr B;\CK ru ihi:. 
CURPEr,rr ZOl'm\G D!STPJC.T OF:\ PRO PERT{ LiCEf'lSED Ct,i-~f-JAf.:.!S FACIL[T"{ IS /'JOT 
TO THE PUSUC \NlTHJ~I THF.EE YEARS FROfA THE DATE; OF POHTIAC r_;)Ty <>JUNCiL 
1\fvifNDMEt·JT 

' 





,0: 

~-rtW ViNdwanl A ?e i P{)NTlAC, J\'i lCfUGAl"! •-1:l'.i 0 l:!, -5V1.J1) 

TiE'LEPFlC>Nf.'.-: ✓z;tJt758.2300 I FA/;: 24:t7~)tL2132-'/ 

VERN GUSTAFSSOi\!, PLl\i\lNlf\lf; !VlANtl\(iiER 

THf{OUGM nH: rn=FJO:: rn~ IOlf:PUTY !Vlf:\VOR ,llWU: 13r\Fi DJS!ES:'Sf'.\ 

5Ul8JEJ:T: ZOf•Jlf\lG M/a\P J\Mf:i\lDij\fiEMT wrrn coi,mrr!Oi\!S 

JOSE GR,lzi\mf\DOS 
:ms '!J\J. WAlTDr\! [RVD I Pif\l 64-14-"0:':§-•38&:l-028 
C-l lOCAl BU:S!i"JESS TO C-3 (:(,RRIDOft OJMMERC!AIL 
Pt\~rn-"OSEi) MEDIC!U iVU\RiMUi\NA PROVlS!ON!i\JG CEf\fff]; 

The City of Pontiac is i.n receipt of applic;:ition [ZMA 19-15] for a Zoning IV!ap /\rnenclmeni: [rezoning] with 
conditions per Section 6.807 of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-08-380-028. The 
site is located on the north side of W. Walton Blvd, between Hollywood /\venue and Carlisle Street Jose 
Grandados, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-1 local Business to C-3 Corridor CornmerdaL The 
rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medicai 1\/larHmana Provisioning Center is properly zoned. At 

i:he January 8, 2020 meeting the Planning Comrnission recommended to City Council the approval of-this 
Zoning IVlap Amendment with Conditions. 

Smrirnarv 
l, The applicant requests iezoning the subject sit<::: from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Commercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial 8z Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with thls future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is cornpatlble with C-3 zoning standards, 

4, If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure a!! requirements to the Medical IVlarihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] 

are n1et and obtain a Medical Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5, The applicant submitted a conclltion to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three yea(s from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



il/last,:21· P!an 
:\ccording to the Cii:/::: 201Ll Ma:::ter Plan Upd::,t'.:': ii: is a City with extraordinary assi::ts c,nd bright, new 
econornlc prospeci::, Oi'i 1Nhich to b1-1lkl cl revised destiny vvith ne,JV rei:ail/co111merda! development. It is 

with this spirit that is embedded in the Master P!:,m update. 

The subject sii:e is designated as Erri:repreneurii:il: Residential, Commercial &( Green mi){ed-u.,:e land use 

category that allo1ivs flexibility in use and form to encourage the positive re-use of under-utilized property 
locations around the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to be catalysts for other 

positive re-investment in the Walton Boulevard Corridor by entrepreneurs to start businesses and create 

jobs in the prno~ss. 

An::as to the east and west are also planned as Entrepreneurial: Resic!2ntial 1 Commen-cia! & Green. P-tec1 to 
the north is planned as Traditional Neighborhood Residential, while Entrepreneurial: industriat 
Commercial & Green land use category is designated to the south, 

The Zoning Map Amendment request complies \Nith the requirements found within the i\Jiaster Plan's 
Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur neighborhood economic development in areas to 

allow flexibility to attract creative and motivated entrepreneurs, 

Based on our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject. site is located in the 'Walton 

Boulevard 1\/ledicai iVlarihuana Overlay District In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-1 Local 
Business to C-3 Corridor Cornmercia! zoning district, the following Medkal Marihuana uses; Provisioning 
Center, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter facilities may be located on this site, if all requirement 
of the Medical 1\/larihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363) are rnet and obtain a Medical Marihuana 
license from the Cii:y of Ponti2c and the state, 

Existing Zoning Districts 

Properties to the east and west are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial and C-1 Local Business. f\lorth of 

subject site is zoned R-1 One Family Dwelling. South of the site is zoned M-1 light Manufacturing, The 

proposed Zoning Map /\rnendment provides a mix between various intensity of commercial zoned areas, 

which implements the Master Plan's Future Land Use category; Entrepreneurial: Residential, Commercial 
8, Green. 

Rezonirag [riter!a 
The Pontiac Planning Commission rnust consider any of the following criteria (section 6.804, A-J] that 

apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 

Official Zoning Map [Section 6,804], Additionally, the section also stipulates that the Planning 

Cornmission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not Hsted 
among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria1 we offer the following 

findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making lts findings, 

recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stetted criteria are listed below with our findings: 

2 



1; Consistency 1.,vith the qoolsl policies ond of~fectivt.:·s {>f the lVlosi:E't Pian ond (lny su.b,-oreo plons. (T 
conditions how: chongcd since the Master Phm was odopi:ed, consistem:y Mtith receM 
c/eve!opment treods in the areo shelf! .be considered. 

The subject site conforms to the goals and objectives included in the City's M3ster Flan. 'Che 

11/ia::;ter Plan ueated Entrnpreneudai districts to redevelo:J and encourage adaptive re,,use of 

properties to allow various intensity of con1mercia1 uses located 1Nithin spedfk areas and 

foster the economic development rebirth of the \1\/alton R!vd Corridor. 

2. Compotibilitv of the site··s physicat geological, hvdrological and othet environrnentol feotures 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is occupied by a cornmercial use; so it's geologicat hydro1ogical, and other 
environmental features are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant cannot receive a reosonoble return on investment through developing the 
property with one {:l) or nwre of the uses permitted under the current zoning, 

The applicant did not demonstrate an inability to i'eceive a reasonable return on investment 

with the e)<isting zoning. 

4. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
uses and zoning in terms of land suitability, impocts on the environmem~ density, nature of use., 
trnffic impacts, oesthetics, infrastructure ond pol'entiol influence on property values, 

The development of a Medical fvlarihuana Provisioning Center b compatible with 

surrounding uses and in terrns of land suitability, impact on the environrnenl:, density, traffic 
impacts aesthetics, and infrastructure. 

5. The capacit)I of the City's utiJities and services sufficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the City. 

The City's uti!ities hzwe capacity and services will be sufficient to accomrnodate the proposed 
Medkal IV1arihuana Provisioning Center and not compromi:,e the City's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

6. The cc,pability of the street system to safely und efjkientfy accommodate the expected traffic 
generoted by uses permitted in the requested zoning district. 

Walton Boulevard is a Major Road under the jurisdiction of the City of Pontiac The proposed 
deve!oprnent wrn not impact the ability of this Major Road and adjoining roads to handle 

potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district ore reasonable in relationship to surroundings 
and construction on the site will be able to meet the dirnensionaf regulations for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surrnundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. ff a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City1s perspective them onother zoning district 

With aH the previous findings of fact, the boundarles of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 

reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's iV!aster 

Plan. 

3 



9, zr the request is fot o S/Jec({ic use1 rezoninQ the land is conside(2d t,} be 1r1or2 .oppropriate thon 

amending the fist of permiUed or special land uses in the current zoning districi lO allow the use, 

it vvm!!d be inappropriate to arnem! the zoning text for C-1 Loc;:d Business zoning district to 

aHow a iv1edic.:,I i\Jlarlhuana Provisioning Center, r2t2i! facilities within the C--1 zoning district. 

:W The tequested rezoning wi!f not creote cm isolated or incompatible zone in tfte oeiqhborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create 2n incompatible 'spot zone' within the area and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of Corridor Cornmercial zoning to the e;:ist and west 

ZMA 19-15 -- Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions 

Parcel:. 64·14·08-380-028 

0 .:)c ··) I u·1'·1· n ··1 a,,~ .. ,\. . ,., l 

Whereas, The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions for 108 w. 
Walton Blvd, identified as PIN 54-14-08-380-(J:28 frorn Jose Grandados for the rezoning of the 

aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereos, The Planning Division has revie1ived the applicant1s rezoning request in regards to the City's 

Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Planning Division has n:::viewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 

forth by Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has detennined the 

aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 

Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, ln accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sections 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map /\n1endments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Revie1Jv1 Public 

!+earing, and Planning Commission Recommendation; and 

Whereas~ On January 8, 20201 a Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 

Planning Commission recommends City Council approve the Zoning Map Amendrnent with Conditions 

request for 108 W, \Na!ton Blvd, approving the change from the current C-1 local Business zoning 

district to C-3 Corridor Comrnercia! zoning district with Conditions; and 

Now Therefore, Be ft Resolved, That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 

Commission recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions (ZMA 19-15) request for 

108 W. Walton Blvd, also known as Parcel l\!o. 64--14-08-380-028 to amend the current site zoning from 

C-1 Local Business to C--3 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Conditions. 

4 



ZMA 19-15 Zoning Map Amendment 
PARCEL NO: 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

APPLICANT: 

CURRENT ZONING: 

PROPOSED ZONING: 

INTENDED USE: 

64-14-08-380-028 

108 W. Walton Blvd 

Jose Grandados 

C-1 Local Business 

C-3 Corridor Commercial 

Medical Marihuana 
Provisioning Center 

14-17-126-017 

-;l ~•" ~ • • y ~--~• , ~ - "- "" I • • • ~ • - ~ 
~ 1 I • • • "'- _ 

1/15/2020 



ro: 

FHC1l\ii: 

StJBJE(T: 

---!-),,f5H \Vood,.vard ;\ v12) Pf)(i'1'lf%_(:,, 1\li(:H1{;/\/J ~tD].,f~!--5D09 
rfELEF'nt)J·; :;:: ·::.-:43.'758.2300 ! F.:\.5~: ::'.-43.?52,28'.?."/ 

\ffRfj (;tJSYA::ssc1\\jt P'LL\.'\]~\ll,\i(:i j\itA,\j/J,l'.)ER 

PL/\1\Ji'HMG DiVlS!ON 

JOS\: GR!'•!J:'.Dl\lJ.05 
JC:3 '.Pd. 1HALTOM BL\/D j P!N 64-1tt-iJ8-:1W;-0:.:8 
( .. J LC)(/\i. BtJSff\~€:55 T() C-3 CC>RR![JCJi1 CC)i\/i;\d;:~~(jJ\L 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of .::q}pliec1tio,1 [ZMA 19 lSj for a Zoning iV12 1:i /\1T1c:ivJrneni: [rezoning] wii:h 

conditions per' Section 6.go7 of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for pare,.! numb,:( 64-14-03-380-028. The 

site is located on the north side o:- v\/. Walton Blvd, bi::t,Neen Ho!lyvvood Avenue and Carlisle Street. Jose 

Grandados, the applicant requests a o::zoning from C-1 Local Bu~:iness l:o C-3 (orrldor- Commercial. The 

rezoning vvould ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning C::nl:er is properly zoned. In 

acco(dance with Section 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Zoning Map /\rnendrnen!: 

requires a technical review, Public Hearing, recornrnendation by the Planning Comrnission, and a final 

decision by City Council. 

Sr,,iir1rnary 

1. The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Con,rnercial. 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial; Residential, Comrnerci2I 8, Green. 

The prnposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map A.rnendrnent is approved, the applicant would be required to comply with 

/.\rticle 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

2ddition, ensure all requirements to the IVledical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363j 

are met and obtain a 1\/iedica! Marihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5, The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel 1,vill revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facilitv is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

1-\mendment 1,vith Conditions. 

1 



A.ccordfng t() the City's 201,q, lV1:2ster f}!zin 

ecoriornic prospects on vvhich to build 2 revlsi:;d di~~~uny Vdlth ne,n1 n::tail/cornrnercL:il devt::!op1IJcnt. H Ls 

1,vii:h this spirit i:hat i:; ernbeddecl in th2 rvla:,t,::i' ?Ian 1q)date 

The subject sltf: !~s designated as Entrepreneurial: Residential,. Cornrnercl2! 8i Green rn!xecl-·use !and usi? 
category that allovvs flexibility in use and form to encourage the positive re-use of under-utilized property 

locations around the City. These areas have b2(:n identified with the potential to be catalvsts for other 

positive re-investment in the Walton Boule✓2cd Ce>ffidor by entrepreneurs to start businesses crnd create 

jobs in the prncess. 

/~reas i:o the ea.st and west are ab:, planned as Ent:repreneurial: R:~sider1i:ial 1 Comrnerc:al 8-,. G1·een. Area to 

the north 1s planned as Tradition2I Neighborhood Hesic!ential., while Entrepreneurial: industrial, 

Cornmef'Cial 8,. Creen land use category is de;;ignated to the south. 

The Zoning Map Amendrnent request complies with the requirements fol}nd within the iv12ster Plan's 

Entrepreneurial District classification, v/hich is to spur neighborhood econo1T:ic development in areas to 

allow fle:ibility to attract creative and motivated entrepreneurs. 

Bas,~d on our technical review of the proposed ~ewning, the :;ubject site i:; locaLed in the \/valton 

Boule\/ard Medie,sl i\llarihuana Overlay District. In consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-1 local 

Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district,. the following l\iledica; iV12rihuana uses; Provisioning 

C2nter, Safety Cornpliance and Secure Transporte:'r facil1ties rnay be located en this site, if all requirement 

of the !Vledical Macihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance :t::63] 2re met c,nd obtain a Medical Ma1-ihuana 

license from the City of Pontiac ,rnd the state. 

E;dsting Zoning Djstricts 

Prnperties to the east and 1Nest are zoned C-3 Corridor Commercial and C-1 local Business. f'lorth of 

subject site is zoned R--1 One Family Dwelling. South of the site is zoned fVl-1 Light Manufacturing. The 

prnposed Zoning 1\/lap Amendment provides a mix betv1een various intensity of commercial zoned areas, 

vvhich implements the !\!laster Plan 1 s 1:LL1;re !2nd Use category; Entrepreneurial: i~esidential, Cor-nrnercial 

& C:iteen. 

Rezoning Criteria 

The Pontiac Planning Cornmission rnust consider anv of the following criteria [section 6.804, /-:\·J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in making findings 1 recommendations, and a deci:;ion to amend the 

Official Zoning l\/lap [Section 6.804]. ?\dditiona!ly, the section also stipulates that the Planning 

Corrimission rnay also consider other factms that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 

among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the following 

findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 

recommendations1 and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed be!ovv vvith our findings: 

2 



J, (~onsist-1:·ncv cv/rh the goofs., pc;lich-::5 ond oly·ectives of thr: l\tlnsl'er Pion tJ(Jcf cr11;/ su!J--oreu pir1n:;. If 
concliti(Jns hove chc:rtqed since the lvloster Pfun tAlDS ocfopted, consh;tency vvith rerenf: 
deve!oprnent t,rf:nds irr the Ut2{J shed! be considered_ 

·rh:2 subject site conforn1s to the goals and objc~ctivt::s iriciudc:d in tht:: City;:::, l"J1aster Plan, Thf.:: 

!\!laster f=>!an created Entrepren,~urial dlstcicts to redevelop 2nd encourage ~~:1dt1ptive r~~-iJ.Se of 

propt:~rtie~; to a!!ovv various intc-~nsity of con1n1f'..:rciai uses located vvithin speciflc .:::1reas and 

fo.st2:' the econornic development (ebirth ol th2 Walton Blvd Con-idor_ 

2. Compatibility of the site 1s physical; geological,. hydro!ogico/ ond other enviro/lmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is occupied by a commercial u::e; so ifs geological, hydrological, and other 
environrnental features are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the opplicont connot receive Cl reosonob!e return on investment throuph de'!elor..1ing the 
propedy with one (1) or more of the use:; permitted under the current zoning. 

The applic:mt did not clemonstr;:1te ;:m inability to receive a reasonabie n::turn on investment 
with the e;<isting zoning. 

4. Compotibility of o!I the potentio! uses u!lowed in the proposed zoning district with surrounding 
u~:es and zoning in terms of land suftuhi!Jty, impocts on the environrnent, dem:Jtv., noture of use, 
trctffic irnpt.1c{s1 oesU1etics,, infrostruc-ture cr11d potentio/ influence on property volues. 

Yhc d,::veioprnent of a Medical !Vlacihuana :)rovisioning Center is con1patibl2 with 

surrounding uses and In terrns of land suitability1 irnpact on the envftonrnentr density, traffic 
irnp;:'1cts aesthetics, and infrastructun=:. 

5. Th.~ CCJ{Jocity of the Cfty-'s utilities :Jnd SE:rvices sufficient to c1ccon1n1odote the t}ses perrnittecf in 
the (equested district without compron,isinQ the health, safety one! welforr-: of the City. 

Thi:: City's utilities have capacity ;:ind se1vices will be sufficient to acccmmodate the proposed 

1Vledical IV!arihuana Provisioning Center and not corn promise the Cit'/'s health, safety, and 
welfare. 

{:)·. T/ .. ·" '1''11(' 1)1·11·+y, ··"' i'11
')" cf·1·po'r 511s 1·e 1·1 "· .. C '7r✓>/1 1 rind "''}·0 ',·c·,·e,,r· 1\1 (Q ✓'"O/Y)/T'(' ,r}r,··' 0 ")1° "'YD sctpd f,·a,p·; .. _ J,i.._ Lur'J1l L Uj 1.. c ..;,. _(.. . ; ,_ s1 tf..)_,l.J'- ,/ s.-s,- ._ J , 1,: L,f., ,1_,,..,,_,jr..,,._ L,c c,\J- C ... ,., t.1 -JJll., 

oeneroted bv uses perfr1ittecl in the requested zoninQ district. 
\/Valton Boulevard is a Major Roz,d under the jurisdiction of the City of Pontiac. The proposed 
developrnent will not impact the ability of this Major Road and adjoining roads to handle 
potenti:,I traffic 

7 The boundories of the requested rezoning district are reasonable in relat:'onship to surroundings 
ond construction on the site wi!! be ob!e to meet the din,ensionu! regulotions for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements. 

8. !( a rezoning is oppropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
from the City's perspective them another zoning district. 

\Nith all the previous findings of fact, thf: boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 
· reasonable from the City-'s perspective and cornp!y with the vision found in the City's Master 
Plan. 

3 



9, 1,,f the request ls for a specU:ic use., te.zoninq the lnnd is considert:.;cJ to he rnore t.7f':,f.iropriate thun 
on1eoding the list of perrnitted or speciof fond u.ses in the current .?-oning di5trtct to al!ovv the usJ?, 

It vvouid bi:: inappropriate to arnerid thf.: zoning Te:o<t for C<L LocaJ Bus!ncst. zoning cHstdct to 

allow,; Medical f\/ladhuan;c, P,nvisioning Cent,0 r, r"ct=;i/ facilities 'Nithin the C-1 zoning district, 

:10, The requested rezoning will not create on isolot2d or incompatibie zone in i'he neirthborhoocf. 

The p,oposed rezoning does not create an incoinpatible ',;pot zone' within the Mea aticl it 
proposes reasonable continuation of Corridor C:omrnercial zoning to the e::;st and \ivest. 

Recon1m2ndation 
Per the revievv requirernents found in Section 6.804 of the Zoning ()rclln2nce ar1d cur findings, v,,.1e suggest 

that the Planning Cornrnission consider recommending to City Council the request frc,m Jose Grandados 

to rezone Parcel i\Jurnber 64-14-08-380-028 [applicati(m ZiVI/\ 19-15] from C-1 Local 13uslness to C-3 

Con-iclor Comrnerciai vv·ith conditions. 

4 



V\/c~st: 

Tabernacle 1Jf Faith 

ft 



~DJi:.Tucti1Ji,1~;~ -C:on1pkted applicntion:'.' \V1th uppror,riate t:~e shall be subrninr::d tn the ()ft;ec of Land th;r-:: and Strat,::gic 
P1anning at least 3G prior to tbc t(gubrly :;cbedulcd Flannlng Cornn1is~)i0n rtn::tlng. ,:\.rplic;)ti\)fiS rni}sl be cc,n1pletF~ in 
a11 rz::;pects with suppurting docun-ierHs such ;,is :site plan~ propt~rt]' stu-vey etc Flnnning naff \/ill Y~hcduk: 1ht: appi"1c£}liun il>r 
consideration by the FJanning Cornrni2:~lo-u ir: Jcc1_ypJanct. \j_

1 ii.h the aliached ;,LJ1eduk. 1nc:.;n1p\.:t~ ~~pplic:.Hion!) \vi1l delay ~he 
rcvle\v proce~:s. 

>----------+-----------~---···--~---,-,·--------------- ------------------! 
i\ddrcss 108 V\/ VV2ltnn 

City 

iVlichi9an 
ZIP Cocle 

Telephone fvJain: Ceir:248-4[:Jj .. ()984 I Fa_,;_: _____________ :1 

f---------+--------------__L_ _________________ L__ - --
1 

I 

Thf subject property is location at 1013 W 1/Valton Elvcj 
bet~h'een _!~oilywood Ave ---·---~ ?r.,Ci _, __ a_r_n:~_·it_~ s_'t ______ _ 

Ci 
------ -----·----------

T'.3f\l.R"10E,SEC El tvl!,Rli'vlOi\!T SUB LOTS i42,i43 /1,144 Parcel 10 64--i4-08-3B0-02E 



--------·-··--·····-···-·-

---···--.. -··-·--~--·····---- __ .,., ·--·---------.-·-···-··--------------,-···-----·-·---· --------------------------

. ·-···--·---····-·····--- ·-··-·---·------------------

----·- -----·-------·---------------·----------·---------

----.. ··········-···· ---------
-----·-·---·-·--··•·" 

--------------·-----------·--·-·---····-·---··-·---------------------

S10.te rf:\·iichigan 
C11w1ty 1?(0aldand 

On thir., ___ doy r?f >/.1.J., the 11b1n·e nmned p~-:rso11, Hhn /)eing duf1: ,:;11,•nn;, smteil h(~:'.\lk' has rvad 
!he appiicatinn, h_i· :li1w!w1 ,\(i~ned. nm/ rlwt !ht: .wm1e ::)· inm olhis/lier ,;,:,n1 k~1mrlv<(;c. (!S(·r:pI 1.!.\' !n r/f·> mal!2t'S 

rv he trpo11 n~Fu·1,11ainn ond />1ditfaml so us rn titn;<t! nwtrers it<!.1\f11.> helie\'t:-; if fo he trm:. 

:\'ntan: <\ihlic. Oukiond Cuwt/1', ,\ffchhtiJ.'I 
- .\(r Ciimtaissiun l.~_t·pi,·'-~'s ·· 



~ -------~-- ··-·-····-·-----. 

I 

j 
•. .J 

I f';U!Li)lf.Jc:, 

0.1 

'::! ,_, 
6 
ro 
~0 

((: 

0 

. I 

REZOP-1ED PAF!CEL OR FROPEF{TY \hJ\Li_ 
RE\/EP.T BAG!< TO THE CURPEHT ZOi,!li•IG 
D!STRtCT IF,\ PflOFERL\' L!CE!'JSED CJ\Hf·•U\t>)S 
FAC!L!TY !S J,!OT OF-'EFZ.b,TlNG 1\hJD i\JOT OPEH 
lO THE F'UBLIC VVITH!H Ti1t'<EE YE/,.RS FRO!VI 
D/\TE OF P()f-JTl.£1\C CITY COUHCit .. /\PPFZO\//i.L 
Z.OJ\!!HG 1\/L.!\P ,-\fV1Eh!DfVJEl"lT 

LOTS !42, 1ll2. 8,. )<'.1<1 

(P/,,RCEL ![1 ·1...t .. Q8--3B0-·028) 

SUB 



(~HHl:".:·1 t.iPHU{ P. :\it:LU i 
,,\.-\i\O~ L: (:L\'f~.E 
.:i..U"(li"l.ll{J_};.1.1:i.1.tdl:.!,(.{")ff). 

City of Pc,nti:1c 
Planning Division 
A ltn: \ 1 er:n Gusta fsson, P bnning fVi:,111Jg'.:;r 
47450 \Vo,)dwnrd Avenue 
Pontiac, Michigan 43342 

Ja111..1ary 2~ 2020 

Sent by Email (vgustafssonl/fpo,1tiacmi,us) and by First Class I\:iail 

R.e: R .. ezoni_ng: uf log V/ \X/:,1lton 81vd 

Dear i'Ar. Ciustafssun: 

The applicant has applied 10 ,.ht: ZBA to have the real property located ,t! 108 \V. Walton 
f3.lvd. reioned to support an appliciltion for licensing: of rt medical mariliuana provisioning cemer 
in lhe \Valto:1 Blvd Overlay Distrir~L 

As a condition 10 the rezoning, the rezoned pare,:;! or property will re\iert back to the 
current zoning district if a properly lic<:nsed cannabis facility i~; not operating m1d not open to !he 
public 1xirhin three years from date of Pontiac City Council appro\1al Zoning i'vbp ,\rnendmem" 

ADG/ 

Thank you for your coopf:ration in thi::; matter_ 

Very truly yours, 
AIELLO & ASSOCIATES, PLLC 

Aaron D. Geyer 
Attorney at Lrw 





f/t.{50 VVDn<lv:ranJ ,/c1c J P<}J>!l];\(\ l'JICJ~UGtitf'7 4B34Z<5lH)9 
TEiL.,EPEH)l\lE; 2tl~t7~){t-2U.OO I FA,,,'{: '_l,,~-8.75IL2B27 

VEIR!'J GUSTAFSSOI\I, rtAM!\IH\!G iVJA!\LL>,Gf:Wt 
n-mOUGH THE OH!Ct or DEPUTY \\JUt'lOfi l.i!\.NE fil\15,,rn:SES:5.<'% 

ZOi\Jil\JG iVl/'.U'.l AME!\!DiVlEi\lT WJTH cm,m:r1m:)i\iS 
\/VlU.Lt\!Vi MOESTA 
228 W, WALTON Bl.VD ! Ph\! 64-'.!4-fn3··354·01(i 
C<l. lOCAl BtJSli\lESS TO C··3 ,CORH!DOR 0)!',JJfillERC!J\l 
PFmP(}SED fvrf.D!Ct\l rvuummJ\[\!/t, PftOV!SIOt\!ll\lG (ENTEH 

The City of Pontiac is in receipt of applicatlon [ZlVIA :1.9-16] for a Zoning Map An1endrnenl: [rezoning] with 
conditions per Section 6.807 of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-08-354-Cll0, The 
33 acre site is located on the north side of W. VVa1ton Blvd, betvveen W. Nevv York Avenue and Carlisle 
Street William IVloesta, the applicant requests a rezoning from C-1 local Business to C-3 Corridor 
Commercial. The rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is 
properly zoned. At the January 8, 2020 meeting the Planning Comrnission recommended to City Council 
the approval of this Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions. 

S1Ummanr 
l, The applicant requests rezoning the subject site from C-1 Local Business to C--3 Corridor 

CommerdaL 

2. The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Comrnercia! & Green. 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3. The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards. 

4. If the Zoning Map Amendment is approved, the applicant would be required to compiy with 

Article 6, Chapter 2, and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the 1\/ledica! Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363) 

are met and obtain a Medical IV!arihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state. 

5, The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public within three years from date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Arnendment with Conditions. 

1 



fv'bsi:er Pia,'! 
/.\ccording to the City's 2014 fV!i!Sl:er P!z,n Update it is with ex'i:raordinary assets and brjght, nevv fconomic 
prospects on which to bui!d a revlsecl destiny with ne•N re'i:ailjcomrn<~rdai development. !ti:; with thls 
spirit that is embedded in i:he Master Plan update. 

The subject site is designated as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Cotnmercial 81. Green rr;b(ed-use land U'.;e 

category that allovvs flexibility in use and form to encourage the positive re-use of under-utilized property 

or ,edevelop locations around the City. These areas have been identified with the potential to be 
catalysts for other positive re-investment in these neighborhoods and/or corridors by entrepreneurs to 
start businesses and create jobs in the process. 

Areas to the east and west are also pianned as Entrepreneurial: Residential, Comrnerda! & Green. Area to 
the north is planned as Traditional i\Jeighborhood Residential, while Entrepreneurial: industrial, 
Cornmercial & Green, ;~ mi)(ed-use land use category is designated to the south. 

The Zoning Map Amendrnent request complies with the requirernents found within the Master Plan's 
Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur neighborhood/corridor economic development in 
areas to aBow fle)(ibi!ity to attract creative and motivated entrepreneurs located in the Medical 
Marihuana Overlay Distrlct described in Ordinance 2363 - Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance. 

Based 0;1 our technical review of the proposed rezoning, the subject site is located in the \IVali:on 
Boulevard Medical Marihuana Overlay District. in consideration of the proposed rezoning from C-:l loca! 
Business to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district, the following Medica! Mar:huana uses; Provisioning 
Center, Safety Compliance and Secure Transporter faclHties may be located on this site, lf all requirement 
of the ~/ledical ~/larihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2363] are met and obtain a i\!ledic2i Marihuana 
license frorn the City of Pontiac and the state. 

Existing Z,:ming Districts 
Properties to the east and west are zoned C-3 Corridor Cornmerdal and C-1 local Business. North of 
subject site is zoned R-1 One Farnily Dwemng. South of the site is zoned C-3 and C-1. The proposed 
Zoning Map Arnendment provides a mi)( between various commercial zoned areas. 

Re2m1im1. Criteria 
The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the following criteria [section 6.804, A·J] that 
apply to the rezoning application in rnal<ing findings, recommendations, and a decision to amend the 
Official Zoning Map [Section 6.804]. J-\dditionally., the section a!so stipulates that the Planning 
Commission may also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but are not listed 
among the ten criteria, To assist in the evaluation of these and other crlterla, we offer the following 
findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6.804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utiHze in making its findings, 
recommendations, and formulating a decision. The ten stated criteria are listed below ,Mith our findings: 

2 



~L Consi.:::tency 1.Nith the goo/sf /JC1/ici.-r:.::s ond objectives q{ the 1\/Josi:er F?Jon anrl :.1nv sub-·t7reo /Jlorr:;, f{ 
condiUons hove chnoged sine:? /:he rv/uster Phm v11ns udopted, consistency with 1eu::ni; 

developrnent trends in the oi'en shed/ be considered. 
The subject site conforms to i:he goals and objectives induded iH i:he Cii:\/'s 1Vlc1ster Plan, Ths 
Master Plan created Entrepreneurial districts to redevelop and encourage adapt•ve r,~-u:.;e oi· 

properties i:o allow vadous intensity of comrnen::L::d uses located vvithin specific an::,as ar;d 

foster the rebirth of the Walton Blvd Corridor, 

2. Compatibility of the site's physical, geological, hydrological nnd other environmental features 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district 

The site is currently developed as a restaurzrnt use; so it's geo1ogical, hydrnlogical, and other 

environrnental features are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence the applicant rnnnot receive u reasonable return on investment through developing the 
property with one (:1) or more cf the uses permitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not demonstrate an inability to receive a r2asonab!e return on investrnenc 
with the existing zoning. 

LJ. Compatibility of all the potential uses allowed in the proposed zoning di5trict with surrounding 
uses one! zoning in terrns of land suitability, impacts on the environrnent, density, nature of use, 
traffic impacts, aesthetics, infrastructure and potential influence on property vCJ!ues. 

The development of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centet ls compatible with 
surrounding uses and ln terms of !and suitability, impac'( on the environrnent, density, traffic 

impacts, aesthetics, and infrastructure. 

5. The capacity of the City's utilities and services St{fficient to accommodate the uses permitted in 
the requested district without compromising the health, safety and welfare of the Citv, 

The City's utilities have capacity and services will be sufficient to accommodate the proposed 
Medical 1\/larihuana Provisioning Centei' and not comprnrnise the City's health, safety, and 
welfare. 

6. The capability of the street system to safely and efficiently accommodate the expected traffic 
generated bv uses perrnit:ted in the requested zoning district. 

Wa!ton Boulevard is a Major Road under the jurisdktion of the City of Pontiac. The proposed 
development will not impact the ability of this Major Road and adjoining roads to handle 

potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoning district are reosonoble in relationship to surroundings 
and construction cm the site wifl be able to meet the dimensional regulations for the requested 
zoning district 

The boundaries of the rezoning are reasonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 
district dimensional requirements, 

8. If a rezoning is appropriate, the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriate 
frorn the City's perspective than another zoning district 

With all the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 

reasonab!e from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 
P!an. 

3 



9, If l1'1'P (""11/(-'Ct j,;J'u"'•t' 0 ,;(J' p,-,,·,,:,•[, ,,n;-p i',07Qfl,,.Pg -l'-hp lr1f)(i f; ('0//' ,,, .. ,-,,:,reef to bv ff)O(P Of•O(!)i)riQi'e i·hon 'j - -~- ''-"'·1,' ----'~ '• ~, '"'J '---' •. <.,,_.._,! ''-··- ' I •- ,~ ,, '-.., -.. \.. ,_, - ' .,._ '-- ·""-'1 -t·•• "" "''' 

arrwnding the list of peonitted ur special Jund uses in the current zoning dislricf: io of/ow the uEe, 
!t 1Notild be inapproprici:e to amend the zoning te;d: for C-l Loec1i Busin1~~;s zoning disU·ict to 

allow a Medical Marihuana f-•rnvisioning Center, retail f;:.dlities within Lhe C-1 zoning distrk:t 

10. The requested rezoning wi/1 not creote rm isolated or incompatible zone in the neighborhood. 
The proposed rezoning does not create an incompatible 'spot zone' v.rithln the area and it 
proposes reasonable continuation of Corridor Commercial zoning to the east and west. 

ZMl\ l9·-J6 - Zoning Map J-\mendmeni: with Conditions 

Parcel: 64--14-08-354-010 

Rt:)(; ')l 1 ,-t·l()i"" -•~~,C .., l 

Wherew~ The City has received an application for a Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions for 228 

W. Walton Blvd, identified as PIN 64-14-08-354-010 from WWiam l\lloesta for the rezoning of the 

aforementioned parcel; and 

Whereos, The Planning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request in regards to the City's 

Master Plan and the request conforms to the goals and vision contained within the plan; and 

Whereas, The Plairning Division has reviewed the applicant's rezoning request and the requirements set 

forth by Section GJ30L!- of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Planning Division has determined the 

aforementioned request and proposed intended use of the property complies with the City of Pontiac 

Zoning Ordinance; and 

Whereas, In accordance with the procedures outlined in the Zoning Ordinance, Sectlons 6.802 as it 
relates to Zoning Map Amendments, the request has undergone the required: Technical Revievv, Public 
Hearing, and Planning Cornrnission Recommendation; and 

Whereas, On January 8, 2020, 2 Public Hearing was held, and in consideration of public opinion, the 

Planning Cornrnission recomrnends City Council approve the Zonlng Map i\rnendment with Conditions 

request for 228 W, Walton Blvd, approving the change from the current C-1 Local Business zoning 

district to C-3 Corridor Commercial zoning district with Conditions; and 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolvec/1 That the City Council for the City of Pontiac approve the Planning 
Commlssion recommendation for the Zoning Map Amendment with Conditions (Zl\/lA 19 .. 16) request for 

228 W. Walton Blvd, also known as Parcel l\lo. 64-14-08-354-010 to amend the current site zoning from C-

1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor Cornrnercia1 zoning district with Conditions. 

4 



z 19-16 Zoning Map 
------------~--

PARCEL NO: 

PROPERTY ADDRESS: 

APPLICANT: 

CURRENT ZONING: 

PROPOSED ZONING: 

INTENDED USE: 

64-14-08-354-010 

228 W. Walton Blvd 

William Moesta 

C-1 Local Business 

C-3 Corridor Commercial 

Medical Marihuana 
Provisioning Center 

mendme 



SlJ3JECT: 

;, of !3·li,;i!lid~i}n]g Srl-f{2:ty 
13' ~iL,i\.-.l'\ ff '"fi[ f ~:f :(;; ~[tI~1

/ .I;3I 'J~=) t~l 
.. rJ-tStJ \Vocd h'Hr(i .i\ .. \)~ j F(;f~fTI A.C\ lV! tL'}.¥ 1 (,:ju'i ,:~.sJ.:L~-5[)~)~,\ 

'fCLEPH(Ji~iF~: 2,.i(L'JS;i,28HO I Fl~:X: ;~.:nL 75t},2g27 

VH-ml GU5T/,:,,,::,5soi\J1 (U\i>JM!MG l\/La.i,,l/\i:1H< 

PLAi'-H1lli\lG OP/lSiOi\! 

ZfVI/-\ 19-16 
VVfLLi/.\~\/1-}\/l(JEST/i, 

:z23 1.1v~ V\fl\tTOi\J gL\/t; I PiN 64<L4-03-354H•OIO 

CJ LOC/\L BUSINESS TO C-3 CORRIDOH COfvi1\1H:RG/'.>,L 

The, City of Pontiac is in receipt of application [ZfvlA 19-16j for a Zoning Map 1-\mencfrnent [rezoning] with 

condition::; per Section 6,807 of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance for parcel number 64-14-08-354-0lO, The 

,33 acre site is located on the nmth side of W, Vv'a!ton Blvd, betvveen VV, f\iew York rwenue and C,rlisle 

Street William I\Jloesta, the applic2n-t n':'.quests a rezoning from C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Cornmercial, The rezoning would ensure that the proposed Medical i\llarihuana Provisioning Center is 

prnperly zoned, In accordance \Nith ~~ection 6.802 of the City Zoning Ordinance, the request for Zoning 

Map 1\mendment requires a technical n'c\Jievv, Public Hearing, recomrnendation by the Planning 

Co1-rm1ission 1 and a final decision by City CounciL 

Surnmarv 
1. The 2,pplicant requests rezoning the subject site frorn C-1 Local Business to C-3 Corridor 

Comrnen:ia L 

2, The Master Plan identifies the subject site as Entrepreneurial: Residential 1 Cornrnercial 8,1, Green_ 

The proposed zoning designation is consistent with this future land use designation. 

3, The subject property is compatible with C-3 zoning standards, 

4. If the Zoning Map i\rnendrnent is approved, the applicant vvou!d be required to comply with 

Article 6, Chapter '21 and Section 6.204 Site Plan Review of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance, In 

addition, ensure all requirements to the Medical Marihuana Zoning Ordinance [Ordinance 2.363] 

are mel: and obtain a iVledical IV1arihuana license from the City of Pontiac and the state, 

5, The applicant submitted a condition to the rezoning that the rezoned parcel will revert back to 

the current zoning district if a properly licensed cannabis facility is not operating and not open to 

the public vvithin three years frorn date of Pontiac City Council approval of Zoning Map 

Amendment with Conditions. 

1 



16.ccording to the City's 2014 lv1a.stc·r ::>Ian Update it is \Mith \:=);;tr2orcHn .. 3rv assets and bright, nev\r r:conot-riic 
pwspects on which to build a revised dr:::::tiny ,,vith r12w r=:tai!/cc,rnrnercial dev2k.,prn2nt it is 1,vith thi~ 

spirl"t that i~. 2rnbedded in the iViaste( Pian update. 

The subject site ls designated as Entrepi'eneuri2l: R:~sldentiaL Cornrnen:ia! 81- (:in::en n·1ixed··U:St? land u~;t~ 

cat2·gory that allows flexibility in us2 and for,n to encourage the positive re-use of under-utBized riroperty 
or redevelop locations around the City. These areas have been ick:,ntified v1ith the pot,?ntial to be 

catalysts for other positive re-invest,nent in thes2 neighl::orhoods ;=md/or corridors IN entrepreneurs to 

stZJtt business2s and create jobs in the process, 

Areas to th(~ east and \Nest are also pionnr-:.,cl as Entrepreneurial: Residentialf Cornrnercial 8-t Green . .£\rca to 

the north is planned as Traditional Neighbol'i:ood f~esiciential, while Entrepreneurial: industrial, 

Commercial,?, Green,. a mixed-use land USE c::;tegory is designated to the south. 

The Zoning Map Arnendment request ccirnp!ie:.: with the requirements found within the Master Plan's 

Entrepreneurial District classification, which is to spur neighborhood/corridor ecc,non,ic cleveloprnent in 

areas to 2ilow flexibility to attract creative and rnofr1,rtecl entrepreneurs locatsd i,1 the fv1edical 

[Vlarihuana Oveday District described in Cl:-din~1 nce 2363 - iVledical l\/larihuan::1 z,~:1ing Ordinance. 

Based on ou( technical review of the proposed rezc,ning, the subject site is locat,:d in the \fv'alton 

Boule112rd Medical IVlarihuana Overlay Di:.;t;-ici:, in consideration of the proposed rezoning from C--1 Local 

Business to C-3 Corridor Comrnercizd zoning dist1ict, the following ivledical iVlarihuana uses; Pi-ovisioning 

Center, ~;afety Cornpliance and :>2cure Transpcrtedz1cilities rnav be located on this site, if ali rei:p.ti(ernen!: 

of the Medical iVladhuana Zoning Ordinanc,:c [Ordinance '.!363] are IT,et and obtain 2 Medical !Vlarihuana 

license frorn the City of Pontiac and the st2t:;;. 

Existing Zoning Olstricts 

Properties to the east and west are zoned C-3 Corridor Cornrnercial and C-1 Local Business. North of 

subject site is zoned R-1 One Family Dvvf:!iing. South of the site is zoned C--3 2nd C-L The proposed 

Zoning Map Amendment provides a mi;< bet\,,1eer1 various comrnercial zoned areas. 

The Pontiac Planning Commission must consider any of the follo1,ving criteria [section 6.804, A-JJ that 

apply to the rezoning application in making findings, recornrnendations, and a decision to amend the 

Official Zoning ~/lap [Section 6.804]. /\dditionally, the section a!so stipulates that the Planning 

Commission rnay also consider other factors that are applicable to the application, but ,,,-e not listed 

among the ten criteria. To assist in the evaluation of these and other criteria, we offer the fo!lovving 

findings of fact for your consideration. 

Section 6,804 provides review criteria for the Planning Commission to utilize in making its findings, 

recommendations, and formulating a decision_ The ten stated critetia are listed below with our findings: 

2 



~L Consistency vviLh the 900/s1 policit::s unL't 
conditions hovr:: chnnge(i s-ince tfte, j\lJoster Plcn H/OS oc!opte,.-( consiste1]CJJ 1;vit!·s recerIJ: 

✓:fevelo/J/t,12ot trends in the ot"eo sholl be considered. 

The subj;~ct site conforrns to the goals and objecthi<::s includc:cl in tht:! 
Iviastei Plan created Entrepreneurial di.strkts to i-2develop ancl encoun~;z~ ada;Hive i'e-use of 
properties l:o alkwv va1riow; intensity of cornrnt~!'ci2I uses located within specifo:: ar2::1::: :3nd 
foster the i-eb1rth of the \Nalton Blvd Corridc;r. 

2. Computibility of the site's phvsico/, ~;Eological, hydrological ond other environrnentoi feotures 
with the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district. 

The site is currentiy developed as a r2staurant use; so it's geologicai, hydrniogical, and other 
2nvirnnn,enta! feature'.: are no longer present on the site. 

3. Evidence tile o,oplicont cmmot receive a rc:asonaiJ/e return on inve:~trnent throi:,;;h r!evefoping the 
propertv with one (1) or more of the uses perrnitted under the current zoning. 

The applicant did not demonstrate an inability to receive a reasonabl,~ return on investn12nt 

with the existing zoning. 

4. Compotibility of all the potential use~; al!m-ved io the proposed zoning distric, with ::urroundfnQ 
uses one! zoning in terms of land suh:obiiity1 irnpoc!'s on the environment, densit)', notur2 of use: 
trc~,tfic in1pocts1 oesthetics1 inj:rastructure ond pofenUol influence on property vo!ues. 

Th? development of a 1\/le,dical fv1ai-ihuana Pmvisioning Center is cornpatib!e with 
smrnunding uses and in terrns of land suitability, impact on the environrnent,, density, traffic 
irnp,:icts, 0esthetics, and infr0structur<=:. 

5. The copocity of the City's utilities nnd services sufficient to occornmodote the us;=,s perrnitted in 
the reque.sted district v,ithout compromising the health/ so.f.ety and we/fore of the City. 

The Cit/ s utilities have capacity and services will be sufficient to accornrnodatc the proposed 
Medical fvlarihuana Provisioning Center and not compromise the City's heaith, safety, and 

welfare. 

6. The ,:opabilit.y of the street system to sofe!v and elficienUy uccommodote the expected traffic 
gene roted hy uses permitted in the requested zoning district 

Walton Boulevard is a Major Road under the jurisdiction of the City of Pontiac. The proposed 
development will not impact the ability of this Major Road and adjoining mads to handle 
potential traffic. 

7. The boundaries of the requested rezoninq district are reasonable in re/otionship to surroundings 
cmo' construction on the site will be ob/e to meet the dimensional regu/otions for the requested 
zoning district. 

The boundaries of the rezoning are l'easonable in relationship to surroundings and zoning 

district dimensional requirements. 

8. ff o rezoning is appropriate/ the requested zoning district is considered to be more appropriote 
from the City's perspective than another zoning district. 

With al! the previous findings of fact, the boundaries of the proposed C-3 zoning district are 
reasonable from the City's perspective and comply with the vision found in the City's Master 

Plan. 

3 



C) S}Jecific use, rezor1in(J the lond i:.~ l:_.·onsidered to be rr1ort: n1::,,propriate thon 
c:n1encfi1Jg the fist 0( pt-:,,rrr>it:rec/ OJ' speciol fond uses in the CI_trrer)i: zoni,1g tU.s·tri;:,t to oilovv tJ1::.:: u:::e, 

It vvou!d br-? inat)i:,ropriate to ?iffiend the zoning t:~Ai: for C-J Local Busine:ss rnnirig disti'ict to 

;;llov\1 a Medical iVladhuana Provi::,ioning Cer1t:2r1 ret;3i1 i'acilitie:; v\/ithin ti1e C·J zoning clistrici. 

UJ The (equested rezoninq will not creote on isolated or incornpotible zone in the neighborhocd. 
The propo:;ed rezoning does. not create an incompatible 1spot rnne 1 within the cll'2a and it 
prnposes reasonable continuation of Corridor Cornrr1erci.sl zoning to the east and west. 

?er the review requirenv~nts found in Section 6.804 of the Zoning Ordinance and out findings, we suggt,st 

that the Planning Cornrnis.sion consider recommending to Gtv Council the request frc,m VVHliam Moesta 

to rezone Parcel f,lurnber 64·14-08-354-010 [application ZiVi,6- 19-16] fmrn C-1 Local f3usin02.ss to C-3 

Corridor Cornrnercial. 

4 



,::Tl :; i 

Tc1bf;rn;::c:ii? Fe ;th 
;' ./-~:: n; e. --------~----~--·--- ~-----"·- ______ _ 



u 

InstnJctions: 
Plarming at 1nft 30 p1ior {o tbe. regularly :;ch.eduli:-d .P.L1nning <_:onunission 1neeting. 
all respects \Vith suppotiing docun1(:;nt] such os :~ite prrJ_perry :.::urvey etc. 
consideration the CorJJ.n1is~;ion in ui.::conJiJIJCC" ,v1rh tLe artacbed DcheduJe~ 
rev)e\v proccs~;. 

Address 

State 

Fax: 

is 



:1 
;j 

!l 
!i 
i.\ 

_, 

_,A.D .. 

the o \V11 er 

bi'-j(ir,; me p2r:;onr.!(v c.ppeured the a hove rwn1.r-:d per:__~on, whe heir;g 
du: r:onientt th~~recif. 11nd rha.1 :he same is tn1,:. ofh;s:hcr 01•:n -'u1oh·.1,,d','•' ,-:xcept a~ r~? t.!u.~ r,wfre:rs 

;\~-::!<~1~1 Pt:bh'c. Ook!and Cm1n,-:_i:
1 

1\-.hc.higrw 
:\~11 Ccrmni::.sio,; E.rpiri!s 



5 c'o'.'.~lC{)r.!t'>L-'S 

FHA.:.6<>1;':-Fli:,,-,,1fl"''"'1'f>'1!. 

fff.!A (,,c.t~ Scc·•v"~ 

The information provided her1lV.1!th has been 
deecJs, plats, t:ax maps, .~urveys and other public records. ll ls 
map or survev and Ls not intended to be used as one. Users 
information so;Jrces rnenlioned abovB when questions arise. FEMA flooptain data may 
nm always be present on the map. O~!dand Ccunt-y E-xecutive 1 inch = 50 feet 

Orjkfand Countv One Stop Shop 2100 Ponti8r; Lake Road Bklg. 41 V/est IA'.aterford. !A.l ~82L.-B Pf10!11:;~ 248-858-0721 \,Veb: w1.-•v•1;,r,advantageoBkianrJ.co, 





:-'> 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Planning Division 
47450 Woodward Ave" Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-2800 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

HONORABLE MAYOR, COUNCIL PRESIDENT AND CITY-COUNCIL 

VERN GUSTAFSSON- PLANNING MANAGER 

DONOVAN SMITH- CITY PLANNER 

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF DEPUTY MAYOR, JANE BAIS-DISESSA 

RESOLUTION TO SCHEDULE PUBLIC HEARING 

2020-2024 CITY OF PONTIAC PARKS & RECREATION MASTER PLAN 

JANUARY 16, 2020 

In compliance with the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) requirements for Parks & Recreation 

Masterplan adoption, the City of Pontiac City Council on January 14th, passed a resolution to schedule a 

Public Hearing for the 2020-2024 Parks & Recreation Master Plan on January 21'\ 2020 at 12:00pm. 

Immediately following the Public Hearing the Planning Division is requesting the Pontiac City Council vote 

to adopt the resolution for the provided 2020-2024 Parks & Recreation Master Plan, ensuring the Planning 

Division's ability to submit the final adopted plan to the Department of Natural Resources by February 1, 

2020 deadline. 

The current final draft of the 2020-2024 Parks & Recreation Masterplan can be viewed on line at: 
www.Pontiac.Mi.Us/P&RMasterPlan 

The Planning Division request the following actions of City Council at the regular schedule meeting on 

January 21, 2020: 

1. Public Hearing for comments related to 2020-2021 Parks & Recreation Master Plan 

2. 2020-2021 Parks & Recreation Master Plan Resolution for adoption on January 21st 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
Department of Building Safety & Planning 

Mayor Deirdre Waterman 

Planning Division 
47450 Woodward Ave• Pontiac, Michigan 48342 

Telephone: (248) 758-2800 

City of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024 

For the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan 

Resolution for 2020-2024 Parks and Recreation Master Plan Adoption 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has undertaken a planning process to determine the recreation and natural 

resource conservation needs and desires of its residents covering a five-year period for the years 2020 

through 2024, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac began the process of developing a citywide recreation plan in accordance 

with the most recent guidelines developed by the Department of Natural Resources that were made 

available to local communities, and 

WHEREAS, residents of the City of Pontiac were provided with a well-advertised opportunity during the 

development of the draft plan to express opinions, ask questions, and discuss all aspects of the parks and 

recreation plan, and 

WHEREAS, the public was given a well-advertised opportunity and reasonable accommodations to review 

the final draft plan for a period of at least 30 days, and 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on January 21, 2020 at Pontiac City Hall to provide an opportunity 

for all residents of the planning area to express opinions, ask questions, and discuss all aspects of the City 

of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Pontiac has developed the plan as a guideline for improving recreation and 

enhancing natural resource conservation for the City of Pontiac, and 

WHEREAS, after the public hearing, the Pontiac City Council voted to adopt the City of Pontiac Parks and 

Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Pontiac City Council hereby adopts the City of Pontiac Parks and 

Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024. 



~ti..~ 
~

1

1,11"t\\Ks, RECREATION & SCHOOL FACILITY MAP 

City Park or Facility 
1 N,ron Perry Park 
2. Art Dunlap P8rk 
3. Art Heaton Pert< 
4, 8aldWln Park 
5. 8eaudotte Park 
6 . Bowens Senior Center 
7. Charlie Herrl,on Part< 
8. Che<rylawn Park 
9. Clinton River Tr~II 

10. Cryalal Lake Perk 
11. Dawson Pond Park 
12. ewo11 Centor 
13. Fer,y Femis Park 
14. Fisher Streat Park 
15. Galloway Lake Park 
16. Hawthorne Pork 
17. Hiddon River Park 
18. Indian Villego Park 
19. Jaycee Park 
20. Lakeside Park 
21. Madge 8urt Park 
22. Mottio McKinnoy 

Hatchett Park 
23. Motor & Montana Park 
24. Murphy Park 
25. North Kiwanis Park 
26. North Spur Trell 
27. Oakland Park 
28. Oliver Ployllold 
29. Optimitt Pork 
30. Rlchardaon Park 
31. Rotary Park 
32. Ruth P~teraon Community 

Cenler 
33. Shlrtey & wrnard Perk 
34, SO<Jth Kiwanis Paii< 
35. Stood Park 
36. Trtnlty Mlaslonary Bapllat 

Elizabeth Lk Rd 

Church Park 
37. Washington/Argyle Perk 
38. Youth Recreation & 

Enrichment Center 

Other Roc, .. ttonal Facility 
39. Community Bockyord 

on Home Street 
40. Links Bl Crystal 

Lake 
41. Saginaw Green 
42. Salvation Army 

Pontiac Community 
Center 

43. Ulllmete Soccor 
Ar0MS 

44. Wessen Tonnis Club 

0 

Huron St 

• 
G 

Golf Dr 
Educational Faclllty Notre Dame Prep 

A. Alcott Elementary Academy 
B. M s & Technology J. Oakland Schools Tech 

Academy of Pontiac Campus NE 
C. 8akor College K. P.E.A.C.E. Academy 
0 . Bethune Elemenlary L. PonUac ~demy for 

(Former) ExcellMce 
E. Howthorne Etemtnlary M. Pontiac High School 

(Former) N. Pontiac Middle School 
F. Herrington Elementary 0 . Walton ChMor Academy 
G. lnternallonal T•chnology P. Webber Media Arts 

Academy/WM RC Academy 
H. Owen eromontaryl 0 . Whitman Elementary 

u 
24 

D 

e 

Walton Blvd 

Columbia 

Montcalm St 
;> 

0 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

:i Cl 
• 
• • • • • • . . 
• $ :!;I 

Q) 
::i 
25: 
5· 

~ 

Pike St 

Auburn Rd 

~ 
r 

e ;,:: 
CD 

F 

Featherstone Rd 

c,1,,1,1 "-e;, 
~~ 

~ 
Osmun < 

• • • • 

a. 

a, 
$ 

• • s.o~th.BLvd_ • 
CRT Pontleo Connector 

GJ. • • 

Square Lake Rd 

J 

0 
,:, 
a. 
~ 
(I) 

:;o 
a. 

• • 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Kennedy Center R. Wisner School (Former) 
lt'le~ ,-!MN41w~ ,W1-tM'f)IIMlll,cn, fU .... .... 1,.i1111'l W• "'41jN, 111f'1•)1 WIIIVlllll,......~1 ,i ffllO\tlfOwllpfH .. \1Hflll11190t..,,,...Y l"lt~ftOIIH""""'4• """" •~- Ul ffl 'l"'OIMtOl!...« .. W•""'IIOfltil),j'(N ~ ........... W>f/1.,_....,,,._,... 

14 City of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024 



·• 
,l 

CITY-OWNED RECREATION FACILITIES • '-l 
b [ 

C: 0, u .; 
~ C :§ E '4 

l C: 
Cl -~ 

"' "' 2 ;:- C, 

Q: 
;. Q: 0 ::, E: 
u a, ,g 0 .9, ;;e .;;: 0, .?:, 

i"j 
u 0, ,,, b ~ ::, 

0 iii "' ;;: 
~ 

C ,,, .:; a, 
0-,,, ~ :0 C ;;; f 

., 
'4 ti: ~ b u u., 

~ 
.. u ·;;; ::, ;;; :: u u 0 "' .; 0) "' ~ <( (II u .0 "' a. <( C ,,, 

·.; 
't 't 

., ., ""' a, ;. -'< :E a, 
': u u .?:, "' "' ,!;! E "' "' .. u "' "' -" 0 (II 

~ CY n "- .,, u a, a, in a, 0 ii: ii: 

C C: 
~ 

0 ., 
<= f 

~ 
:; ~ -~ ~ 
"' :;; ~ ,,, a. ::, L 

i ~ 0- ::, 

~ J!: <I) w == b L 0 s ., :;; ;;; .!! b (II ~ :i ;;; ::, u .. 
.0 C: 0 a. 0 .c if! f '4 ;;; .c ::, .. 0, u 

<I) 0) "' e 0 a. C ~ .0 0, ., C u u 0, g J!: ~ 
., -~ "" ,f 

~ i i= 'i= "" 
u C: ~ ->< 

(II .. u C I 0 .. u u ~ ., _,, ~ 0 ~ t :r, ct ti: a. Q: "' "' "' 
Map 
No. Park Name 

----------5 Beaudette Park L· C y ----------10 C tal Lake Park 1 y 

15 Gallowa Lake Park L 2 2 y y y 4 
16 Hawthorne Park L; M CP 2 4 y y y y y 
19 Ja cee Park L CP 2 4 5 y y y y y 3 
24 Mur h Park L; 8 CP 3 7 y y y y y 
27 Oakland Park L CP 14.43 3 6 1 2 y y y y 1 1 2 y 

Community Parks Subtotal 350.9/l . 10 ll 2 4 3 7 7 4 7 4 

4 Baldwin Park NP 2.90 2 6 y 

7 Charlie Harrison Park NP 1.37 2 6 y y 
8 Che lawn Park L NP 5.21 2 4 

20 Lakeside Park L NP 4.35 2 3 y 

22 
Mattie McKinney NP 1.93 
Hatchett Park 3 y y y 

25 North Kiwanis Park L NP 26.95 2 3 
30 Richardson Park L NP 4.15 2 7 1 y 

31 Rota Park L CP 7.06 2 1 2 
33 Shirle & Willard Park NP 1.78 2 7 1 y 

L NP 5.36 2 7 1 y y 1 1 
61.0/l . 2 8 0 0 2 10 0 0 0 2 0 

2 Art Dunla Park MP 0.43 2 1 2 
3 Art Heaton Park MP 0.31 2 6 

11 Dawson Pond Park MP 0.19 2 2 y y 

13 Fer Farms Park . MP 0.17 3 

14 Fisher Street Park L MP 0.43 2 1 
17 Hidden River Park . MP 0.20 3 1 y y 

18 Indian Villa e Park L MP 0.67 2 2 y 

21 Mad e Burt Park MP 0.18 2 6 
23 Motor & Montana Park MP 0.19 2 1 
28 Oliver Pia ield MP 0.80 0 6 
29 O timist Park L MP 1.26 2 3 
35 Steed Park MP 0.31 2 7 

36 
Trinity Missionary 

MP 0.25 2 2 
Ba list Church Park 

37 Washln ton/Ar le MP 0.24 2 1 

Mini Parks Subtotal 5.63 0 4 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 

6 Bowens Senior Center . cc 2.23 3 1 y y y y 

12 Ewalt Center cc 1.26 3 5 y 

32 
Ruth Peterson 
Communl Center 

cc 0.66 3 6 y y 

38 Youth Recreation & 
Enrichment Center 

. cc 11 95' 3 y y 

Commun/ Canters 415 . 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

{_ lllt\lf P(11J.:.s ••m~•• mml!IB!Eom•••-----------•••--n - mmlEDlDW ______________ , ·----
. · · · · • , ••mm--l'illl'ill-l'illl'illl'ill••••o•l'illHHl'illEll'illEI-

A11 P;irks ToW/s 530.46 12 19 • 2 1 7 5 • 28 7 1 1 G 8 4 

Legend: CF>= Community Park; NP= Neighborhood Park; MP= Mini-Park; CC= Community Center; LP= Linear Park; Y = Yes 
L = Land & Water Conservation Fund; B = Bond Fund; M = Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund; C " Clean Michigan Initiative 
• The Youth Recreation & Enrichment Center is a leased facility and the acreage Is not Included 

City of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024 15 

' 



xt 
\)~~i\)'?i\) 
\l'!,1 

HIDDEN RIVER PARK 

Accessibility Acreage 
Rating 

Classification 

l_3_JL 0.20 MINI PARK 

DESCRIPTION 

Hidden River Park is located on Saginaw 

Street in Downtown Pontiac. This mini-park 

is now owned and maintained as a city park 

since the Pontiac Downtown Development 

Authority was dissolved. 

RECENT PARK IMPROVEMENTS 

• Converted water fountain to a decorative 

planter 

• Installed Motor Cities interpretive 

wayside 

GRANTS AWARDED 

• None 

13 N Saginaw Street 

Park Identity 

PASSIVE RECREATION 

Council 
District 

1 L PICNIC _j ... I _ 1 ____ 

POTENTIAL PARK UPGRADES 

• Outdoor cafe tables and chairs 

• Overhead outdoor patio globe string 

lights 

• Repair steps 

• Consider adding fitness equipment and 

offer fitness classes/programs in the park 

48 City of Pontiac I Parks and Recreation Master Plan I 2020-2024 



The lnfonnatlcn ~ herewtt\ has bttn COO\flUfd trorn rtOOldtd dud,, pl11,, In mnp1, 1urveys and other public ,1eord1. It 11 noI a t,gaJty 
raco1d11d map Of tlNWy and II not Intended lo bl uMd •• one. UIOft thoulrJ '4l0Wtl tho lnl(lfTMllon $01,1(001 montlonod 1.boYO when qu111 ona lrlH, 

11 Decorative Planter 

City of Pontiac Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2020-2024 

2017 Aerial Photo 

49 



~ 
~~i"i" \11'1 NATIONAL PLANNING STANDARDS 

In the process of determining and prioritizing 

needs, it is not only important to understand 

the national trends in terms of participation 

levels and popularity, but it is also imperative 

to compare the provision of local recreation 

facilities to published standards. This 

comparison of existing facilities to standard 

acreage and facility recommendations is 

another tool to assist in determining needs 

within the City of Pontiac. However, it should 

be noted that the latest available national 

standards were developed in the 1980s and 

1990s and may not fully reflect today's needs 

and trends. 

Acreage Standards 
The National Recreation and Park 

Association provides a recommended park 

classification system which recognizes 

that open space has various functions. 

The system categorizes open space as 

either mini parks, neighborhood parks 

or community parks. The desirable 

characteristics relative to size, function, 

amenities and acreage provisions per 1,000 

people (where available) are identified in the 

Recreation Facility Classification Standards 

Table. 

RECREATION FACILITY CLASSIFICATION STANDARDS TABLE 

PARK NRPA GUIDELINE MINIMUM RECOMMENDED CITY PARK SURPLUS OR 
CLASSIFICATION ACRES/1,000 RE8IDENTS1 ACREAGE FOR PONTJAC2 ACREAGE DEFICIENCY 

Mini Park** 5.0 to 8.0 acres - ,~ 
15-30 acres2 5.63 acres Deficiency** 

- ,_ 

Neighborhood 
1.0 to 2.0 acres 60-120 acres2 61.06 acres Within Range 

Park 

Community Park 0.25 to 0.5 acres 300-4 79 acres2 350.96 acres Within Range 

All Parks 6.25 to 10.25 acres 375-614 acres 417.65 acres Within Range 

Adapted from: 
' Lancastar. R. A., E.d. Recreation, Par/<. and Open Space Standards and Guidelines. Alexandria, VA: National Recreation and Park Association, 1983.; 

Mertas. J. D. and J. R. Hall. Park, Recreation. Open Space and Greenway Guidelines. A/e)(andrla. VA: National Racraatlon snd Park Association, 
1995. 

, Based on Amer/con Community Survey 2016 5-Yeor EslimDte; 59,920 

** It should be noted that a school or other recreational provider may offer these types of 
facilities in the City. 

184 City of Pontiac I Parks and Recreation Master Plan I 2020-2024 





TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Cc: 

RE: 

CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Honorable Council President and City Council Members 

Dr. Deirdre Waterman, Mayor 

November 14, 2019 

Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor; Anthony Chubb, City Attorney: and 
Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

Resolution to Re-Appoint the following individuals to the City's Planning 

Commission: Mona Parlove for a term ending June 30, 2021 and Dayne 

Thomas to the Planning for a term ending June 30, 2022. 

As you are aware, the Planning Commission has several members with expired terms, in 

order to address this matter, for your consideration, the following resolution is 

recommended: 

Whereas, Article V. Section 2-372 of the Municipal Code, the Planning Commission is 
comprised of six non-elected officials and the Mayor or his/her designee; and 

Whereas, there are currently several appointments with expired terms on the Planning 
Commission; and 

Whereas, according to State Law and City Ordinance, the Mayor shall appoint the 
commissioners subject to the approval by a majority of the City Council. 

Now therefore, be it resolved that based upon the recommendation of the Mayor, that the 
City Council reappoint Mona Par/ave to serve on the City's Planning Commission for a term 
ending June 30, 2021 and to reappoint Dayne Thomas to serve on the City's Planning 
Commission for a term ending June 30, 2022. 

Attachments 

jbd 



Subject: Folfow up to the interview of my Planning Commission appointment 

Good afternoon, City Council Members -

Thank you for the opportunity to talk with you yesterday. I know how busy everyone is, so I appreciated the time you 
each ,had to share with me. 

After we parted company, I had a few thoughts I wanted to share. The initia.l interview I had with the Council Members last 
year was much shorter. This year, we certainly did not have enough tlme to discuss all the topics mentioned, nor did I 
have the ability to answer all.the questions which were asked of me, due to the limited time of our meeting. 

Please be aware that I've had over 45 agenda items I was asked to consider while having the honor of being a Planning 
Commissioner, thus far. While one ltem of the 45 seemed to be the prlmary focus of our meeting yesterday -- the drag 
racing event on the Siiverdome grounds - the other 44 items which were considered over the course of this year were 
important items to the appropriate petitioners, as well. If there were any outstand.lng _concerns from those approxi~ately 
44 items, I think someone would have mentioned something yesterday ... so, from that perspective, I am happy that most_ 
everything else seems to be satisfactory .. 

In regard to my showing empathy and compassfon toward my fellow residents who have come out to express the[r feelings 
about the various petitioner's requests for variances or special exceptions from the Planning Commission, a few moments 
from my "tenure" come to mind. The first was when a petitioner wanted to build a Dollar Store within an extremely close 
proximity to our City Hall. Though the parcel was zoned to accept that proposed business, neighbors came to share their 
opposftion to having an adjoining parcel modified to allow the business to move forward. After much consideration of 
the residents' comments and overall positions, I voted to deny that petitioner's request forthe variance that was sought. 

In November, a petitioner wanted to re purpose a former General Motors plant site, and needed a special exception permit 
to move forward with his intended plan. Sever~! residents came out, and shared their views. When it was discovered the 
petrtioner was potentially creating a nuisance at the site for the neighbors (with noise & dust), we worked co_flectively to 
address the solution to the: request. Per always, I was extremely mindful of the residents that evening. The decision made 
by my fellow Commissioners and myself was one that reached a middle ground, which seemingly worked for pretty much 
everyone in the room that evening. 

In some cases, while I do listen to all resii:lents who publicly sha're their feelings, I may not feel it is best for the City to "go 
along with" the residents who have spoken their views at a Planning Commission meeting. For example, a couple of 
months ago, a long-time business owner ln Pontiac wanted to·add packaged beer and win_e sales to his existing Dollar 
Store business. Many neighbors came out in full support of that business owner, and s~ared their reasons of support of 
the request. However, my personal feeling was that we already have far too many opportunities to purchase alcohol in 
the city. Even though neighbors came out to let the Commissioners know their feelings, I voted to deny the requested 
variance. I was evaluating the long term ramifications, while being mindful of what I think is best for our City. The 
requested way of "enhancing'' an existing business by that business owner dld not make sense to me, even ~hough the 
majority of the neighbors who spoke that night were in support of the business owner's request.· 

Dr Taylor Burks brought up extra vehlcle parking at the Sllverdome, which had been approved for car storage. That vote 
had taken place prior to my being a Planning Commissioner. She also mentioned a former Plai:ining Commissioner who 
had chosen to taf<e. herself off the Commission. No one has stepped away from the Planning Commission while I have 
been a part of it, so I don't know what Dr Taylor Burkes was referencing. 

As a follow up to the drag strip event In August on the Silverdome grounds ... .! did subsequently learn the event was a huge 
success for those who put it on, So much so, the event creators are hoping to repeat the event in 2016, ideally somewhere 
in Pontiac. I understand there were over 10,000 people who attended. To have more than 10,000 people for one event 

Mona Parlove 1 

. ,· 



in our great city for only a few hours is pretty Impressive, I think. I spoke to several people who visited, and they all had 
a fun time, they loved seeing the tremendous turn out, and I did not hear one negative comment. I still think the vote to 
approve the permit was the right vote for Pontiac, overall. If the request were to put a permanent drag strip at that site, 
my vote would not have been the same. 

As for the Silverdome, itself, I am beyond disappointed in what I see has happened to that structure. However, the 
Planning Commission does not have the authority to enforce code violations. I mentioned that fact the night we approved 
the permit for the drag strip event Please do keep that one fact in mind, Council Members, especially as we move for.ward 
- the Planning Commlssion must consider what is put in front of us as a commission, and we can't make building owners 
and business owners comply with code requirements. My suggestion for Pontiac to deal with the Silverdome owner would 
be to find a way to place liens on the title to the property, for outstanding fees and fines which he most certainly must owe 
the city, by now. Hopefully, .that will be the Impetus for him to start to comply with what is required of him as a property 
owner, When he selfs the property, he would have to pay off the liens that have been placed against the title, or he cannot 
transfer the ownership to the new buyer. 

When Mayor Waterman asked me to be a Planning Commissioner, I was extremely humbled and Incredibly honored. 
still feel that way, and I shall for as long as my commisslon lasts. My mind is open when I attend every Planning 
Commission meeting. I listen closely to all information presented by those who speak and share what they have to share. I 
am not capricious in my decisions. I do not know where the term "executive branch" comes from, when asked yesterday if 
-that fs what I consider when l render a decision for a petitioner. Rather, I try to look ahead at what is best for the City, as 
a whole. 

I have had several people tell me that they like to watch our current Planning Commission meetings when we are ln 
session, or, when the meetings rerun on the cable channel. They appreclate how we have respectful dialogue with each 
other, as well as the whole approach we take in being courteous to those who come into the Planning commission 
meetings. l appreciate those comments, and I think our group of Commissioners are very gracious in how we treat each 
other and our guests ln the audience -- which would include our fellow residents. As CommJssioners, accepted our 
appointments without any provisions for monetary compensation. We do our best, with the overall concern we have for 
a better Pontiac. · · 

ft Is critical for all of us to collectively move Pontiac forward, Every single day, I do what I can to improve the undeserved 
reputation our City has, that our community is perceived as 'undesirable'. That the City has 'nothing to ~ffer', and why 
would anyone want to llve or work whe,re all of us have chosen to live and work. 

I believe I can be more effective in helping Pontiac succeed by being a Planning Commissioner. I am extremely proud of 
what I have contributed to the City, thus far. l have done so by conducting myself in a very fair and resp~ctful waV: while 
in the Plannf()g Commission chambers, as well as in all aspects of my life. I believe we all lead by example, and l think it ls 
critical to treat every single person with dignity. 

I very much look forward to continuing my work as a Planning Commissioner. Additiooafly, l hope we can all find a time to 
sit together, as a collective group -- the Mayor, City Council Members, Zoning Board Members, the Planning 
Commissioners, and anyone else within our City Hall who wants to see the City of Pontiac succeed -- so we can not only 
learn a bit more about each other, but all work together in moving Pontiac forward with the same cohesive plan and 
positive outcome in mind. 

Thank you -

Mona Parlove 
Associate Broker 
Hall & Hunter, Realtors 
248.514.0685 cell 

Mona Parlove· 2 



Moha Parlovs1 Pfal'U'llng Commission Application 

rnte rests/Rea~om,/ Qim Jlf/catlons: 

r atn extremely passionate abou~ being a part of the posftive momentum l:hot I~ underway In Pontiac •. 
My bellef Is the level of Integrity In our Oly needs to be simultaneously raised and embraced as a 

· reallstlc expc-ctatlon for our community, As a long-tlme res1dent, l feel I have a t!')sponslbillty to help 
make a difference. It IS a fallacy tu thlhk that "someone else'' Is going to suddenly show tip and "fix" 
everythlng, Rather, those who are going to make the needed coi-rectlons and Improvements are · 
people jtt>t like myself...the ones who are trying be good neighbors, whlle going through their day, 
Understanding that we are all responsJhle for where we l!ve, and how we are each the f11ce and.the 
fabric of our community Is a core belief of mine, and-an 1mportant attribute which l would bting to 
the Plannlng Comll)lsslon. · · 

lloards/Commlss!ons/Comml!:tees on which I have served: . . 
Pon(1ac Master Plan Steering Committee, from March 2014 to present 

District 2 Adv!soiy Group, co-chair, from January 2014 to present 

~1ectlve off)ces I have held: 

Nolle 

Other organlzatlons, Pertlnant,Educatlon, Hobbies/Interests 

r have been a llcensed real estate agent since 1987 (27 years1 and a broker for 10 years), practicing 
· niy profession on a full time basis the entire time. I have acquired an expansive (menl.BQ database 

of Information, as It pertains to construction and materials used ln resldentlal1 and someUrnes, 
commerclal eppllcatkins, WhJle se!Vlng on the Planning Commission, t WIii be able to-readlly access 
this acquired lnformatlon while making the Important declslons presented to the City by various 
petltloners. · · 

ALso, I have been in virtually every communlly lh Oaklan~ Counly, as well as scores In Wayne, 
Macomb, Uvlngston &. Washtenaw Counties, The •real tlme11 experiences of tnmsar.tlng real estate In 
these communities a/fords me the oppo.rtunily to see how the various nelgh!iorlng munfdpalltles 
f11nction on a dally basis, as well as Wlth an overall tonger view. 

I am a member of the Pontlac Women1s Round Table, focusing on posl~ve lntemctlon and change In 
the City of Pontlac. 

Interests are e.xpanslve - food ( cooking &. enjoying); r.mnlng, biking, lnterar.ftng with people, att, 
reading, writing, mustc ofalf types, tr.,veJ, volut1teertng, photography, Independent films, baseball, 
tiy!ng to .learn something about everything, being a goo(! person that m<1kes a small difference every 
day If possible. 

To be a:;ked to be a Planning Commissioner Is an honor beyond my greatest dreams, If confirmed, I 
will do all I can to help move ~onl:lac forward and In a dlrectJon the residents can all be proud of, 

i; 
' 
1· 

I. 
I. 
I: 



' ·1 
! 

j 

I 

• PATE SeP,ternber 30, 20'14 

NAME Mona Parlove 

/\OORESS_ 

Clfcl( liero lo plin1 !he completed 
CIT'I Or P /01,n for malling lo lho Cl()' Clerk. 

CANO/OAT!: QUESTIONNAIRl: 
f-J0ARDS & COMMISSIONS 

COlJNCILDISTfllCT_. _____ _ 

-----------,----. ZJP48341 

PHOHE (home)'-----~---

EMAIL_ 

PHONE /b1Js!nese or cell).; 

ln~ CUy of Pontleo Wishes to tlmnk you for you1 Interest ln servJng ·es a Citlzen Repreaantallve on a. Board or 
C6mmJs.slon. Your Candidate. Questionnaire wlU be kept on mo and onto red for oonslderalkm for posted openings on 
any Boord or Commission foot you expressed an Interest In tot a period of two years, Pleas~ fee! lroa to submit an 
updated C-andldato Ques1fonoefre at an)'1Jme, 

Pleese ha advised !hat t~e Information contained fn Ihle QuesU0Imalre Is not ~'<ll!Ndentlal end will bi, reyfaWed ll\• 
tl)s Mayor, Cltycounon and otharapproprlllte personnel as vacancies or openings ocnur on ih• vntloils 13oards or 
CommlllS!ons. Page 2 of this Candidate QUestlonnalio may also be fnofuded In any City Gounoll Meeting Agenda 
Packet which Is publlshed ond mado ~valfabla for pUbllo Jnspeotlon fn PTlnt und an llle lnternel Your address, 
phona numbers and &fllall, contained horn on Page ;l will not be p~bUshed ln an Agenda Pacl<et, 

· Information re!otlva to tho below boards or commissions oan be found on the City's wobpaga at 
Yill~QJrllJJ!h • . 

80/>JtDS/COMMISSIONS ON WHIO/l'(OUWANTTO smve 

Lumlnted bv Clty covno/1 

0 Board of Appeals 
0 lnC<Jme Tax 8011rd of Revfaw 
0 Zoning Board of Appeals 
• Board of Revlow ' 
• QHne;al Employeo Retlrement System 

.Rev0:!Ji4 

Appointed b.Y Mayor, 
Connrmed bv Chy QQ.I.IJlQ!{ 

0 Tatlncromen(f'lna110Jng_Authorlly/Brow11flald 
RedevolopmentAl/lholity 

0 Hlstorlo Dlstrlot Commlsslo~, N•C.'"°"""'m"'"• 
D Loc;,I Offioaro compennatfon Commission ' 
0 Arts Cornmlsalon 
0 Constrno11on Coda aoard of Appea'.s,·1~eo,,,,.ic.,r,;;'11,,, 
0 ?la1m1ng Comm!ssk>n 
D Housing ComInfsulon1 11>'-'!~,ilii, 

Pag~ 1 of 2 



or-.-cUPATION • Hosldenllal Real Esialo Sales 

. ,() 
llOMDo/COMMlSSIONS/COMMITTWl ON WHICH YOU HAVE~Ef!VED fli$7 MUl<ICl~AIJTIES AND OA,ESY,'f_;:; 

runnvE OFFICES THAn'Oll HAVE f!ElO 

None 

OTHER 0!113.'J'I/ZATIONS PERTINf'.NT EOUCAi!ON Hoasl~S/INTtllESTS@ 

AODlrlONAL INPORMATION 

P,!oaoo roturncomplaled form to; Cllyof Ponllllll, Cfetk's 0/ll<m, 474,,0 WocdwardAvonue;PonlJM, Ml 4834201 fa>: to 
248.7o0.31BD or nilr.k the e--mnll tllb on the Jlr~t Pae• lo SMd lotm i,y o-moll, 

OISClOSURF. OF POTEN11Al. CO/IF!.J(JT OF lmEREST 

In ordett:> avoid any ix,tentloJ coni!fotortnte1,;,,1, l, !h, undo1Glgned, a/jl'ee r.ot to ho Involved In ony reoorrummda!lons or 
doolsfon maldng,ego1dlng any ilgencylles) <>r anUtyOes) rorwhloh I sel'/e lo the following c,,pocl\)'{les) which rnay contractor 
sUbllOntnm!: wlth th• City of Poollao, 

Agen~Y. .,.,Doos no! ~ 
C~panJtylnV 

SiiM••~re:-l/'-!'-,C4'-"-"~*

DaM __ -"'-+--+--t--

Rov-Oi/14 P~gnl! afZ 



July 31, 2018 

Dear Honorable Mayor Waterman, 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve the Pontiac Planning Commisslon. 

As you know, I have served on the Planning Commission since 2.011, and during my tenure as Chairman, 
I have preslded over more than 400 planning proposals and in turn, the Planning Commission have 
approved some of the biggest developments in Pontiac history, including but not limited to: 

• • M-1 Concourse • Ultimate Soccer • Wessen Lawn Tennis Club 
• Challenger Stamping 
• Willlams Aerospace • GM Global Propulsion Systems (multiple expansions) • Wasllington Junior High School repurposed·as Senior Living 

Indeed, during my tenure as Chair, the Pontiac Planning Commission have recommended for approval a 
glut of vacant Industrial sites that were repurposed into viable, tax revenue producing enterprises for 
which the City of Pontiac can be proud. 

Moreover, during my tenure the Planning Commission have approved hundreds of smaller commercial 
enterprises as well which are the lifeblood of any community, and altogether, large and small, it has 
resulted in hundreds of thousands of dollars of new tax revenue for the City of Pontiac. 

I am especially proud of the fact that a multitude of business owners, large and small, have thanked me 
for the respect and dignity for which they were treated by our commissioners during their presentations 
to Planning Commission: lam proud of that, because as Chair I seek proper decorum and for the most 
part, my wishes have been fulf!lled. 

In closing, my professional background earned over 40 years in Marketing, Product Plannlng and Product 
Development with some of the largest corporations fn the world has uniquely prepared me to Chalr the 
Pontiac Planning Commission, so I think I am well suited to bring professional guidance and expertise to 
the Planning Commission for another term. 

Thank you for the opportunity to serve you and the City of Pontiac. 

Respectfully, 
Dayne Thomas 
Chair, Pontiac Planning Commission 
Chair, ·GM Modern Housing Board of Dirr:ctors 



Personal Bio 
D9yne Thomas 

Chairman, Pontiac Planning Commission 

- ; JiF~Jt 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

dayne@daynethomas.net 

Dayne Thomas was born and raised in Pontiac, Michigan but a business odyssey took hlm across the US 
and Asia Paciflc ... and then back! 

He worked for companies as diverse as GM, BMW, AfG, Aon and Gulf States Financial Services and lived 
and.worked in cities as diverse as Pontiac, Deriver, Houston, LA, NY, Hong Kong, Tokyo and Melbourne 
(Australia). 

Dayne Thomas was born and raised on Pontiac's near north side in the modest, Historic nefghborhood 
known as GM Modern Housing ... a planned housing development conceived by Pierre DuPont, GM 
Chairman and largest shareholder of GM {at the time), as well as patriarch of DuPont Companies. It was 
Pierre DuPont who visualized and developed the 61 acre site cfrca 1919 to 1926 • 

. Dayne Thomas family moved to Pontiac in the mid 1930's ... his father worked at Baldwin Rubber 
Company (a major automotive supplier of the day), where he was responsible for Chemical Department 
and Salvage ... while his mother worked at Pontiac Motor in Salary Payroll. 

The family moved into their home on Oliver Street, (GM Modern Housing) In September 1945 and 
Dayne Thomas was born in November 1945. 

The tragic death of Dayna's father in 1956 meant the family would not move from Oliver Street, so the 
modest house on Oliver Street, in GM Modern Housing is the only family home Dayne Thomas has 
known. 

Dayne Thomas matriculated Pontiac Schools: Mccarroll Elementary, Lincoln Jr. High School and· Pontiac 
Northern High School where he played Football, Basketball and Tennls (as Captain) and graduated in 
1963. Prior to his senior year, he was nominated by VFW to attend prestigious, Wolverine Boy State. 

Dayne Thomas went on to study Communication Arts at Michigan State l:Jniversity where he graduated 
with a BA Degree in Advertising in i972 after proudly servlng 2nd Infantry Division in the Republic of 
Korea.during the Viet Nam era, He earned the rank ofSergeant/SPS and was awarded an Army 
Commendation Medal as well as an Expedition Medal awarded by Republic of Korea. 

Next page ... 



Dayne Thomas commenced hls professional career wfth GMC Truck & Coach in Pontiac, Michigan as a 
Sales Engineer in 1972, 

., 
Jn 1980, as the domestic auto industry was suffering thru major economic turmoil, Dayne Thomas 
accepted a post with BMW of North America as a District Sales Manager living in Denver and overseeing 
the Rocky Mountain Region, .... 1 

Then in 1984, Dayne Thomas moved to Southern California (Orange County} and accepted a post with 
General Group of Companies as Sales Manager in the Automotive Financlal Services sector, overseeing 
the contlguous US. · · 

In 1996, Dayne Thomas accepted a post with AIG as Regional Director In Southeast Asia, based in Hong 
Kong, overseeing consumer financla! service operations ln Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Tha!land1 

Philippine's and Guam. 

In 1998, after overseeing the successful launch of consumer financial service programs with AIG. In 
Southeast Asia, Dayne Thomas accepted a post with Aon Corp as Regional VP based in Tokyo, 
successfully overseeing a consumer financial service program developed speclfically for Best Denk!, 
Japan's largest electronic retailer, 

In 1999, Dayne Thomas took a post with Aon in Melbourne·(Austrafia) as RegionalVP overseeing 
consurner financial service program developed exclusively for Fisher-Paykel, New Zealand's premier 
Consumer Appliance Manufacturer. 

In 2002, Dayne Thomas repatriated to the US and accepted a post with Guff States Financial Services (an 
. affiliate of Toyota Financial Services) as Sr. Manager, Product Development based in Houston, TX. 

In the fall of 2009, Dayne Thomas came full circle and moved back into the modest boyhood home 
where he was raised ln Pontiac. The neighborhood is listed upon the Natlonal Register of Historic Places, 
and he has set about to restore the home true to its historlcal character, 

Dayne Thomas says: "So many people have helped me, so I came back...to give back. Whlle others 
moved out .. ! moved back ... to give back to the city that gave me a st.art". 

Dayne Thomas ls single {dlvorced1 no children) and proudly serves as Chairman, Pontlac·Plannlng 
Commlsslon; serves as Chair, GM Modern Housing Board of Directors (an association he founded), and 
served upon Master Plan Advisory Corrymittee 

Dayne is also owner/proprietor of."Oliver Street Farms and Vineyards", a personal revitalization project 
founded to clean up Urban blight and repurpose abandon parcels and convert dust and blight Into 
Community Gardens ... Orchards ... Vlneyards ... and Open Alr Farmers Market! -

Dayne Thomas is a proud son of Pontiac ... and a proud Alu.mnus of Michigan State University! 

t 
' . i 



Professional Overview: 

Personal Resume 
Dayne Thomas 

Pontiac, Michigan 48342 · 
davne@davnethomas.net 

More than 40 years of experience in Marketing, Product Planning and Product Development 
domestically and internationally. · 

Professional Skills: 
Planning, development and executfon 

Professional Experience: · 
GMC Truck & Coach (HQ, Pontiac, Michigan): 

• Sales Engineer 
• Market Research Analyst • Government Sales • M uniclpal Fleet Sales 
• Government Sales 
• Di~trict Mgr 

BMW North America (HQ, Montvale, NJ): 
• Sales Manager serving Rocky Mountain Region 

General Group International (HQ, Harbor City, California•Automot!ve Financial Services): 
• Sales Manager serving contiguous 48 states 

American International Group (HQ, New York-Insurance & Financial Services): 
• Regional VP (Southeast Asia Regional Office-Hong Kong, seNing Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, 

Philippines' and Guam) . 

Aon Corp (HQ, Chicago, Illinois-Insurance & Financial Services); 
· • Regional Director (Tokyo, setvlng Japan and Korea) 
• Regional Director (Melb•-tirne, Australia, serving Australia and New Zealand) 

Gulf States Financial Services (HQ, Houston, Texas-Automotive Flnanclal Services): 
• Senior Manager/Product Planning, serving US Gulf States) 

Civic Engagement: 
• Chair, Pontiac Planning Commission (2011 to 2018) 
• Chair (and founder}, GM Modern Housing Board of Direct~rs (2016 to 2018) • Owner/Proprietor: Ollver Street Orchard/Vineyards/Community Gardens 

:; 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Cc: 

RE: 

Honorable Council President and City Council Members 

Dr. Deirdre Waterman, Mayor 

November 27, 2019 

Jane Bais DiSessa, Deputy Mayor; Anthony Chubb, City Attorney: and 
Garland Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

Resolution to Re-Appoint the following individuals to the City's Planning 

Commission: Lucy Payne for a term ending June 30, 2023 and Ashley 

Fegley to the Planning for a term ending June 30, 2022. 

As you are aware, the Planning Commission has several members with expired terms, in 

order to address this matter, for your consideration, the following resolution is 

re com mended: 

Whereas, Article V. Section 2-372 of the Municipal Code, the Planning Commission is 
comprised of six non-elected officials and the Mayor or his/her designee; and 

Whereas, there are currently several appointments with expired terms on the Planning 
Commission; and 

Whereas, according to State Law and City Ordinance, the Mayor shall appoint the 
commissioners subject to the approval by a majority of the City Council. 

Now therefore, be it resolved that based upon the recommendation of the Mayor, that the 
City Council reappoint Lucy Payne to serve on the City's Planning Commission for a term 
ending June 30, 2023 and to reappoint Ashley Fegley to serve on the City's Planning 
Commission for a term ending June 30, 2022. 

Attachments 

jbd 



Lucy Payne 

February 5, 2014 

City of Pontiac Community Planning Commissioners 
47450 Woodward Ave. 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 

RE: City of Pontlac Planning Commissioners 

To: The City of Pontiac Mayor and Planning Commisslo11ers. 

The attached Jesume will pl'ovide details of my previous and present quaUfieatfo11s au1 
experience. 

Fo1• the past 26 years, l have served as a Patient Relatiollll Representative and Cusromer Service 
Trainer 11t Saint Joseph Mercy Oakland (SJMO). During that time, I have worked diligently to 
foste1· :mutually beneficial relationships with not only the associates, administrative team, med.lea! 
staff, nursing and anellltu-y personnel and the City of Poutlao oomnmnity. In my pnsr role, I 
t;1ngaged the hospltal persomt~l, physicians ln resoMag/mediating challenging lssue.s that ofte11 
involved xisk cases with multiple departments and services in meeting customers expeelat:lons 
am! s11tis.f nctlo_u. T))e scope of my wod< provided me with a unique perspectiw on the: wallts and 
needs of paiien.fu, their families, and tllo cotnnmnify needs as well. 

ram p~oud lo have been involved ln a number of SJMO committees that werc.chai'ged with 
orehcstriitlltg some of SJ:MO most successful quality hnprovement activities such as Customer 
Service Tl'aining, Emergency Depnrtment process improvement Task Force, Emergenoy Wait 
Ti.me and Dress-Code initiatives, I was also very instrumental ill collaborating with SJM:O 
BuUdings and Ground Depactment, SMART 1ranspo.rtntion Se!'Vices and !he City of Pontiac 
Building Depm:tment in implementhig and the hullding of a bus shelter for the comfo1i of 
patients and the commtl!lity that.we Ute p~iblio transpoliation system. 

My area of experieMe inc!ude·organizatfonal mauagementi problem solving, i11vestigatio111 

mediation, behavioral management; grief consultlng1 intemotion with diverse groups and 
addressing concerns of the community, I nave also gained ex.perience through my work as a 
COJ1Sultant of a broad speotn\m of bnsiiws$ ex:posures to oase studies and best practices iu a 
variety of industdes as au illdepcndent business ow11er Payne & Payne Consulting, !LC, 



My educational credeutiala lMludc a AssocinteDegt·ee in Libernl Arts from Oakland Community 
College, Bachelor ofScfonce degree in Huma.n Rosouree Development ftom Ollkla11d University, 
Mastor of Arts degree iu Organlmiional Management and 11 Certificate of Mediator Training 
from Oakland Medication CenteL 

It has been my experience that collllllittees and boa\'ds are most effeotlve with individuals that are 
diverse in areas of knowledge, sk.llis and expertise, As a visionary, I am very interested in 
utilizing my skills in the revitalization of the City of Pontlao's .futnrn plans that promotes a 

. healthy and safe enviroruuent for our city residents , while generntinpevcm10 for the city. 

It has been my absolute plensure and at1 honor to servo with the City of Pontiac Mayor and 
Plaruung Commissioners. r look 'torward to unlh:ing my,experience .in buitdhig and bridging_ . 
gaps in communlcation, strategic planning, creative thinklng, collaboration, negotladon1 and. 
customer service. I look forwal'<l to :illy continual servlciltg the comuninit.y and collabo1mlng with 
you in designing the future City ofPontino . . -· 



CAREER SUMMARY 

P~OFtSSlONAL 
EXPF.RlENCE 

LUCY PAYNE 

An accomplished senio1'-level piitie11t relations representative witb. 27+ 
yearn of expede:uce managing customer gdevances at St. Joseph. Meroy-

. Oaldandin Poutiac, Michigan, a.457-bed health system serving a diverse 
patient population itt an urban setting. Collabomted. wlth. the CEO and C-1eve1 
leadership team, physicinns, risk management, nursing and others in resolving 
issues, Expertise hdnvestlgatlng and au.al. yzing grievance data to proactively 
fo1mulate simtegi.es for preveniing grievances and improving systems and 
processes. Grievance mitigation suppprted by aohleveruent of a Master of Al'ts 
in Organizational Management, a. Bachelor of Science in Human Resource 

1 

Development., a certificate fo Civil Mediator Trainiug1 and completion of a 
pre-licensing course in Life and Health Iusuranefl. 

P & P Consu/tlng, LLC, Bingham Farms, MlohiQM 
Conaultant - Organ!zational Management I 
l?robl~m Resolution / l\!lerliatlon 

2003 - present 
2003 - present · 

• Consulted on management and customer refat!o11s for a wide variety of 
businesses as a _principal with P & P Cousulting, LLC 

'Analyzed business process flow fot medicul group pracf1ces, n11tomobile 
dealerships, and financial se!'Vico~ foms; reoommended process 
improve~ents 

- Trained staffs in C\lstome1· servloo improvement t:echniqi1cs 

Saint Jog13yh Mercv-Oakland, Pontiac, Mfohfqan . 
Patient Relations Roprosentafivo 

Pef/ent Relations Management 

1984 -8/20i2 
1984 - 8/2012 

Managed customer complaints wi!hin St, Joseph Mercy-Oakland health system; 
complain.ts Involve a wide..ronge ofissues/diseiplines (e.g., sta~ billing, food 
service, housekeepin& safety, pnrklng, phannacy ser11lces> ph.ysioal plant, etc.) 
- Interviewed C\Jstomers to dete11nine nahlre of cumplaint; employc;d customer 

relationship management and mediation techniques to negotiate win-wln 
resolutions to. issues identified 

- Collaborated with physicians and nursing and ancillary department heads and 
staff to imptove customer service as well as investigate and resolve ousromer 
service issues 

- fdentified Incidents with the potential foi.• legal / risk mao.agement 
involvement; advised i·isk management department heads of complaint; 
collaborated with risk manag\lJneJlt on Jn.cident investlgatton; served as 
liaison between patient/family and risk.management department 
Docum.e11ted all customer oou1pluints on computer database; tracked 
resoJuti.011 of issues 

• . Analyzed billing issues and mnde determination regard!ug biJliug. 
adj~tnmnts /.relmlmrsement 
Reviewed pa(ient medicnl charts to determine validity of patient care Issues / 
complaints; met with deparlment hearls, mediool staft; nursing and ancillary 
staff to discuss issue resolution and future process improvement sl:t'at<igies 

Served as a liaison ~tween oustom.ers/families and the Gift of Life and .M:ichigan 



.L.ucy Rayne 
Page 2 ofi 

EDUCATION 

APPOINrMEN.S 

HONORS/AWARDS 

Eye Bank organizti.tions, encouraging ol'gan donation, providing gdef eounselii,g 
services, and eduoati11g pailents and families on organ, tissue audeye trruisplants 
Responded to oode onlls and served as liaison between family members and 
physfoians; provided gl'ief/cri:il.s counseling to patien,ts and fami1ie1J 

• Tc;,fliied in court proceedings and assisted aftornf}ys !.n lawsuit preparations 
Interviewed new hires for '.Patient Services Department; facUitate<l 01\e-on- oni:i 
and group lnterviews as well as candidate hil'ing-discusslous 

'reaching . 
0 Trained medical l'tlsidonts and all new einployeos Jn customedpatfont service 
• Managed Oakland University Internship Program for Patient Representatives 
Process Improvement 
• Analyzed all customer oomplaln1s to determine trends; met with department 

heads on an individual basis when trends were evident; followed-up to ensure 
problem resolution 

• ReeUgineered the patie11t del!th procoss and fetal demi~ protocols 
• Championed the instaUation of a bus sheliel' near tho hosplml grounds; :managed 

project coordlnatfo11 between tho hospitaPs Admlnistmt!ou and Bulldlngs and 
Grounds Dept., the Clty ofPontiao and SMART Trnnslt 

• C.omplled and. analyzed patient satisfaction data on Bmergonoy Services; drafted 
report/ presented findings to Process bnprovement Team; worked with 
physicians nnd staff to improve response time a11d oustmnm· relations 

• Resolved employee identification by customers challenge by instituting a oolor
ooded nniform (by staffclassiffoation) polioy 

• Collaborate<! with seo1tdt.y /llld xisk management personnel to reeugiueer process 
for securing patient belongings; instituted policy deblting depat'J:nenml budgeis 
for patient reirnbursenient for lost items 

.,_,W,'-"a=/e..,_rfo=rd~Sc"""f1""o=o/-=D=°ls .... tr""lo,.._t, ""'W""'at=erfo=rd"'", =M=lo=ht.;,.cga=o'--__ __,_1=97. H.2 / 1988"97 
Substitute Teacher (Grades K-i2) 1988 - i997 
fnstructlorml Technician (Grades K-12), 1974 -1982 
Montgomery Developmental Training Center 

Oetrolt Col{Qg_e of B/Jslness, Ferndale, Michigan 
Dean of Students I Proctor (part-Hme position) 
P•ntlac Schools/Senlors Fitness Program (part-time) 

Master of Arts in Organizational Managament 
Unfvel'sfty of Phoenix, Troy, Michigan Campus 

1976 ,-1980 
1976-1980 
1982~1982 

February 2004 

l3aohelor of Science In Human Resource Development June 1985 
Oakland U11fversi$1, Rocfwte1; Miohigcm 

CM! Mediator Trainlng, 40-Hour Course November 2012 
Oakland Mediation Center, Bloomfield Hills, MI 

Additional 'Professiotial DeveJopmen(: 
• Certifieute, Pre,.L,icensing Course ia Lifo & Henlth lnsun:mcc, firnmcial Services 

Institute, Novi, MI, November 2013 

• Plan.rung Comm.issioner, City of Pontiac, .MJ, 11/2012 - present 
• Board Membe,•, Baldwin Centet•, Pontiac, MI, 2005 • 2013 
• Committee Appointments at Saint Joseplt Mercy-Oakland, Pontiac, MI 

• Membe1·, Chief Executi~o Officer Arlvisozy Committee, 20oi 
- Member, Spe.aker's BllfCllll, 1991-8/20 [2 
• Founder and Chair; Hospital Grievance Comntlttei\ 2003 - 8/2012 

Honored as one of~e top donor fucilltators, Michigan Eye Ban~ 2000 





Objective 

Education 

Contribute to my communi!Y by volunteering for the Pontiac P!annlng Commission 

2009-2012 lawte.tu:e Techp.ological University 
Master of Architecture· Profe.~sfonal Degree J?togram 

• Concentration 'ill Sustainability Smdles · 

South.Edd, MI 

• GPA: 3.5 

2007 New Horizons Comp'titer Learning Center Troy, MI · 
Certifi~ate pf-Completion for Ma:cromedia C1asse:s 

• Web design with Dreamwea.ver and Ffasb 

200 i-200.5 La:wrence Teohnologjcal Uriiversity · Southfield, MI 
Bachelor of Science in Architecture 

• GPA:, 35 
,. Computer programs: Autoe::a.d. 2005, 3dmax, Adobe Illustrator and Photosh0p 
• Building Systems: commercial and residential . 
• Structural Engineering 
• Landscape Design 

1997-2001 Oakland Community College Oikland County, MI 
Associate in Applied Scienc.e: Computer In.formation Sysrems 

~ GPA: 3.7 
• Nerworldng 
• Web design 

Work lJx:_p;s:-ert-,.;',s,m"'ice.,e'----------------~---------------------
2.005-cui:tent Alexander BogaertS + Associates, P..C. Bloomfield Hi11s1 MI 

• Construction documentation 
• SPA, PDD, PUD d:ocum:entation 
• Website design and implementation, www.bogaerts.us & www.newconrifles.com 
• Head pf th¢ ITT' de_pa.i:tment ' 
• Code Re..~earqh 
• Presentation work: rendering clevadons and site plans 
• Specifications and mate:dals research 

2001-2006 Oaldand Hills Equestrian Center 
1999-2001 Riding I.nstru.ctot (Self-employed.) 
1997~ 1999 Springbrook Stables 

• Taught all aspects of equine care 

Oaklan.<l 1bwnship, MI 
Ma.comb Township, MI 

Sterling Heights, MI 

• Evaluated.. and trained horses for sale 01· purchase . 
• Job required extensive knowledge and communication skills 
• Taught classes containing 1--4 srudents ranging in ages &om 6-60 years. 
e Competed and trn.i,ned. students .ln l-):l.'!.11ter/Jumper sbows wi,thin Midwest 

2000-2001 Health Improvement Network S9u.th.field, MI 
• Performed dfice and clerical tasks: typed. dictatio1is and filed paperwork 

1999-2000 Goldner-Walsh Nursery . Pontiac, rv.r1 
• Provided. friendiy-customer service 
• Helped ,propagate new plants and cared for existing 

1996-1997 Ra<'.ettack Veteri:naiy Ser:vices . Livonia, MI 
• Performed office and clerical tasirn: helped with billing and handled collectfons 
• Assisted. veterinarians 
• Devdoped :x-rays .and sterilized. ~qulpment 

I· 



E. Ashley Fegley 

Pontiac, MI. 48341 

August 3, 201& 

Building, Safety and P1anning Division 
City Hall 
47450 Woodward AvenuC[ 
Pontiac, Ml 48342 
248. 758.2816 

RE: City of Pontiac Planning. Commissioner Appointment 

Dear Mayor Wate~an, 
For the past fifteen years, I have called Pontiac ho-me. I love the area, h1y neighb.ors and · 

the eon:tmunity. I a,m invested in the City of Pontiac and would like to continue to setyei.the City . 
as a member of the Pontiac Planning Commission. . 

I have been working in the build.ing industry as a Project Manager at Alex.a11der V. 
Bogaerts +Associates.for ove~ 13 years. The :fitrn. has a vas:t:experience with a '(Vi.di? :variety of 
bµilding typologies for over 39 year~. It has specialii~ :in i;6sidential housing s:µ,ch a'i 'Custom 
single family, production,.singfo family, condomiluums1:,zjlartments,. and seniw b,Qm,ing b1,1t aiso 

· takes on projec'ts•fuat are co.mmercial, qfnce and renovations. B~ip.g .a small .firm. I hav.e been :'' · :·. 
able to work on ma1i.y of these types ofproject:i.'. Cuttently, Ihav-0\bogun taking the A.RE 5.0 ·._: · ·: · 
NCAR.B tes.ts to earn my Architectural Licens.e- .atid hope to have.it~ year. I thoroughly enjoy ·· 

· my occupQiion arrd believe my experiencl$ is an as.set to the _con:i.m±$sion Imd the City of.Pontiac. 

~~~ 
E. Ashley Fegley 



CITY OF PONTIAC 

CANDIDATE QUESTIONNAIRE 
BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 

COUNCIL DISTRICT_· ______ _ 

DATE ____ A_u~gu'---st_3~,_2_0_1_8 ______ _ 

NAME ____ E_._As_hl__,ey __ F_e""""'gl,_e-'C,.y ___________________ _ 

ADDRESS:_~-~-"'------------- ZlP 48341 

PHONE (home),-'Jlili~~~!l_ __ _ PHONE (business or cell) 248,334.$000 

EMAIL'-------"'• 

The Cfiy of Pontiac wishes to thank you for your interest In serving as a Citizen Representative on a Bol';lrd or 
Commission. Your Candldate.Questlonnaire wl!l be kept on file·and entered for consideration for posted openings on 
any Board or Commission that you expressed an fnterest in for a period of two years, Please feel free to submit an 
updated Candidate Questionnaire at any time. · 

Please be advised that the information contained in this Questionnaire is not confidential, and w!II be reviewed by 
the Mayor, City Council and other appropriate pe·rsonnel as vacancies or openings occur on the various Boards or 
Commissions. Page 2 of this Candfdate Questionnaire may also be fncluded in any City Council Meeting Agenda 
Packet which is published and made ava!lable for public Inspection in print and on the fnternet. Your address, 
phone numbers and e-mail, contained here on Page 1 wHI not be pu~lished in an Agenda Packet. 

Information relative to the below boards or commtssions can be found on the City's webpage at 
www,Qontlac.mi.us. 

BOARDS/COMMISSIONS ON WHICH YOU WANT TO SERVE: 

8QQQUJ.1?d bv Qfty Councfl 

D Board of Appeals 
0 Income Tax Board of Review 
D Zoning Board of Appeals 
D Board of Review 
D General Employee Retirement System 

Rev 01/14 

Appointed by Mayor, 
Confirmed by City Council 

D Tax. Increment Financing Authority/Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority · 

D Historic District Commission, NoCouncll Connrmatfon 

D Locaf Officers Compensation Commission 
• Arts Commission 
0 Corntuuctlon Code Board of J\ppeals, No Covncll Co110rrnatlon 

II Planning Commission 
• Housing Commission, NocounollConf11matlon 

Page 1of2 



PONTIAC RE-s'll)ENT FOR; _+_/_-_1_5 __ ~_ years 

OCCUPATION ____ P_r_o,,_je_c_t _M_a_n_a_,,g'--e_r_a_t _an_Ar_c_h_it_ec_t_u_ral.:..· _F_l-'r,tn ___________ _ 

INTERESTS/REASON$/QtlAUFICATIONS 

· I have enjoyed -applying my professional experi~nce to serving on the Pbntiac Planning 
Commissi.on and would like to contir;iue doing so. 

BOARDS/COMMISSIQNS/COMMITTEES ON WHlCHY.OU HAVE SERVED (LIST MUNICIPALITIES AND DATES) 

Pomlac Planning Commlssion 2011 - cnrrent . 

. ELECTIVE OFFICES THAT YOU HAVE HELD 

None 

1'' 

OTHER ORGANIZATIONS PERTJ{IIENT EDUCATlON H0881ES/INTERESTS . 
2012-2016 - Pontiac Youth Assistance website design and implementation 
2014-2017 - Destination Imagiriatlon ream coach B.t Martell Elementary in Troy, MI 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Please return completed form to: City of Pontiac. Clerk's Office, 47450.Wooctward Aven:i,e, Pontiac, Ml 48342or:fax to 
248. 7 58.4744 or click the e-mafl tab on the first page to send for.rn by a.mail. · . . . . . 

D:lSOLOSURE Oi= POTENTIAL·OONFLICT OF INTERE:ST 

In order to avoid any potential-conflict bf Interest,.-!, .the undersigned, agree not to be involved in an~1 recommendations or 
decision rnal<lng regarding enyagency(les) or entlty(les) f'or which l serve In the following capacity(ies) which may contract or 
subcontract with the Clty of Pontiac. 

Agency: Alexander V. Bogaerts + Associates, P.C. 

ca:acity 1~ ~~.·ann.ger 
Slbmiture. Z:-'. . . .· . . . 
Date: '73 <i3·- Z4! I g> ·. : ·. . . 

Rev0l/14 · Page2 of 2. 





CITY OF PONTIAC 
ORDINANCE NO~ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 236J_.:< TO INCLUDE MEDICAL MARIHUANA FACILITY USES IN DESIGNATED 
OVERLAY DISTRICTS TO INCLUDE: 

ARTICLE 2, CHAPTER 1, SECTION 2.101, TABLE 1-ZONING DISTRICTS, SPECIAL PURPOSE ZONING DISTRICTS; 

ARTICLE 2, CHAPTER 2, SECTION 2.203, TABLE 2-USES PERMITTED BY DISTRICT; 

ARTICLE 2, CHAPTER 5-DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIC USES TO ADD SECTIONS 2.544, 2.545, 2.546, 
2.547, AND 2.548; 

ARTICLE 3-SPECIAL PURPOSE ZONING DISTRICTS TO ADD CHAPTER 11-MEDICAL MARIHUANA OVERLAY 
DISTRICTS, AND; 

ARTICLE 7-DEFINITIONS TO ADD CHAPTER 2 AND CHAPTER 3, SECTIONS 7.202, 7.203 AND 7.301. 

THE CITY OF PONTIAC ORDAINS: 
Article 2 Chapters 1 and 2 Section 2.101 Table 1 and Section 2.203 Table 2 Zoning Districts is amended to add: 

General Zoning 

~bbreviation Districts Abbreviation Special Purpose Zoning Districts 

-- -
To Remain The Same -- -

To Remain The Same 
MMOD Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts 

Amend Article 2 I Chapter 2 - Section 2.203 Table 2 (Uses Permitted By District). Not more than five (5) Medical 

Marihuana Provisioning Center Facilities are to be located in any one of the three Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts 

[MMOD], described in Section 3.1106. 

Commercial, Office, and Service Uses 

Residential Industrial 
Commercial Districts 

Districts Districts 

R-1 R-2 R-3 C-0 C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 M-1 M-2 IP-1 

Section 
Medical Marihuana Grower 0 0 0 

2.544 

Section 
Medical Marihuana Processor 0 0 0 

2.545 

Section 

Medical Marihuana Provisioning * * * 2.546 
0 0 0 0 

Centers 

----------- ---- -- ------- -- --------------- -------

1JPage 



Medical Marihuana Safety * * * * 0 0 0 
Compliance Facility 

Medical Marihuana Secure * * * * 0 0 0 
Transporter 

* Special Exception Permit Uses outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts 

0 Principal Permitted Uses in the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts 

* Section 
0 0 

2.547 

* Section 
0 0 

2.548 

21Page 



Article 2 Chapter 5 - Development Standards for Specific Uses is amended to add Sections 2.544, 2.545, 2.546, 2.547, 

and 2.548 as follows: 

Section 2.544 - Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities 

Grower means a commercial entity that cultivates, dries, trims, or cures and packages marihuana for sale to a Processor 

or Provisioning Center, as defined in the Medical Marihuana Facility Licensing Act ("MMFLA"). As used in this ordinance, 

Grower shall include Class A Growers, Class B Growers, and Class C Growers. 

1. Class A Grower means a Grower licensed to grow not more than 500 marihuana plants. 

2. Class B Grower means a Grower licensed to grow not more than 1,000 marihuana plants. 

3. Class C Grower means a Grower licensed to grow not more than 1,500 marihuana plants. 

A. General Provisions 

1. Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited on the premises 

of Medical Marihuana Grower Facility, and a sign shall be posted on the premises of each facility indicating that 

consumption is prohibited on the premises. 

2. The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by City investigators during 

the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone is present on the premises. 

3. All activity related to the Medical Marihuana growing shall be done indoors. 

4. Any Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall maintain a log book and/or database identifying by date 

the amount of Medical Marihuana and the number of Medical Marihuana plants on the premises which shall not 

exceed the amount permitted under the Grower license issued by the State of Michigan. This log shall be 

available to law enforcement personnel to confirm that the Medical Marihuana Grower does not have more 

Medical Marihuana than authorized at the location and shall not be used to disclose more information than is 

reasonably necessary to verify the lawful amount of Medical Marihuana at the Facility. 

5. The Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall, at all times, comply with the MM FLA and the rules and 

regulations of the Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs - Bureau of Marihuana Regulations ("LARA"), 

as amended from time to time. 

B. Security 

1. Medical Marihuana Grower Facility shall continuously monitor the entire premises on which they are 

operated with surveillance systems that include security cameras that operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a week. 

The video recordings shall be maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 30 days, and must be 

coordinated with the Oakland County Sherriff Department. 

3IPage 



2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Marihuana Grower while the Medical 

Marihuana Facility is not in operation shall be secured in a safe permanently affixed to the premises. 

C. Space Separation 

1. Unless permitted by the MM FLA, public areas of the Medical Marihuana Grower Facility must be 

separated from restricted or rion-public areas of the Grower Facility by a permanent barrier. 

2. Unless permitted by the MMMA, no Medical Marihuana Is permitted to be stored or displayed in an 

area accessible to the general public. 

D. Nuisance Prohibited 

1. Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities shall be free from Infestation by insects, rodents, birds, or vermin 

or any kind. 

2. Medical Marihuana Grower Facilities shall produce no products other than useable Medical Marihuana 

intended for human consumption. 

3. No Medical Marihuana Grower shall be operated in a manner creating noise, dust, vibration, glare, 

fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the boundaries of the property on which the Medical 

Marihuana Grower is operated. 

E. Licensing 

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a Medical 

Marihuana Grower Facility. 

2. Medical Marihuana Grower uses are fl-0-t-permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Medical 

Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

3 Medical Marihuana Growers are not permitted within the same facility with non-Medical Marihuana 

facility uses. 

F. Disposal of Waste 

1. Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its acquisition by any 

person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance with State law. 

2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste disposal are maintained 

in an adequate manner as approved by the City so that they do not constitute a source of contamination in 

areas where Medical Marihuana i•s exposed. 

41Page 



3. That portion of the structure where the storage of any chemicals such as herbicides, pesticides, and 

fertilizers shall be subject to inspection and approval by the local Fire Department to ensure compliance with the 

Michigan Fire Protection Code. 

G. Signage 

1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with State and local laws and regulations. 

2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or that is 

designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations: 

3. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior building signage. 

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Grower shall place or maintain, or cause to be placed or maintained, an 

advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through any medium: 

i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private elementary, 

vocational, or secondary school; and 

ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming pool or a church 

or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

H. Co-Location 

1. There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same facility other than those associated 

with a Processor and Provisioning Center. 

2. Multiple Class C licenses may be stacked in the same facility as defined by the MM FLA, and shall only be 

considered as one facility for the purposes of this subsection, provided that a separate application fee is paid for 

each Class C license. 

I. Building Design 

1. Floors, walls, and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they may adequately cleaned and 

kept clean and in good repair. 

2. Any buildings, fixtures, and other facilities shall be maintained in a sanitary condition. 

3. All necessary building, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical permits shall be obtained for any portion of 

the structure in which electrical wiring, lighting and/or watering devices that support the cultivation, growing or 

harvesting of marihuana are located. 

SI Page 



Section 2.545 - Medical Marihuana Processor 

Processor means a commercial entity th·at purchases marihuana from a Grower and that extracts resin from the 

marihuana or creates a Marihuana-infused product for sale and transfer in package form to a Provisioning Center. 

A. General Provisions 

1. The Processor shall comply at all times and in all circumstances with the MM FLA, and the general rules 

of LARA, as they may be amended from time to time. 

2. Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited on the premises 

of Medical Marihuana Processor, and a sign shall be posted on the premises of each Medical Marihuana 

Processor indicating that consumption is prohibited on the premises. 

3. The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by City investigators during 

the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone is present on the premises. 

4. Any Processor Facility shall maintain a log book and/or database identifying by date the amount of 

Medical Marihuana and the number of Medical Marihuana product on the premises which shall not exceed the 

amount permitted under the Processor license issued by the State of Michigan. This log shall be available to law 

enforcement personnel to confirm that the Processor does not have more Medical Marihuana than authorized 

at the location and shall not be used to disclose more information than is reasonably necessary to verify the 

lawful amount of Medical Marihuana at the Facility. 

5. • Processor Facilities shall not produce any products other than those marihuana-infused products 

allowed by the MM FLA and the rules promulgated thereunder. 

B. Security 

1. Medical Marihuana Processor Facility shall continuously monitor the entire premises on which they are 

operated with surveillance systems that include security cameras that operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a week. 

The video recordings shall be maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 30 days, and must be 

coordinated with the Oakland County Sherriff Department. 

2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Processor while the 

Medical Marihuana Facility is not in operation shall be secured in a safe permanently affixed to the premises. 

3. All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed, locked Facility in 

accordance with the MM FLA, as amended. 

6IPage 



C. Space Separation 

1. Unless permitted by the MM FLA, public areas of the Medical Marihuana Processor Facility must be 

separated from restricted or non-public areas of the Processor Facility by a permanent barrier. 

2.. Unless permitted by the MM FLA, no Medical Marihuana is permitted to be stored or displayed in an 

area accessible to the general public. 

D. Nuisance Prohibited 

1. Processor Facilities shall be free from infestation by insects, rodents, birds, or vermin or any kind. 

2. No Medical Marihuana Processor shall be operated in a manner creating noise, dust, vibration, glare, 

fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the boundaries of the property on which the Medical 

Marihuana Processor is operated. 

E. Licensing 

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a Medical 

Marihuana Processor Facility. 

2 Medical Marihuana Processor uses are 00t-permitted outside the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd 

Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

3. Medical Marihuana Processors are not permitted within the same facility with non-Medical Marihuana 

facility uses. 

F. Disposal of Waste 

1. Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its acquisition by any 

person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance with State law. 

2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste disposal are maintained 

in an adequate manner as approved by the City so that they do not constitute a source of contamination in 

areas where Medical Marihuana is exposed. 

G. Signage 

1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with State and local laws and regulations. 

2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or 

that is designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations. 

3. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior building signage. 

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Processor shall place or maintain, or cause to be placed or maintained, 

an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through any medium: 

- ---------------- ------ -------

71Page 



i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, vocational, or secondary school; and 

ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming pool or a church 

or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

H. Co-Location 

1. There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same facility other than those associated 

with a Grower and Provisioning Center. 

2. The dispensing of Medical Marihuana of Medical Marihuana at the Processor Facility shall be prohibited. 

I. Building Design 

1. Floors, walls, and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they may adequately cleaned and 

kept clean and in good repair. 

2. Any buildings, fixtures, and other facilities shall be maintained in a sanitary condition. 

Bl Page 



Section 2.546 - Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center 

Provisioning Center means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a Grower or Processor and sells, 

supplies, or provides marihuana to registered qualifying patients, directly or through the patients' registered primary 

caregivers. Provisioning Centers includes any commercial property where marihuana is sold at retail to registered, 

qualifying patients, or registered primary caregivers. A noncommercial location used by a primary caregiver to assist 

a qualifying patient connected to the caregiver through the department's marihuana registration process in accordance 

with the MMMA is not a Provisioning Center for purposes of this ordinance. 

A. General Provisions 

1. Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers shall be closed for business, and no sale or other distribution of 

marihuana in any form shall occur upon the premises between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

2. Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited on the premises 

of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center, and a sign shall be posted on the premises of each Medical 

Marihuana Provisioning Center indicating that consumption is prohibited on the premises. 

3. The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by City investigators during 

the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone is present on the premises. 

B. Security 

1. Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers shall continuously monitor the entire premises on which they 

are operated with surveillance systems that include security cameras that operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a 

week. The video recordings shall be maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 30 days, and must be 

coordinated with the Oakland County Sherriff Department. 

2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center 

while the Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center is not )n operation shall be secured in a safe permanently 

affixed to the premises. 

C. Space Separation 

1. Unless permitted by the MM FLA public areas of the Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center must be 

separated from restricted or non-public areas of the Provisioning Center by a permanent barrier. 

2. Unless permitted by the MM FLA, no Medical Marihuana is permitted to be stored or displayed in an 

area accessible to the general public. 

3. Medical Marihuana may be displayed in a sales area only if permitted by the MM FLA. 

9IPage 



D. Nuisance Prohibited 

1. No Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center shall be operated in a manner creating noise, dust, vibration, 

glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the boundaries of the property on which the Medical 

Marihuana Provisioning Center is operated. 

E. Drive-Through 

1. Drive-through windows on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center shall not be 

permitted. 

F. Licensing 

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a Medical 

Marihuana Provisioning Centers. 

2. All registered patients must present both their Michigan Medical Marihuana patient/caregiver ID card 

and Michigan state ID prior to entering restricted/limited areas or non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana 

Provisioning Center. 

3. No more than five (5) Provisioning Centers shall be established in each of the Medical Marihuana Overlay 

Districts including Cesar Chavez, Walton Blvd, and C-2 Downtown Overlay Districts. 

4. No More than five (5) Provisioning Centers shall be established in the C-1, C-3, and C-4 zoned properties 

combined outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

5. Within the Cesar Chavez and Walton Blvd Overlay Districts Provisioning Centers are located in the C-3, M~ 

1, and M-2 zoning districts. 

6. Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers are not permitted within the same facility with non-Medical 

Marihuana facility uses. 

G. Disposal of Waste 

1. Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its acquisition by any 

person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance with State law. 

H. Signage 

1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with local laws of regulations or State law. 

2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or that is 

designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations. 

3. It- shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior building signage. 

10 I Page 



4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center shall place or maintain, or cause to be placed or 

maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through any medium: 

i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private elementary, 

vocational, or secondary school; and 

ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming pool cir a church 

or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

I. Co-Location 

1. There shall be no other accessory uses permitted within the same Facility other than those associated 

with a Grower and Processor. 

111Page 



Section 2.547 - Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility 

Safety Compliance Facility means a commercial entity that receives marihuana from a medical marihuana facility or 

registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for tetrahydrocannabinol and other cannabinoids, returns the 

-test results, and may return the marihuana to a Medical Marihuana Facility. 

A. General Provisions 

1. Consumption, smoking, and inhalation of marihuana and/or alcohol shall be prohibited on the 

premises of a Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility, and a sign shall be posted on the premises of each 

Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility indicating that consumption is prohibited on the premises. 

2. The premises shall be open for inspection and/or investigation at any time by City investigators during 

the stated hours of operation and as such other times as anyone is present on the premises. 

3. Any Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall maintain a log book and/or a database 

identifying by date the amount of Medical Marihuana on the premises and form which particular source. The 

Facility shall maintain the confidentiality of qualifying patients in compliance with the MMMA, and MM FLA, as 

amended. 

B. Security 

1. Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall continuously monitor the entire premises on which 

they are operated with surveillance systems that include security cameras that operate 24-hours a day, 7-days a 

week. The video recordings shall be maintained in a secure, off-site location for a period of 30 days, and must be 

coordinated with the Oakland County Sherriff Department. 

2. Any usable Medical Marihuana remaining on the premises of a Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance 

Facility while the Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility is not in operation shall be secured in a safe 

permanently affixed to the premises. 

3. All Medical Marihuana shall be contained within the building in an enclosed, locked Facility in 

accordance with the MM FLA, as amended. 

C. Space Separation 

1. Unless permitted by the MM FLA, public areas of the Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility must 

be separated from restricted or non-public areas of the Safety Compliance Facility by a permanent barrier. 

2. Unless permitted by the MM FLA, no Medical Marihuana is permitted to be stored or displayed in an 

area accessible to the general public. 

12 I Page 



D. Nuisance Prohibited 

1. No Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall be operated in a manner creating noise, dust, 

vibration, glare, fumes, or odors detectable to normal senses beyond the boundaries of the property on which 

the Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility is operated. 

E. Licensing 

1. The license required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premises of a Medical 

Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility. 

2. All registered patients must present both their Michigan Medical Marihuana patient/caregiver ID card 

and Michigan state ID prior to entering restricted/limited areas or non-public areas of the Medical Marihuana 

Safety Compliance Facility. 

3. Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance uses are permitted in the Cesar Chavez, Walton Blvd, and C-2 

Downtown Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts and in the C-1, C-3, C-4, M-1 and M-2 zoning districts outside 

the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

4. Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facilities are not permitted within the same facility with non-

Medical Marihuana facility uses. 

F. Disposal of Waste 

1. Disposal of Medical Marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its acquisition by any 

person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformanc·e with State law. 

2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste disposal are maintained 

in an adequate manner as approved by the city so that they do not constitute a source of contamination in areas 

where Medical Marihuana is exposed. 

G. Signage 

1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with State and local laws and regulations. 

2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or that is 

designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations. 

3. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior building signage. 

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Safety Compliance Facility shall place or maintain, or cause to be placed 

or maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through any medium: 

i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private 

elementary, vocational, or secondary school; and 

---------- --- ------ - ---------

13IPage 



ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming pool or a church 

or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

H. Building Design 

1. Floors, walls and ceilings shall be constructed in such a manner that they may adequately cleaned and 

kept clean and in good repair. 

2. Any buildings, fixtures and other facilities shall be maintained in a sanitary condition. 

14 I Page 



Section 2.548 - Medical Marihuana Secure Transporter 

Secure Transporter means a commercial entity located in this state stores marihuana and transports marihuana 

between medical marihuana facilities for a fee. A Secure Transporter shall comply at all times with the MM FLA and the 

rules promulgated thereunder. 

A. General Provisions 

1. Consumption and/or use of marihuana shall be prohibited at a facility of a Secure Transporter. 

2. A vehicle used by a Secure Transporter is subject to administrative inspection by a law enforcement 

officer at any point during the transportation of medical marihuana to determine compliance with all state and 

local laws, rules, regulations and ordinances. 

3. A Secure Transporter licensee and each stakeholder shall not have an interest in a Grower, Processor, 

Provisioning Center, or Safety Compliance Facility and shall not be a registered qualifying patient or a registered 

primary caregiver. 

4. A Secure Transporter shall enter all transactions, current inventory, and other information as required 

by the state into the statewide monitoring system as required by law. 

B. Secure Storage 

1. Storage of medical marihuana by a Secure Transporter shall comply with the following: 

i. The storage facility shall not be used for any other commercial purpose. 

ii. The storage facility shall not be open or accessible in the general public. 

iii. The storage facility shall be maintained and operated so as to comply with all state and local 

rules, regulations and ordinances. 

2. All marihuana stored within the facility shall be stored within enclosed, locked facilities in accordance 

with the MM FLA, as amended. 

C. Sanitation 

1. All persons working in direct contact with marihuana being stored by a Secure Transporter shall conform 

to hygienic practices while on duty, including but not limited to: 

i. Maintaining adequate personal cleanliness. 

ii. Washing hands thoroughly inadequate hand washing areas before starting work and at any 

other time when the hands may have become soiled or contaminated. 

iii. Refrain from having direct contact with marihuana if the person has or may have an illness, 

open lesion, including boils, sores, or infected wounds, or any other abnormal source of microbial 

contamination, until the condition is correct 

15 I Page 



D. Disposal of Waste 

1. Disposal of medical marihuana shall be accomplished in a manner that prevents its acquisition by a 

person who may not lawfully possess it and otherwise in conformance with State law. 

2. Litter and waste shall be properly removed and the operating systems for waste disposal are maintained 

in an adequate manner as approved by the City so that they do not constitute a source of contamination in 

areas where medical marihuana is exposed. 

E. Transport Driver 

1. A Secure Transporter shall comply with all of the following: 

2. Each driver transporting marihuana must have a chauffeur's license issued by the state. 

ii. Each employee who has custody of marihuana or money that is related to a marihuana 

transaction shall not have been convicted of or released from incarceration for a felony under the laws 

of this state, any other state, or the United States within the past five (5) years. 

iii. Each vehicle shall always be operated with a two-person crew with at least one individual 

remaining with the vehicle during the transportation of marihuana. 

3. A route plan and manifest shall be entered into the statevyide monitoring system, and a copy shall be 

carried in the transporting vehicle and presented to a law enforcement office upon request. 

4. The medical marihuana shall be transported by one or more sealed containers and not be accessible 

while in transit. 

5. A secure transporter vehicle shall not bear markings or other indication that it is carrying medical 

marihuana or a marihuana infused product. 

F. Signage 

1. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with local laws of regulations or State law. 

2. It shall be prohibited to use advertising material that is misleading, deceptive, or false, or that is 

designed to appeal to minors or in violation of LARA regulations. 

3. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf in any exterior building signage. 

4. No licensed Medical Marihuana Secure Transporter shall place or maintain, or cause to be placed or 

maintained, an advertisement of medical marihuana in any form or through any medium: 

i. Within one thousand feet of the real property comprising a public or private elementary, 

vocational, or secondary school; and 

16 I Page 



ii. Within one hundred feet of a public or private youth center, public swimming pool or a church 

or other structure in which religious services are conducts. 

G. Licensing 

1. The License required by this chapter shall be prominently displayed on the premise of a Medical 

Marihuana Secure Transporter use. 

2 Medical Marihuana Secure Transporter uses are permitted in the Cesar Chavez, Walton Blvd, and C-2 

Downtown Medical Marihuana and in the C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, M-1·and M-2 zoning districts outside the Medical 

Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

3. Medical Marihuana Secure Transporters are not permitted the same facility with non-Medical Marihuana 

facility uses. 

17 I Page 



Article 3 - Special Purposes - Zoning District is amended to add Chapter 11 as follows: Chapter 11- Medical Marihuana 

Districts 

Section 3.1101 - Intent 

The purpose of the Medical Marihuana Overlay District (MMOD) is to provide for the placement of Medical Marihuana 

related uses as authorized pursuant to State regulations with a goal of minimizing potential adverse impacts on adjacent 

property owners, neighborhoods, and the City. 

Section 3.1102 - Medical Marihuana Overlay District Uses 

The following Medical Marihuana uses in the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts, provided the development also 

meets the Design & Building Standards set forth in Section 3.1112 and Article 2 Chapter 5 Development Standards for 

Specific Uses: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

Provisioning Center; 

Safety Compliance Facility; 

Secure Transporter; 

Grower; and 

Processor. 

Section 3.1103 - Medical Marihuana Overlay District Permitted Accessory Uses 

1. Off-Street Parking, Loading and Unloading as required per Section 4.307; and 

2. Any use that is not incidental to the permitted principal use. 

Section 3.1104 - Medical Marihuana Uses Requiring Site Plan Review 

All Medical Marihuana uses are subject to Site Plan Review set forth in Article 6, Chapter 2, Section 6.202 

Section 3.1105 - Licensing 

All operators of medical marihuana facilities must obtain a State of Michigan & City of Pontiac License. 

18 I Page 



Section 3.1106 - Medical Marihuana Uses Requiring Planning Commission Special Exception Permit 

Medical Marihuana uses outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts are subject to Planning Commission approval 

following the Standards for Approval of Section 6.303 for Special Exception Permits, and Article 2, Chapter 5, Development 

Standards for Specific Uses 

Section 3.1107 - Standards for Special Exemption Approval 

For consideration of Medical Marihuana uses by the Planning Commission, the Commission shall review each application 

for the purpose of determining that each Medical Marihuana facility on its location will: 

1. Not impact surrounding residential neighborhoods. 

2. Provide easy access for patients with accessible parking. 

3. Be adequately s€rved by utilities with sufficient capacity. 

4. Corridors and streets have the capacity to accommodate potential increases in traffic volumes. 

5. Demonstrate a safe and security environment, and uphold the public welfare of the community. 

6. Do not add unintended or impromptu costs to City and municipal services. 

7. Comply with Section 6.303 Standards for Approval in the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance. 

Section 3.1108 - MMOD Location Description 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District boundaries are established on the Medical Marihuana overlay district Maps. The 

Medical Marihuana Overlay District Maps may be a single sheet or composed of several map sheets and shall be kept on 

record in the City of Pontiac Clerk and Building safety offices. 

The Medical Marihuana uses permitted in the MMOD must meet the following requirements: 

A. OVERLAY #1: All properties along Walton Blvd and streets north of Walton Blvd, but not including areas north of 

Collier Road between the west side of Telegraph Road to Fuller Street including those contained within Overlay Map 1 

for this MMOD. 

a. Not more than five (5) licenses to operate a Provisioning Center shall be awarded in this Overlay District 

#1. 

B. OVERLAY #2: All properties along Cesar Chavez, starting from the Kennett Road Landfill and areas south to Cesar 

Chavez to W. Montcalm St 

Not more than five (5) licenses.to operate a Provisioning Center shall be awarded in this Overlay District #2. See Overlay 

Map #2 for this MMOD. 

---- ---------- -----

19 I Page 



C. OVERLAY #3: All properties within C-2 Downtown zoned district. 

a. Not more than five (5) licenses to operate a Provisioning Center shall be awarded in this Overlay District 

#3. 
-

The Overlay District is an effective regulatory tool to implement the establishment of Medical Marihuana businesses in 

the City of Pontiac. An Overlay District is applied over one or more previously established zoning districts, establishing 

additional or stricter regulations, standards and criteria for Medical Marihuana uses in addition to those of the 

underlying zoning district. 

Section 3.1109 - Permitted Uses in Commercial Districts {Non-Overlay) 

In addition to MMOD Locations as described in Section 3.1108, all medical marihuana uses, excluding Medical 

Marihuana Grower and Processor, are permitted in C-1, C-3, C-4, M-1 and M-2 districts subject to all requirements under 

this Chapter 11, including but not limited to Section 3.11010 - Buffer Distance Restrictions. There shall be no more than 

five (5) Medical Marihuana Provisioning Centers allowed in all of C-1, C-3, C-4, zoning districts combined, and shall be 

awarded based on the highest scoring applications received for those proposed qualifying locations that are not in one 

of the three Overlay Districts described in Section 3.1108 above. 

Section 3.11010 - Buffer Distance Restrictions 

A. The proximity of the proposed medical marihuana facility shall not be less than: 

1. 1,000 feet from an operational public or private school; 

2. 500 feet from an operational commercial childcare organization (non-home occupation) that is licensed 

and registered with the State of Michigan Department of Health and Human Services or its successor agency; 

3. 500 feet from a public park with playground equipment; 

4. 500 feet from a religious institution that is defined as tax exempted by the Oakland County Assessor; 

and 

5. Applicable only for properties located in a C-1, C-3, and C-4, Ml and M2 zoned properties located 

outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts: 

i. 250 feet from a residential-zoned property. Notwithstanding anything contained within 

Section 3.1107. B to the contrary, such distance between a residentially-zoned property and the contemplated 

location shall be measured at right angles. 

B. Such distance between the school, childcare center, public park, or religious institution, ar\d the contemplated 

location shall be measured along the centerline gf the street or streets of address between two fixed points on the 

centerline determined by projecting straight lines at right angles to the centerline from the primary point of ingress to 

20 I Page 



the school, childcare center, or religious institution, residential dwelling unit or from the playground equipment in a 

public park, and from the primary point of ingress to the medical marihuana facility along the centerline to the primary 

street address building entrance. 

1. Vacant residential-zoned lots shall be measured to the side yard setback as defined in Article 2, Chapter 

3, and Section 2.301 Summary of Dimension Standards of the Pontiac Zoning Ordinance. 

Section 3.11011- Co-Location 

A. Consistent with the MM FLA and rules promulgated by the department, any combination of Growers, 

Provisioning Centers, and Processors may operate as separate medical marihuana facilities at the same physical location; 

B. Consistent with the MM FLA and rules promulgated by the department, applicants for Class C Growers permits 

shall be allowed to receive multiple such permits and operate under each permit in a single facility. 

C. Medical Marihuana Provisioning Center, consistent with the MM FLA, any combination of Grower, Processor, and 

Provisioning Centers may operate as separate medical marihuana facilities in the physical location. Provided that the 

Provisioning Center is incidental to the principal use and that the total amount of internal floor areas of the structure 

locate to the Provisioning Center does not exceed 20% of the floor area of the total establishment; 

Section 3.1112 - Building Design, Area, Height, Bulk, and Placement 

A. Building and design improvements must comply with the underlying zoning requirements of Article 2, Chapter 4 

Private Frontage Design Standards and the Specific Uses Development Standards outlined in Article 2, Chapter 5 of this 

Zoning Ordinance. 

B. If the provisions of the MMOD are silent on building and design requirements, the requirements of the 

underlying district shall apply. 

C. If the building and design requirements of the MMOD conflict with the requirements of the 

underlying district, then the building and design requirements of the MMOD shall supersede the underlying district 

regulations. 

D. Odor shall be managed through the installation of activated carbon filters on exhaust outlets to the building 

exterior from any rooms used for the production, processing, testing, selling, research and warehousing. Negative air 

pressure shall be maintained within the rooms. 

E An alternative odor control system may be approved by the Pontiac Building official based on a report by a 

registered Mechanical Engineer licensed by the State of Michigan, demonstrating that the alternative system will control 

odor equally or better than the required activated carbon filtration system. 

21 I Page 



F. Generators must be installed to operate the air filter system in case of power outage or failure. 

G. Any lighting device with intermittent fading, flashing, blinking, rotating or strobe light illumination is prohibited 

on any Medical Marihuana building, structure or property located inside the Medical Marihuana overlay Districts or a 

Medical Marihuana building, structure or property located outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

H. Luminous tube lighting [e.g. neon, rope lighting] shall not be used to outline or frame doors and/or windows. 

I. Luminous tube and exposed bulb fluorescent lighting is prohibited as an architectural detail on all 

building/structures [e.g. along the roof line, eaves] and on all building facades. 

J. Exterior site lighting must be installed in site parking areas, egress, and ingress areas. Lighting must be compliant 

with Article4, Chapter 5 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

K. It shall be prohibited to display any signs that are inconsistent with state or local law, and Article 5, of the Zoning 

Ordinance. 

L. It shall be prohibited to use the symbol or image of a marihuana leaf or the medical "green" cross symbol in any 

exterior building signage. 

M. The following sign language is not permitted on any Medical Marihuana facility use; Marihuana, Marijuana, 

cannabis, Ganja, Dope, Roach, Hash, Reefer or any other word/phrase with similar likeness. 

N. Window signs that occupy not more than 10 percent of the inside surface of the windows area of each floor level 

of a business or building are permitted. 

Section 3.1113- Review Authority and Establishment 

A. The Planning Commission shall be the Special Exception and Site Plan Review Authority for the permitted 

medical marihuana uses outside the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts and Site Plan Review Authority for 

Medical Marihuana uses in the Medical Marihuana Overlay Districts. 

B. Medical Marihuana uses must be in accordance with the Special Exception Permit review standards contained in 

Article 6, Chapter 3 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

C. A Special Exception Permit for medical marihuana uses require Public Notice of 500 feet from the proposed 

medical marihuana facility; 

D. All permitted medical marihuana uses must be in accordance with the Uses Development 

Standards outlined in Chapter 2 of the Zoning Ordinance; 

E. Within the MMOD all requirements of the underlying districts remain in effect, except where these regulations 

provide an alternative to such requirements. 

22 I Page 



Article 7 - Definitions is amended to add Chapter 2, and Chapter 3 as follows: Article 7 - Definitions I Chapter 2 

Section 7.202 Commercial, Office, and Service Uses 

A. Provisioning Center means a commercial ·entity that purchases medical marihuana from a Grower or Processor, 

and sells, supplies, or provides marihuana to registered qualifying patients, directly or through the patients' registered 

primary caregivers. Provisioning Centers includes any commercial property where marihuana is sold at retail to 

registered, qualifying patients or registered primary caregivers. 

1. A noncommercial location used by a primary caregiver to assist a qualifying patient connected to the 

caregiver through the department's marihuana registration process in accordance with the MMMA is not a 

provisioning center for purposes of this ordinance. 

B. Safety Compliance Facility means a commercial entity that receives marihuana from a medical 

Marihuana facility or registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for tetrahydrocannabinol and other 

cannabinoids, returns the test results, and may return the marihuana to the medical marihuana facility. 

C. Secure Transporter means a commercial entity located in this state that stores marihuana and 

transports medical marihuana between medical marihuana facilities for a fee. 

Section 7.203 - Industrial Uses 

A. Walton Blvd Medical Marihuana Overlay District (see Map 1.) 

B. Cesar Chavez Medical Marihuana Overlay District (see Map 2) 

C. C-2 Downtown Medical Marihuana Overlay District (see Map 3) 

D. Grower means a commercial entity that cultivates, dries, trims, or cures, and packages marihuana for sale to a 

Processor or Provisioning Center. As used in this ordinance, Grower shall include Class A Growers, Class B Growers, and 

Class C Growers. 

a. Class A Grower means a Grower license to grow not more than 500 marihuana plants. 

23 I Page 



b. Class B Grower means a Grower license to grow not more than 1,000 marihuana plants. 

c. Class C Grower means a Grower license to grow not more than 1,500 marihuana plants. 

E. Processor means commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a Grower and that extracts resin from the 

marihuana or creates a Marihuana-infused product for sale and transfer in package form to a Provisioning Center. 

F. Provisioning Center means a commercial entity that purchases marihuana from a Grower or 

Processor, arid sells, supplies, or provides marihuana to registered qualifying patients, directly or through the patients' 

registered primary caregivers. Provisioning Centers includes any commercial property where marihuana is sold at retail 

to registered, qualifying patients or registered primary caregivers. 

a. A noncommercial location used by a primary caregiver to assist a qualifying patient connected to the 

caregiver through the department's marihuana registration process in accordance with the MMMA is not a 

provisioning center for purposes of this ordinance. 

G. Safety Compliance Facility means a commercial entity that receives marihuana from a medical 

Marihuana facility or registered primary caregiver, tests it for contaminants and for tetrahydrocannabinol and other 

cannabinoids, returns the test results, and may return the marihuana to the medical marihuana facility. 

H. Secure Transporter means a commercial entity located in this state that stores marihuana and transports 

marihuana between medical marihuana facilities for a fee. 

Article 7 - Definitions I Chapter 3 

Section 7.301-General Definitions 

A. Medical Marihuana Facility means a location at which a Grower, Processor, Provisioning Center, Secure 

Transporter, or Safety Compliance Facility is licensed to operate under the MMFLA. 

B. MMLFA means the Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act, Act No. 281 of the Public Acts of 2016, being 

Sections 333.27101 to 333.27801 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. 

C. MMMA means the Michigan Medical Marihuana Act, Initiated Law 1 of 2008, being Sections 333.26421 to 

333.26430 of the Michigan Compiled Laws. 

----------------

24 I Page 



Pursuant to Pontiac City Charter Provision 3.112(e), this is an EMERGENCY ORDINANCE to regulate the proliferation of 

medical marihuana facilities within the City of Pontiac and thereby ensure the health and safety of its residents, and 

shall be given immediate effect. 

ADOPTED, APPROVED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Pontiac this _ ~- day of ____ _ 

W±-9-. 

The City Clerk shall publish this Emergency Ordinance in a newspaper of general circulation. The Emergency Ordinance 

is effective after publication. Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of the Emergency Ordinance as passed by the City Council of the C:_ity of 

Pontiac at a regular Council Meeting held in the City Council Chambers in said City on-

Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

I further certify that the foregoing was published in the Oakland Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of 

Pontiac, on ______ _ 

Garland S. Doyle, Interim City Clerk 

25 I Page 


	20200117172224181
	20200117172450276
	20200117172518841
	20200117172547769
	20200117172650322
	20200117173043234
	20200117173243060
	20200117173344011
	20200117173415767
	20200117173502016
	20200117173601970
	20200117173641876
	20200117173714708



